STOREY COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 15T 2013 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA
BILL SJOVANGEN ' BILL MADDOX
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
MARSHALL MCBRIDE
VICE-CHAIRMAN
LANCE GILMAN VANESSA DU FRESNE
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 10:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for October 1, 2013
4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for July 2, 2013

CONSENT AGENDA
(All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Any member of
the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and
acted upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak. ) '

5. Claims - For possible action approval of Payroll Check date 9/13/13 for $493,959.07 and
Accounts Payable date 09/20/13 for $956,361.94

6. For possible action approval of Licensing Board First Reading:
a. CINTAS CORPORATION #3 - General/250 Vista Blvd., Sparks (Uniform Services)
b. B&G BEAUTY SUPPLY - Home Business/2440 Enterprise Rd. (Consultant) VCH
¢. THOMPSON GARAGE DOORS - Contractor/171 S 18%, Sparks (Overhead Door Install)
d. TANN CORPORATION - Contractor/2300 Northride, Kaukauna, WI (Pollution Equipment)
e. LESSCHWAB TIRE CENTER OF NV - Contractor/4175 South Virginia, Reno (Tire Dist.)

1




END OF CONSENT AGENDA

7. DISCUSSION (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/ Staff Reports

8. DISCUSSION (No Action): Presentation from Debra Erdody of Connect Nevada regarding the
completed Storey County Technology Action Plan,

9. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve the second reading of Ordinance 13-249, an
ordinance amending Storey County Code Chapter 1.08 General Provisions providing for general
penalties for violation of the code and amending other sections to be consistent and providing for
other properly related matters.

10. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Request from Tom Quigley to be reimbursed for expernses
for work on water meter leak in the amount of $596.60

11. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Request from Tom Quigley for clarification of county
policy regarding county employee use of county owned property for personal use. In specific,
the parking lot and electrical hookup of personal RV and vehicles alongside the main fire station
on CSt.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING
12. DISCUSSION (No Action): (Per TRI/Storey Development Agreement): Tahoe-Reno Industrial
Center Boundary Line Adjustment for Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC., an adjustment of
parcels 2011-07 and 2011-08 of Record of Survey File No. 115859 being a portion of the East ¥ of
Section 10 and the West %2 of Section 11, T.19N, R.22E, M.D.M.

13. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:

a. ALIO MEDICAL ~ Home Business/21850 Adobe Rd, Reno (independent contractor, books

only) VCH

b. SPRIMOG, INC. - Contractor/9965 Cincinnati Dayton Rd, West Chester, OH (install equip.)

¢. SIERRA HEARTH & HOME - Contractor/ 2350 South Carson St, Carson City (install

tireplaces)

d. PAINTING RENO.COM - Contractor/204 Ave de la D’Emerald (handyman) RB
HIGHLAND PHOTOGRAPHY - Home Business/400 Panamint (photography - books only)
VCH
CHEP USA - General/ 8517 South Park circle, Orlando, FL (pallet rental)

VISION DESIGN PAINTING - Contractor/11 Glen Carran Circle, Reno

COMSTOCK CIVIL WAR RE-ENACTING - Nonprofit/ 1575 Plumas, Reno

SCHWABE NORTH AMERICA, INC. -~ General/2777 USA Pkwy #106 TRI  (distribution
center for dietary supplements)

j-  AMPLUS, LLC ~ General /3033 Waltham Way (precious metals recovery) TRI

k. A B CUSTOM WOODWORKING - General/625 Waltham Way #103/104 TRI

1. NEVADA DISTRIBUTION SERVICES, LLC - General/625 Waltham Way #103/104 TRI

m. WIDE OPEN - General/1777 Peru Drive (off-road tours and racing) TRI

w




14. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

15. BOARD COMMENT (No Action ~ No Public Comment)
16. ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE:

* Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

* Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

* Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

* Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

* Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440,

In accordance with Federal law and U.S. Department of agriculture policy, this institution is
prohibited from discriminating on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, religion, age, disability
(Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) To file a complaint of discrimination write to USDA,
Director, Office of civil rights, 1400 Independence avenue, SW., Washington, D.C. 20250-9410 or call
(800) 795-3272 (voice) or 202-6382 (TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and
lender. The TTY, VCO voice carry over) or HCO hearing carry over) number is 800-326-6868; voice
only 800-326-6868. Check the customer Guide section of your telephone book under Services for
Individuals with a Hearing or Speech Disability.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING
I, Vanessa DuFresne, Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before September 24, 2013;
Virginia City Post Office, Storey County Courthouse, Virginia City Fire Department, Virginia City
Highlands Fire Department and Lockwood Fire Department.

oy VA A U 0. )

Vanessa DuFresne, Clerk-Treasurer




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: October 1,2013 Estimate of time required: 5 min

Agenda: Consent [] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ |

1. Title: Approval of Minutes for July 2, 2013

2, Recommended motion: Approval of minutes as submitted
3. Prepared by: Vanessa DuFresne
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 775 847-0969

4, Staff summary: Please find attached the minutes for July 2, 2013
5. Supporting materials: Attached

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: NA Fund: NA _NAW_ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
_NA_ District Attorney

8. Revij by:
A/ Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer
@m:ﬁy Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1 Approved

f Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [

Continued

e

Agenda Item No.




STOREY COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING
TUESDAY, JULY2NP, 20132:00P.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA
MINUTES
BILL SJOVANGEN BILL MADDOX
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
MARSHALL MCBRIDE
VICE-CHAIRMAN
LANCE GILMAN VANESSA DU FRESNE
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Roll Call: Chairman Bill Sjovangen, Vice-Chairman McBride, Commissioner Lance Gilman, District
Attorney Bill Maddox, County Manager Pat Whitten, Administrative Office/Senior Planner Austin
Osborne, Clerk-Treasurer Vanessa DuFresne, Sheriff Gerald Antinoro, Recorder Jen Chapman,
Assessor Jana Assessor, Fire Chief Gary Hames, Community Services Director Deny Dotson, and
Comptroller Hugh Gallagher.

1. CALLTO ORDER AT 2:00 P.M.
The meeting was called to order by the Chair at 2:05 p.m.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Chair led those present in the pledge of allegiance.

Chairman Sjovangen called for a moment of silence for the Firemen who lost their lives in
Arizona. |

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for July 2, 2013

Chairman Sjovangen asked that item 20 be heard following item 5. He asked that item 11 be
removed from the agenda.

Mark Joseph Phillips, Storey County resident, stated in regards to item 14; he would like the
record to reflect his name spelt properly and NRS requires the item to read as “acknowledgment
of findings of fact and opinions of law” he does not see this on the agenda. He added that it he
would like item 6 and 7 removed from the consent agenda. District Attorney Maddox
responded that item 14 is agenized correctly because of the supporting material, it is being
acknowledged by placement on the agenda and the material. He believes we have complied
with the NRS.
1




Gunther Prosser, River District, requested on behalf of Janet Houts that item 6 and 7 is heard on
the regular agenda. Ms. Houts tried to come up Six Mile Canyon and it is closed, she is on her
way around. Chairman Sjovangen clarified Ms. Houts request with Mr. Prosser.

Motion: Approve the agenda for July 2, 2013 with the requested corrections, Action: Approve
Moved by Vice-Chairman McBride Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3}
. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for April 16, 2013
No comments.

Motion: Approve the agenda for April 16, 2013 Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman
McBride Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for June 4, 2013
No comments.

Motion: Approve the agenda for June 4, 2013, Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman
McBride Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Application to amend Special Use Permit No. 2000-222-A-2

creating Special Use Permit No. 2000-222-A-3. By Comstock Mining, Inc. {American Flat).
The requested amendments to Special Use Permit No. 2000-222-A-2 are to expand land area and
modify uses allowed at existing ore processing facility at 1200 American Flat Road (APN 004-331-
36), American Flat, Nevada. The requested amendments for expansion and modification of uses
are limited to said area and to ore processing. Staff and the applicant have also agreed to update
all text of the current special use permit to be consistent with existing federal, state, and local
regulations that apply and to reflect appropriate use of language and terminology. Staff and the
applicant have agreed to leave the substance of sections concerning exploration and mining in
their current state. (Originally agenized as item 20)

Chairman Sjovangen stated there are 2 things that the Clerk needs from anyone wishing to speak,
your name and where you live.

Austin Osborne, Senior Planner for Storey County disclosed that his father is employed by
Comstock Mining, Inc. (CMI). There is in no way a conflict of interest, he doesn’t have any
financial gain from his father working there and he does not benefit in any way from CMI's
operations. Mr, Osborne provided background information on the application, his staff report

2




and supporting information has been provided in the packet. This application allows for the
expansion of the leach field, approximately 35 acres and cleanup of existing language within the
permit. He has been on continuous communication with various state agencies to ensure that
CMI is compliant as well as this expansion area.

Dave Thomas, on behalf of CMI, introduced members of the CMI team that are present for any
questions that may arise. Mr. Thomas has been in the resources extraction industry for 30 years.
He has worked internationally, including Russia, Mexico and Dominican Republic, building gold
mines and oil and gas fields. The most recent project was in Hope Bay, Canada for Newmont
Mining. He reviewed a power point presentation; a copy of the presentation is available in the
Clerk’s office.

Dona Fong asked what provisions have been taken to ensure the safety of the wildlife in the area.
Mr. Thomas stated that the entire process area is entirely fenced with a flap that covers each gap
at the gate. NDOW inspected the site on Monday to ensure that all the wildlife is being watched
out for. A best practice they are utilizing is equipping the dozer that works on top of the pile with
rippers and covering the ponds with a bird disc. We try to do everything we can and more, a
watering station has been added providing fresh water for the horses.

Valerie Lebel-Flatley, Highlands resident, asked what the plans are for the Gold Hill Hotel, is it
safe as it is. Mr. Thomas explained that a foundation was recently established to preserve historic
structures on the Comstock; there are no plans to do anything but own, operate and celebrate the
hotel. It is part of the business and there are no plans to do anything but operate it as they do.
Ms. Lebel-Flatley asked what the solution that is being applied to the heap is doing to the well
water. Mr. Thomas stated the system is designed for 100% containment, there is never any
solution outside the system accept for water that evaporates, it is a closed loop.

Pat Flanagan, Highlands resident, asked where the cost of complying with all of the regulations is
categorized, corporate, base or discovery and development. Mr. Thomas replied that all of the
costs associated with any current regulations are in the base costs.

Mr. Whitten thanked several members of the CMI team for their willingness to assist with the
recent Pedlar Fire, The Gold Hill Hotel provided cold water and food for the firemen on the
incident.

Commissioner Gilman asked if there is an amount to be mined, not processed, under the 2004
permit. Mr. Thomas explained the only amount listed is under the NDEP permit, it is limited at
up to 1 million tons per a year processed. Commissioner Gilman clarified the new processing
extension will allow up to 5 million tons per year of processing. Mr. Osborne explained that the
current permit does not have that limitation, the limitation falls under the NDEP permit. The
NDERP is the agency that allows it to go up to 5 million tons. Mr. Thomas said it would allow you
to go up to 5 million tons, they currently do not have anything in their plans to process that
quantity, they do want to exceed the 1 million ton limit. Mr. Osborne stated that any amounts are

3




controlled by the NDEP. There are no extension plans for the plant in the application; it currently
can’t process 5 million tons.

Vice-Chairman McBride asked if the application is approved how long would it be until it has
been maximized and may have to come back for further expansion. Mr. Thomas explained
currently CMI is ramping up to pour about 800 ounces per a week, at that rate of production the
new heap expansion would last about 2 ¥ years. Commissioner Gilman asked about the map
regarding flood ways and explained a recent flooding event in the TRI area, he asked about the
drainage ways. Mr. Thomas asked Rachel Elderman to explain the map. She proved an overview
of the natural drain ways and the designs in place to survive a 25 year and 100 year event. It is all
designed under the NDEP permit requirements.

Shaun Griffin stated that a year ago he met with Ms. Elderman’s predecessor and asked that
monthly updates on all environmental changes be provided. It was promised that it would
happen and it has not, he asked that it be done for the good of the community. This would allow
everyone to be aware of what is going on. Mr. Thomas will follow up on his request.

Mr. Osborne provided the findings, the following are found to be factual regarding the proposed
SUP under the recommended conditions of approval show in Section IX of this report.

8.1.1 SCC Section 17.32.020(N) (Uses subject to a special use permit) required a special use
permit for milling and processing related to mining in the F Forestry Zone, in which the
operation under SUP No. 2000-222-A-3 is located.

8.12 Amendments to SUP No. 2000-222-A-2 by approval of SUP No. 2000-222-A-3 apply
only to conditions in the existing special use permit that pertain to processing, including but
not limited to, crushing, processing and beneficiation, agglomeration, Merrill Crowe process,
and ancillary uses thereto, located at Assessor’s Parcel Number APN 004-331-36 (Attached
recording map in Exhibit B incorporated as “Attachment B” in the final SUP approval).
Amendments to the existing SUP include administrative text amendments including, but not
limited to, grammar, spelling, appropriate terminology related to uses and regulations,
sentence structure and improved written alignment with federal, state, and local regulations.
Those adminjstrative amendments do not cause substantial changes to restrictions,
entitlements, are or uses related to exploration and mining.

8.1.3 SUP No. 2000-222-A-3 does not prohibit, nullify, expand, broaden, or otherwise provide
additional entitlements or restrictions (other than improved alignment with applicable federal,
state, and local codes) to existing permitted exploration and mining and its ancillary uses
permitted under SUP No. 2000-222-A-2.

814 The conditions of this amended SUP are not in conflict with the purpose, intent, and
other specific requirements of the F Forestry Zone in which the project expansion is located.

8.1.5 The proposed project and the final conditions it creates will not conflict with or cause
substantial adverse impacts to surrounding existing land uses.

8.1.6 The conditions under this amended SUP are at least as stringent as and not in conflict
with the applicable federal, state, and county regulations. The minimum requirements under
SCC Chapter 17.03 (Administrative Provisions) for special use permits are applied to the
conditions of the amended SUP.

4




8.1.7 The conditions of approval under this amended SUP impose sufficient regulations on
the proposed project t reasonably mitigate associated impacts on the surrounding environment
and closet land uses.

8.1.8 The amended conditions and the remaining unchanged conditions of the amended SUP
comply with the land use requirements of the underlying regulatory zone and are as stringent
and not in conflict with federal, state and county regulations pertaining to the uses allowed by
the amended SUP.

8.1.9 The amended conditions and the remaining unchanged conditions of the amended SUP
are in accordance with the recommendation by the planning commission.

Commissioner Gilman read a prepared statement into the record: I would like to make a couple
comments before I vote on this agenda item. First, I want to complement the county staff on the
Staff Report for this item. This report is a great model for future land use and permit agenda
items ~ it is clear succinct, and the marked up aerial photos are very well done. No matter if
you're for or against this item, the report is helpful in defining the issue so that everyone can
understand. Great job. Second, I would like to that the citizens who have more or less been
performing “volunteer oversight” of mining in Storey County. To all of you, you have been very
helpful in alerting us to key safety and environmental issues regarding the mine. Mining does
have a pretty significant impact on the environment and if not properly managed can result in
irreversible damage to the land and water basin. It has also quite an extensive foot in imposing
noise, industrial truck traffic on nearby residents and neighborhoods. I encourage you to
continue your involvement on this issue and continue to communicate your concerns to us. But,
on this agenda item, I am going to vote to approve it, but I will move to amend the item now
before the Commission with a couple of conditions. I would like to explain this vote. First, | am
mindful of the fact that CMI owns the land this new processing will take place on and they own
the mineral rights on that land. We need to keep in mind that if we outright deny access to those
minerals, or regulate that use so heavily that they cannot reach those minerals in a practical way,
there are a bunch of legal issues that would arise that may put the County at risk legally and
financially. Second, CMI has been a long term mid-size employer in this county and they provide
a good living for a lot of employees - in other words, there are a lot of families and children of
those employees that depend on this company for the wellbeing. Part of my vote is a message to
CMI that I expect them to continue to be a good corporate citizen and to keep their job rosters full
in this County. Third, I think we should also keep in mind that they must be allowed to shift the
location of their processing on their own land from time to time in order to operate the business.
If we “freeze” the mine to the exact processing location there are in now, it could hamper their
ability to extract processing material from their own land and the company could suffer or
eventually go out of business. So, I am going to vote yes on this item, but I want to make sure our
County has long-term assurance that eventually this land will be returned to its normal state. I
noted in some of the background correspondence that NDEP has jurisdiction over the bonds.
With that in mind, I would ask the District Attorney to confirm, if he would, that the conditions I
am about to layout are legally within our power. I move that the motion to approve the
amendment to the SUP be approved subject to the following: This approval only is effective if,
and only if the county staff make the following determinations before the approval goes into
effect:




1. CONDITION NUMBER ONE - That the applicant has provided a reliable
independent estimate on the future cost of remediation and reclamation of the leach
areas covered or affected by this amendment to the SUP. A comment on this first
condition: I am concerned that no one at the County has seen any estimate of the
potential cost of the eventual remediation and reclamation of the site. I have been
provided documents indicating NDEP has such an estimate, and if so, we should
review that estimate for ourselves to ensure it is accurate. If the bonds are
insufficient we will pay a very heavy price is safety, health and environment should
the worst case occur. If NDEP has an estimate then fine. Our staff should verify the
estimate is done by someone qualified to give this estimate, that the methodology
used appears appropriate and that it covers the areas I mentions.

2. CONDITION NUMBER TWO ~ That the county staff determines that the bond or
bonds are sufficient to cover all the costs identified in the estimate as outlined in the
first condition.

3. CONDITION NUMBER THREE - That the applicant provides a drainage plane that
provides adequate drainage and avoids eater getting into piles of waste which
contain hazardous processing by product.

Mr. Osborne added that condition 3 that deals with insurance also include environmental
insurance for up to $7 million. Mr. Whitten clarified that his conditions are additional or
reaffirmation of the original conditions. Vice-Chairman McBride confirmed with the District
Attorney there were no issues with the additional conditions. Mr. Thomas stated he did not object
to any of the conditions.

Motion: Based on the Findings of Fact shown in subsection 8.1, conditions of approval shown in
Section IX[9] of this report and compliance with federal, state and county regulations and the
recommendation for approval by staff and the planning commission, I motion to approve SUP
Application No. 2000-222-A-3 amending SUP No. 2000-222-A-2 to permit expansion of the current
SUP boundaries to include all land within existing parcel (Assessor Parcel Number) APN 004-331-
36 illustrated in Exhibit B of this report and incorporated in the amended SUP as “ Attachment B”
and as to allow uses in the SUP therein including, but not limited to, crushing, processing and
beneficiation , agglomeration, and ancillary uses, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner
Gilman Seconded by Vice-Chairman McBride

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)
Chairman Sjovangen called for a recess at 3:28pm; the meeting was called to order at 3:43pm

Chairman Sjovangen called for Public Comment from Dale Beach. District Attorney Maddox had
previously arranged for Mr. Beach to talk at this time. Mr. Beach explained that he wears hearing
aids. He feels that he is being discriminated against because he is old and you don’t like what he
has to say. This isn't a precedent setting, what he can do, if informed, is tell him what time to
arrive for public comment and he will speak at that time. He can't sit in these hard seats for very
long. It is on record that the Board commented that they got rid of Dale Beach, he isn't got rid of.
Mr. Beach continued that he has filed with the Attorney General’s Office and he is in the process

6




of going to the federal government, he believes he is being actively discriminated against because
of his first amendment right. All he wants to do is have an opinion. He asked that someone pick
out a time for him to say his piece and he will be here, that is all he wants. His issues aren’t going
to go away. Mr. Beach stated there is $43,000 paid into Pat Whitten's pension fund; he would like
to know how it got there and who made the decision. He is putting all of his questions to the
District Attorney because he is the legal guy. He wants people to go back and rethink what you
said about getting rid of Dale Beach, if there wasn’t any we the people there wouldn’t be any
government, we deserve a little more respect. The budget is at least twice too high when
compared to other counties. He hopes in two weeks someone has a 30 minute window in which
he can come up and talk about anything he wants.

District Attorney Maddox explained that he is going to try to estimate when public comment will
be so he can provide Mr. Beach with a window to speak. Chairman Sjovangen added that until a
couple days ago he was not aware that Mr. Beach had any issue sitting,

Chairman Sjovangen stated that at 5:00pm is the Grand Opening of Library. He doesn’t know if
the Board is going to make it over there it runs from 5:00pm ~ 7:00pm.

Mr. Flanagan asked for clarification regarding Mr. Beach being allowed to speak. It is his
understanding that we are operating under new rules and what he made a statement on is not on
the agenda and that is in violation of your own rules. Chairman Sjovangen stated this is not
public comment and to sit down.

Claims - For possible action approval of Payroll Check date 6/21/13for $373,760.65, Accounts
Payable date 06/14/13 for $326,858.65 and 6/14/13 for $6,548.93 (Originally listed under the
Consent Agenda)

Mr. Phillips stated that on page 2 of the claims is a payment to the Bucket of Blood Saloon in the
amount of $6,200 for a historic ore cart. It his understanding that this is for the rest stop at the
north end of town, he asked if there was an appraisal done or if it went out to bid. Mr. Whitten
explained this is part of the Street Scape Grant, as with most grants when we got to the end of the
project there were available funds in design. Shannon Gardner with Community Development
spearheaded this and there was a strong desire to have some type of ore cart displayed near the
head frame. He authorized, without appraisal, payment of $6,200 to the Bucket of Blood to
purchase not only the cart but also the skip that used to sit in the back end of the Bucket of Blood
lot. The reason he did that is because Vice-Chairman McBride on behalf of the Bucket of Blood
family business had voluntarily said he would donate it. In order to process it through the grant
we had to write a check to the Bucket of Blood, the check was turned back over to the County, in
essence the cost to the tax payer is zero. Chairman Sjovangen stated he stopped and looked at it,
it looks great.

Janet Houts, Storey County resident, stated she is confused on the claims because it includes the
vendor payments for the VCTC. During the budget hearings the VCTC wasn’t included, you
have indicated that the VCTC is a separate local government. She asked why the VCTC vendor
payments are being approved by the Storey County Commissioners. Ms. Houts said she is curios
how the ore cart is a donation if we are issuing a check, is it for tax purposes. She asked about a

7




check to Southern Wine and Spirits for the Bucket of Blood, is Vice-Chairman McBride going to
approve that payment or excuse himself. Mr. Whitten replied that while the VCTC is a separate
local government we have entered into an inter-local agreement to provide fiscal accounting and
oversight. He strongly suggested to Ms. Houts that is if she wishes for that Board to also review
it that it is that Board that makes that determination. The check process was used at my
direction, issuing the check was the only way to complete the grant process. The checks to
Southern Wine are the responsibility of the VCTC, and Vice-Chairman McBride is in no way
singularly responsible for approval of the claims.

Motion: Approval of claims, Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman McBride Seconded by
Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

Possible approval of Treasurer Report for May 2013 (Originally listed under the Consent
Agenda)

Ms. Houts stated as she was reviewing the report she found there is a balance in the general
adjustment in the Wells Fargo CC account and the bank. She has asked in the past why there is a
difference, she has asked in the past and no one has answered her. She said she has also asked
why the ending balance and beginning balances are not the same. She asked when she is going
to get the answer.

Motion: Approval Treasurer Report for May 2013 Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman
McBride Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

CONSENT AGENDA
. Claims - For possible action approval of Payroll Check date 6/21/13for $373,760.65, Accounts
Payable date 06/14/13 for $326,858.65 and 6/14/13 for $6,548.93 (Heard on the regular agenda)

. Possible approval of Treasurer Report for May 2013 (Heard on the regular agenda)

. For possible action approval of Licensing Board First Reading:

a. The Highlander - General/240 North C Street (Cosmetologist) vC
b. A B Custom Woodworking - General/200 Canyon Way (Cabinetry) RD
c. Uprising Paragliding - Home Business/240 Vermillion (Recordkeeping Only) VCH

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

No Comments.

Motion: Approve the consent agenda, Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman McBride
Seconded by Commissioner Gilman




Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)
9. DISCUSSION (No Action): Committee/Staff Reports

Fire Chief Gary Hames:

Chief Hames reported that they have been busy the last couple of days with multiple wildland
fires in the area. On Sunday afternoon about two o’clock they responded as mutual aid for
Central Lyon County to what ended up being a 94 acre fire east of Gold Hill. The Fire
Department was committed heavily to the incident. When it was all send and done we had four
type 6 engines, two type 3 engines and three dozers as well as the duty battalion chief and
himself. For the first significant incident of the year is happy to report that it went very well.
There is a lot of automatic and mutual aid responses out there, a lot of aircraft usage, kept it out
of Silver City, didn’t loose a single structure. Fire Chief Hames continued that there were two
fires yesterday, one in the Flowery Range. We were lucky to get the Raven helicopter that was
able to do 5 drops. The second fire was in TRI, were able to keep to a 50x50 spot. During those
two incidents we responded two bull dozers to Red Rock for mutual aid. We are also working
on coordination on the 4% of July event, no reason to cancel it. He thanked Chairman Sjovangen
for bringing up the firemen who were lost, it hits very close to home. Chief Hames added that
we are back on track with our annual business plans and hose testing. Chairman Sjovangen
thanked him for his work with the equipment on the recent fires; it has absolutely shown the
importance of having the equipment. It is not a waste a time or money.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher:

Mr. Gallagher has a report from Denton Company Chartered Certified Accountants; it is a cistern
review and report of David Pringle, CPA Limited. This is an opinion that was submitted in
November 2009. This report has to be prepared every three years. This is an audit of our outside
auditor; the report gives them a clean bill of health. Mr. Gallagher introduced his
Granddaughter; she would like to carry forward into the political science arena.

Senior Planner/Administrative Officer Austin Osborne:

The weed abatement program is completed; he thanked those who sent permission allowing
them to enter. The Carson River Subconservancy Water District is working on their annual plan;
this plan helps the district acquire grant funding for projects and get FEMA coordination. He is
working with them to ensure that things are done correctly. If the Board desires Ed James with
the District would be happy to present final findings to this Board. Mr. Osborne added that
Stacey Bucchianeri and Shannon Gardner are working on our community rating system for the
National Flood Insurance Rate Program. They are bringing our local code up to the federal
requirements.

County Manager Pat Whitten:

The Fire Department has bid on, thru the efforts of Al Drake, on the 2015 Nevada Firefighter’s
Annual Training Conference. The last one was about 3 years ago and it was a phenomenal
conference, bringing lots of people to town. He asked Chief Hames this morning what our
probability was for the 4% of July. We can rest comfortably year after year that the show is going
to start at 9:15pm. Mr. Whitten discussed the firemen that were lost in Arizona and how close to
home it really hits, it is our family and friends on the line. He reminded everyone of the Library

9




10.

11

grand opening and the Farmers Market on Thursday nights. An inventory has been done at the
Gold Hill Depot, there is a meeting coming up to throw around some options.

District Attorney Maddox:

He reported that we now own the Virginia City Highlands Fire Station. He met with Mr. Beach
and Ms. Houts and it isn't the first time that he has heard that people have had trouble hearing in
the audience. We may want to look at getting a better audio system. Ms. DuFresne responded
that she is working on the issue.

Clerk & Treasurer Vanessa DuFresne:

Ms. DuFresne reported that the 2014 tax roll is complete and the bills will be going on next week.
The new evidence cart has been delivered; the tech will be in next week to install it. It will
provide more audio and video technology.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of modifications and extension of the
Agreement between Storey County (Employer) and Storey County Employee’s Association
(Union) also referred to as AFSCME Local Union, Comstock Chapter.

Mr. Osborne informed the Board that this is the renewal between Storey County and AFSCME.
He commended the members of the union that worked with him, they were grounded and
understanding of the situation at hand. We looked at administrative issues and grammar clean
up. The duration of the agreement is for 3 years, at which time it will be renegotiated. One of the
big items was health benefits, employees hired after 2014 will not be offered health insurance
coverage for their spouses or dependents. Per NRS 288 a fiscal analysis has been completed and
will be provided as part of the agreement. Mr. Whitten disclosed that the president of the union
is his daughter; she is not financially dependent on him in any way.

Ms. Houts asked what is the cost savings for the county and is this going to be effective next year,
how much is the fringe benefits. Mr. Osborne replied that the cost analyst is going to be part of
the public record; there are many components to the agreement. He discussed the variety of
issues and unknowns that play a role in the cost and savings to the county.

Commissioner Gilman thanked Austin and staff for all of the work. There has been a lot of effort
from everyone to understand the contract and changes. Chairman Sjovangen thanked the union
representatives.

Motion: Approve modifications and extension of the Agreement between Storey County
(Employer) and Storey County Employee’s Association (Union) also referred to as AFSCME Local
Union, Comstock Chapter Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman McBride Seconded by
Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Acceptance of contract with High Sierra Forestry to

update the 2005 Community Wildfire Protection Plan. This is being funded through a fuel
reduction grant via Nevada Division of Forestry.

10




12,

No Action - This item was removed from the Agenda at the request of Chairman Sjovangen.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of TRI Public Partnership “Statement of Project
Revenue and Net revenue and Supplementary Information” for the period ending June 30, 2011
and 2012.

Commissioner Gilman recused himself from this item.

Mr. Gallagher stated we are now caught up on the back log of audits, the vouchers and reports
have been cleaned up and submitted. He provided a synopsis of the process and reviewed the
fund that has been established for the repayment of the infrastructure costs. He recommended
that the statements be approved.

Chairman Sjovangen passed on a couple of compliments he received last week, Storey County
really got a great deal on this Public-Private agreement.

Ms. Houts stated she looked at the notes for 2012, we have paid $2.4 million and the County
issued a credit of $838,459 for property taxes but if you look at the accounts for debt outstanding
it only shows the $2.4 million payment. Mr. Whitten commented that if you read the sentence
fully it states that subsequent to June 2012 the County issued a credit for $838,459 for taxes; it will
appear in the next audit.

Motion: Approve TRI Public Partnership “Statement of Project Revenue and Net revenue and
Supplementary Information” for the period ending June 30, 2011 and 2012Action: Approve
Moved by Vice-Chairman McBride Seconded by Chairman Sjovangen

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2) Commissioner Gilman recused
himself from the vote.

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: First reading of Ordinance 13-249 an Ordinance amending

Storey County Code chapter 1.08 General Provisions providing for general penalties for violation
of the code and amending other sections to be consistent and providing for other properly related
matters.

Bob Morris asked the Board to approve 13-249 for its first reading; he read the title of the
ordinance. He stated there is a general section about the county commissioners and the penalties
section was reserved this resulted in every ordinance that came forward that had a penalty
section had a full blown penalty section. This ordinance puts a general section under the county
commissioners and does a consistent style of all the penalties. This brings the code up to current
penalties; we are not changing any penalties. There are a lot of places that are inconsistent; this
gives the Board an opportunity to look through the code. Mr. Whitten added that there may be
an extended period of time between the first reading and second reading to allow for any
concerns or changes to be addressed. Mr. Morris stated there is another ordinance that he is
working on as well regarding nuisances, it may be that it will have to come forward for a first

11




reading and then resolve the difference between the two. The second reading will be heard at the
first meeting in August.

Motion: Approve First reading of Ordinance 13-249 an Ordinance amending Storey County Code
chapter 1.08 General Provisions providing for general penalties for violation of the code and
amending other sections to be consistent and providing for other properly related matters Action:
Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman McBride Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Discussion of decision by the State of Nevada Attorney
General’s Office finding in Open Meeting Law Opinion Number 2013-01 that Mark Joseph
Phillips was improperly precluded from making comments and ejected from the April 2, 2013
County Commission Meeting by Chairman Bill Sjovangen. A copy is on the County’s Website
and a copy will be made available upon request to anyone who requests it. This discussion is
required by NRS 241,0395.

District Attorney Maddox stated we had to put this on the agenda. The Attorney General found
we were in violation of the open meeting law by limiting Mr. Phillip’s comments on the general
public comment section and excluding him from the April 2nd meeting. Generally speaking we
have to be more cautious in the future about limiting comments and there has to be more
disruption prior to ejecting someone.

Commissioner Gilman suggested that public comment is very important and we have learned a
great deal. He welcomes the reviews and comments. This is not a perfect science and we deal
with a lot of challenging and unusual circumstances. He would to see some guidelines for
everyone on how we do take public comments. Cormmissioner Gilman stated he supports
moving public comments to the later part of the agenda; he covered his various reasons for
support of the change.

Judy Cohen, Storey County resident, stated that she too feels many of things that Commissioner
Gilman. What she doesn’t agree with is that we too sit here through the meeting and we are
entitled to say what we think. She feels that Chairman Sjovangen’s comment to Mr. Beach
regarding “cronies” was totally inappropriate.

Mr. Flanagan is still asking for clarification, if you are going to have rules he expects that they be
followed. He asked that it be explained how Mr. Beach got to stand up and make those
comments. District Attorney Maddox responded that at the last meeting Mr. Beach provided a
letter showing that he had received a handicapped sticker; Mr. Beach cannot sit out there for an
hour or two and wait for the end for public comment. District Attorney Maddox agreed to
estimate a time that Mr. Beach could speak under public comment, today’s meeting has taken
longer than he anticipated and he asked the Chairman to allow him to speak in order to
accommodate his disabilities. He discussed the pros and cons of having the public comment at
the end versus the beginning of the meeting,.

12




15.

Chairman Sjovangen said that when he came in at the last meeting he found something from the
DMV the Mr. Beach had placed on the table. He was totally unaware the he had any trouble
sitting. A little bit of communication before the meeting helps out a whole lot. Commissioner
Gilman commented this is a rather new commission and we truly are engaged in community
issues and for past transgression we apologize, we are learning together. There is real
commitment from everyone at this table to make it work.

Mr. Phillips sated this item was put on as a requirement because of the findings of facts and the
opinions of law of the Attorney General’s office. The meeting in question was April 2nd and the
Courthouse was packed. Everyone witnessed him being wrongfully excluded from the meeting,
At that time the Chairman asked the Deputy Sheriff to remove him from the Courthouse,
everyone complied, and that is what we will do next time. The only reason the Attorney General
ruled the way they did is because he complied without making a scene. Mr, Phillips said this
opinion allows him to take this wrongful exclusion from a public meeting to the Sheriff, it is
criminal. It also allows him to go to federal court for a violation of his rights.

Ms. Houts asked the District Attorney if Mr. Phillips can sue all of the commissioners instead of
just the Chairman. She suggested having public comment at the beginning and end of the
meeting to accommodate everyone with a disability. District Attorney Maddox stated he talked
to George Taylor with the Attorney General’s Office and he was told that the Open Meeting Law
does not accommodate for people to speak at any particular time. Today was an exception; it
does not set a precedent. He will do his best to estimate what time public comment will be for
people with disabilities.

Mr. Prosser stated that in the past you have allowed public comment during staff and committee
reports. The agenda states that public comment will be allowed for each item on the agenda. He
asked if people are going to be allowed to talk under staff reports after a department head
speaks. He added that it changes every meeting and he would like to know what the policy is.
Chairman Sjovangen stated they have not changed anything. Commissioner Gilman asked that
the Board be allowed to develop the protocol rather than making the decision this minute.

No action taken.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of resolution 13-377 setting the 2013/2014 Tax
Rate Levy

Mr. Whitten stated that once a year we have to establish the individual tax rate components by
resolution. Other than changing the name of one of the funds, from Forestry to Wildland Fire
there is no change to the overall rate.

Ms. Houts asked for clarification on the Wildland Fire fund, we are no longer going to issue any
checks to NDF. Mr. Whitten responded that is not true we have a 2 year inter-local agreement
with NDF for $155,000. Ms. Houts said the she sees in the resolution the revue is calculated for
the tentative budget. If she were to do the calculation it would make the numbers in the tentative
budget. Mr. Whitten responded that is correct.

13




Motion: Approve resolution 13-377 setting the 2013/2014 Tax Rate Levy Action: Approve Moved
by Vice-Chairman McBride Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

16. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE NRS 474 STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION
DISTRICT BOARD
The 474 Storey County Fire Protection District Board was called to order at 5:14pm

17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Acceptance of contract with High Sierra Forestry to update
the 2005 Community Wildfire Protection Plan. This is being funded through a fuel reduction
grant via Nevada Division of Forestry.

Chief Hames explained this is from the grant we received from the NDF. This updated the 2005
assessment with our new objectives. We have gone out to bid a received 3 bids, High Sierra
Forestry is recommended for the award. Commissioner Gilman thanked him; he believes that
competitive bidding is very important. Chief Hames added that there will be additional funds
available for wildland fuel management.

Motion: Approve acceptance of contract with High Sierra Forestry to update the 2005 Community
Wildfire Protection Plan. This is being funded through a fuel reduction grant via Nevada
Division of Forestry Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman McBride Seconded by
Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

18. ADJOURN TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
The Storey County Board of Commissioners was called to order at 5:16pm

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING

19. DISCUSSION (No Action): Per TRI/Storey Development Agreement): Tahoe-Reno Industrial
Center, LLC & Fulcrum Sierra Biofuels, LLC Boundary Line Adjustment 2013-001 for Fulcrum
Sierra Biofuels LLC/TRI at, being portions of the east ¥ of section 10 and the west ¥ of section
11, TI9N, R22E M.D.M.

Mr. Osborne explained this is an informational item. There is no action required. A review of
the is available in the packet.

20. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Application to amend Special Use Permit No. 2000-222-A-2
creating Special Use Permit No. 2000-222-A-3. By Comstock Mining, Inc. (American Flat).
The requested amendments to Special Use Permit No. 2000-222-A-2 are to expand land area and
modify uses allowed at existing ore processing facility at 1200 American Flat Road (APN 004-331-
36), American Flat, Nevada. The requested amendments for expansion and modification of uses
are limited to said area and to ore processing. Staff and the applicant have also agreed to update
all text of the current special use permit to be consistent with existing federal, state, and local

14




regulations that apply and to reflect appropriate use of language and terminology. Staff and the
applicant have agreed to leave the substance of sections concerning exploration and mining in
their current state. (Heard following item 5)

21. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:

a. Caldera Electric ~ Contractor/508 Jackson Way (electrical contractor) Carson City

b. Kalen Johnson- General/1480 Grey Bluff Drive (misc. maintenance) Fernley

c. Cool Breeze Refrigeration & Heating - Contractor/72 Webb Circle (refrig. Repair) Reno

d. Buck’s Plumbing & Heating - Contractor 275 Gallaway Lane (plumbing cont.) Reno

e. Virginia City Mining Company - General/171 South C Street (panning for gold) vC

f.  Nevada Distribution Services, LLC - General/625 Waltham Way #103/104 TRI
(public warehouse and distribution)

g. Schwabe North America, Inc. ~ General/2777 USA Pkwy #106 TRI
(distribution center for dietary supplements)

h. MARS Petcare US ~ General /725 Waltham Way (dist. For pet food) TRI

i. Virginia City Kettle Corn Depot ~ General/188 South C Street vC
(make and sell kettle corn)

j- Hot Pot, LLC - General/420 USA Parkway, Suite #101 (restaurant) TRI

k. American Arms Delta - General/224 East Sydney Drive, Suite B TRI
(firearms manufacture and repair)

L. Battle Born Munitions, Inc - General/625 Waltham Way TRI

(import and distribute firearms and ammunition)

Motion: Approve continuance of item F, G, I and L Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman
McBride Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

Motion: Approve items A-E, H, ] and K Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman McBride
Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)
22. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

Mr. Whitten stated the road closure on Six Mile is due to debris clean up from the recent
rainstorm.

Mr. Phillips stated the Clerk/ Treasurer of the VCTC is AWOL. Last year he spent a lot of time to
get the bond in place, he will check with the Clerk’s office to find out what happens when the
treasurer is absent without leave. The vacancy in office should have been on the agenda today.
Mr. Whitten attempted to respond to Mr. Phillips. Mr. Phillips stated that when he wants Mr.
Whitten's opinion he will ask for it. Chairman Sjovangen advised Mr. Phillips that he is getting
out if hand again, he is not to talk to the County Manager like that. Mr. Phillips told Mr, Whitten
no thanks he doesn’t want to hear what he has to say. Mr. Whitten continued with number 1 the
functionality of the Treasurer is a matter for the governing Board of the VCTC. Number 2 we

15




have been notified of Doug’s intent to resign and we have an advertisement running to fill the
vacant hotel seat. The appointment will be placed on this agenda at a later date.

23. BOARD COMMENT
Commissioner Gilman reiterated that he is looking forward to the time when we can have

positive comments and feedback. Threats and being rude to one another is not a good platform
for productivity.

24. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was adjourned by the Chair at 5:24pm

Respectfully submitted,

By

Vanessa DuFresne, Clerk-Treasurer

16




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: October 1, 2013 Estimate of time required: 0

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: For possible action approval of Payroll Check date 9/13/13 for $493,959.07 and
Accounts Payable date 09/20/13 for $956,361.94

2. Recommended motion: Approval of ¢claims as submitted

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775 847-1006
4. Staff summary: Please find attached the payroll summary and accounts payable listing for the
dates referenced above.

5. Supporting materials: Attached

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed-by:
Department Head Department Name: Comptroller
QMunty Manager Other agency review:

5. Board action:
[1 Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

M= —
el e

Agenda [tem No.




HHANSTIYL

HEITOYLINO0D

AANQISSIWWOD HANOISSIWWOD NYWAIVHD

FEAJUOTESTWWO) JO parvod Ajunel Aaiols syl Ag pasoaddy

L0656 €6 IPISANETd [E3I0L
PLULLT'O PI0IDNPAE 07 IJISUBLL I8EN TRIOL
¥E 9BZ ¢ 19714 deg ITQ UC POLISITUEIL suoTILnpag evdoTdug Tej0l
60 LEZ 9% i31sodag 302a1ag ovforduzy Teaol
g0'0T0°T i83oay) safoTdwy TeICT
TE VLD 0BT iSYISYD ACJINPIT TeIoL
CS'TLT'LS ‘8dIid AcF xvgsued] Iesq TRIOL
unowy 2adeg # pag ¥ aa
/4 dwg  /yosyp
B 4 9 5 ¥ € ¢ 1 ‘:sdnoap Troakeq ET/80/60 :932g pus-potaag €I/ET/60 i3a%d ydayp zetnboy :adAy 11oafeg
AYYNIWNITILA a3381BeY Hoayd LPIET!®HT ET/TT/60 ‘unyg

S abeg WALSAS TTTOWAVd AINNOD AZAOLS ¥Q150¥q :3dey




T

[ 42N
LS 6L
05808
ETTELT
-~¥8°'52
S0TEV8
09762
28°L
00°6¥9
L37gs
257081
BL"BL
66'6T
-IT'T
¥L TEE
¥6' e
62°Z9
00'502
Q0 BET
&L°88T
e b
LT 62T
1529
75 89¢ 25'85¢
00°0SE"1
00’01
00°0%

00 0ge 00'0¢tg

00568 00°569
8% LE §9°871
S9°81
8T
00-sze 00"SZ2
99'¥2c LE 8y
BF 9¥F
LG BY
8¥ 9%
89°g
898
0% LT

00" g8t 0056
Q0038

T9°LTT 9L 8T
9886

00°06%'T

TYLOL
HADEHD

IHOQWY

abed

00°0EE'T

00'06%°1T

F1599
1599
¥1599
71599
¥1585
¥1599
¥TS99
PLS59
¥1S599
91599
91559
91599
21592
9159%
EP929
6599
E¥¥9%
8v¥33
(3245
67F99
LS99
6¥F99
6¥r99

85599

81599
813599
21599

L7599
5%599

9vvo9s
Ibrroe
9F¥99

£5599

#$659¢%
LA EE
¥r508
ALt
§¥¥es
S¥¥es
R AR

20599
r9v99

£€T599
£1592

£9%99

¥ENTHTL

£1/02/6
£1/08/6
£T/02/6
£1/02/8
£1/02/6
ET/02/6
£1/02/6
£T/02/%
£1/02/8
€1/02/6
£1/02/6
ET/02/6
£ET/02/6
£T/0Z/6
£1/02/6
ET/0E/6
£1/02/6
€1/02/6
£T/02/6
£1/02/6
£T/02/6
£1/02/6
£€T/02/6

£1/02/6

£1/02/6
£T/02/6
£ET/02/6

£1/08/6
£1/02/5

£€T/02/8
£T/0C/6
£T/02/8

£1/0E/6

ET/0E/6
£1/02/6
£E1/0Z/6
£1/02/6
£1/0E2/6
£1/0€g/6
£T/02/6

£T/0¢/6
£1/02/6

£L/02/8
£1/02/6

£1/0e/6

ELYd

£T/02/8

SLNIAR IY¥IDALS

SEOYY THWYD

LINTED MNEAQEYE WHOD

LNY¥0D NEQUVYS WHWCD

HOIYHD £T/6/L QHATd XYL
SHOVE TEWYD

SNILIIW SSIANISNG

EDETICO AN YHHAIS-JVO
DNIDIOT YNVDIHIWY
SdI17440g

SHITA4NE HDIAJAQ

SHITIANS IDIJJ0
SENOHAIYAH

SOLOHd WWO2 MIN/SIWTII
LATTANOL TL LS W0 SILHYd
S8T0E LHOIT NEHILIM PL 1S
d1ndd ¥od SAYd INYEHOSEY
SITHEOS TL LF 904 {HLHYLS
dOYLE0d

INVED LIJ ANOWHS ¥0L TIrdda
DNINIVYL Z8IMD/IZINTHS
THNG F4Id FT0499Da0T

TANd YIS E1CARDTOT

ETDE 'IT LJES-6T ISNDNY
NOILVTIISNI ddId ANVL 1ENg
T# JAKOTE WOJ AdA

gI42a

gId3a

SNOWIS

AYANNYT HO

AYANNYT dOHS

AMANONYT HO

ATANNYT d0HS

AYANOYT #L 08

AYANMOYT 2L IS

AYANAYT TL IS

1€} §ADCT AdAEA
SEITddNS SHE

SEIT4dNS SHE

L¥0ddns

NOIL4AI¥DSEA HAOIOANI

TALSTOTE MITHD
ALNOOD AH¥OLS

POLZH YOTUINY 20 ANVE

dY0D "IYLIAYD VOdIvd

NS ADNYN ‘dudve
ONI HJIAYHS % SEIVS L 7 d

ONI SIHLDETH NOILVHOLAY

D77 II ALITIEOW 1%LV

STENTIEM INY HLIVEH DUV

SHI QD5MIY

QNI MDOT ANIATY

OMI NON SWDYIVY
DNI SWHISAS YIVa dIINWAAY
HOaMEA

ET/6T/60
STETHI

8e99L

LEIIL

$£99L
S£99L

TES9L

€994

[4%-LTX

TES8L

0Eg99L

6C99L
8T99L

HHFHON

ADEHD
a3eqg unyg
oN 3xedey



4

IYLOL
ADFHD

abeg

£F'2¥
9E" L¥T
§5'€£€
25'55
05 BT
[4 2833
86°98
12°892'1T
86°8T
0L %8
97" €L
6LTEET
40 3 4
SE°0T
¥6'£TIL
86191
S2'%E
ootey
g0°6
LL S8
26'689
00' 0§71
Z5 %SV '2
12°6TT
0066
00'9
507 5L
SV ¥6
06'5¥
6£°8S
£L'L
00029
06 BE
LLTE
oF 12
61" 9%
66" ¥
06°96
01" 2T
S0°0%
¥H 0T
LS 9%
00°LZ
£L'9€
£95°8%
00516 °T
9E' BL
26 8L
§E°ZET
1261
66°LE
00°S%
$9°2%9
Z25°88S
05" 1SS
06 LLS

LNNOHY

(344 1]
L3 a4-F]
evpeg
6¥FSs
6%¥%399
6¥¥99
6%¥%99
67799
6¥999
6b¥99
6¥¥99
6¥%90
0e9%e
Ev¥o3
&6V ¥38
&¥¥8s
A4 2E]
$E5599
ae999
9€999
S€£999
629998
6999
91589
STS599
STG99
ST599
STS99
STS99
ST59%
51529
S158¢9
ER°)-5:)
814999
$£999
S€999
6¥¥99
6¥¥93
6v¥99
0£9599
SE999
5g£29s
5€299
g€229
Q6vag
6¥¥99
59%99
S9%99
59799
S€999
S€999
¥1599
¥TS599
¥1899
Y1599
Y1599

HSNVHET

£1/02/6
£1/02/6
£1/02/86
£1/02/6
£T/08/6
£1/02/86
£T/02/6
£T/0E/6
£1/0e/8
ET/0C/6
£T/02/6
£1/02/6
E1/02/6
£E1/02/6
£1/0Z/6
€T/02/6
£1/02/6
£T/02/6
£I/08/6
ET/0Z/8
£1/0eg/6
ET/02/6
£1/02/6
£T/08/8
£T/02/6
£1/02/6
ET/0E/6
€1/0¢8/6
£1/02/6
ET/0E/6
£1/02/6
ET/0Z/6
£1/0Z/6
£1/02/6
£T/02/6
£1/02/6
ET/02/6
€T/08/8
£1/0e/8
£1/02/6
£1/02/6
E£T/02/6
£ET/02/6
£€1/0Z/6
€r/0z/6
£T/02/6
£1/02/6
£I/08/6
£T/02/6
£T/0Z/6
ET/02/6
£1/08/6
£1/02/6
ET/08/6
£1/0¢/8
£T1/02/6

dLva

£1/02/6

# 0/a

dns ¥IVAEY/ONINYITO PL IS
Id XONIM DIF SUIVATE TLAM
SAIIIANS FDIJI0 AANIM ©Id
HZIIEIIINY H¥IE AGQNIM DI
Id XANIM PIE SUIVEA TLLM
Td AZANIM DIE SUIVAHY TLIM
TN H¥I4 AANIM ©Id

1404 AANIM SI8

YANNIC ACNIM SIS

TALOW AQNIM DIE

TN FUIL MVEd ONINGS
TENI FUId A¥Ed ONIHAS
Had

2OYLS04

dIVaEY AUIL ZTLIM

HIVHD E2Id40 bL IS
NOIIVNISTONY ¥AANAL ATIVM
GWIgd FES HOUNd INIAIDLW
IE0L/YMYL LSYIvadg
IE0L/YNYL JANCH WENNIA
YNYL WOO¥ dNCD 174
TAVOYN BLEBERBTOTH SHNYML
SYIVI TEEB90SD# ANT
SAITIENS /SITASYE FTIWYS
LNAWNIYIYEING XA STHVEYH
METAMZINI NOILYLS 0Iavy
SEITAdNS DONINVATD

AID FOUYI/SNId dvH
SNINIVEL YIddW TYID0S
dNo¥p SNE WYJd SN0
ADL/EDATTOD AN VHYHIS
IDETION AN VENEIS

SHAAIL 100 AN VHIHFIS
INZUNIYIEALNT

SILddY (Q¥YCH §SANSIA

SUVd 'SNAd '¥Hdvd QUvD Snd
¥ELIIA TENd

2L 15 - #1704 HYId

SLON XTH

Had

LSYANYAYE A¥d TIAVHL

AYY ¥0d §vH

AIN ¥ O JI¥A/M LIEW SAY
YNYL SEWYL 'S DINE/M
SMYT IVYL ANV WI¥D AN
SYIVAAY ZL-d

Z1/8

S0/80

BZ/L ALYD

IE0L/YNYL AY¥A TIATHL

AYE NYRTD

TYMINTE dIHSEAEWAN

SEOVY TAWYD

INVED NITEYD WWOD

SHEOVY "TIWYD

INYED NETIYD WHOD

NOILAI¥ISET HOIOANI

YILSIDAY ADAHD
ALNAQD AZYCLE

YOQONHEA

ET/61/60
sTelgd

YEINNN

ADEMD
¢ ajeq uny
foN 3xoday



61'6 958599 £L/02/6 TTANYH MOANIM 0550zZMd

96 S€ 95599 £1/02/6 HICONYH “HSHE-1dE0 a¥oy
6L %F 95599 ET/02/8 TAD ATS HOITD QSS0TMd
6092 95599 £1/02/6 TEIHM YOSSHAGHOIUIY Md
PELY 95599 £1/08/6 TO0D XIA 'AD0LS
LL 1% 95599 £1/0z/6 HALTIL-AIOLE
¥y LT 95599 £T/0Z/6 LOTId HOINTID 06S0¢ Md
-T8' €S EEEEES £1/02/6 HALIIE ‘gL-d FUIJ
61°5 95559 £T/02/6 dWT XAVH'TL-IM TUIJ
BO'LT 95599 £T/08/86 ULTI 1I000 ¥I1d 1TIC-AD0LS
¥6 ER 55599 £T/02/6 TIO MYHD NAS 2LT-n 3uIZ
05'S1 95599 £1/02/6 aIng-d0OHS
£5°'6¢ 95599 £1/02/6 N¥d SNY3L ZLT-0 ENII
66°8 95%99 £1/02/6 TYWIEHL ¥EHSYTA 9TBLE MJ
8 %9 95599 £1/02/6 MOLOANNOD ZLTn TUId
08'9% 95599 £r/0e/8 NIFTAVEE - HIOLS
6T' L6 95599 £T/02/6 WALTIL IWId 24T7-0 Z¥Id
896" S0E 25599 £T/02/6 ¥OLYIAYY €085 0S
60§ 95599 £T/02/6 LIASYD HAId XI #5267 M/d
§9° €9 95599 £1/08/6 SYTLTIL-ADOLS
69°ES 95599 £1/02/6 dI¥ ETAI IATYA WIND ¥NS
ob'zze 95599 £T/02/6 LTEG ‘ONIHIILS 8L-N FAIL
z8'LE 95599 ET/02/6 dWYT OI¥H £4T-0 HEIA
91" ST 95599 £E1/028/6 YALITE TIO-ADQLS
SL¥Yd OLAY ALID TYLIIAWD E¥89L
05" 9% 05 9% 5599 £1/02/6 99%E8LTLE HALAW
NEWZAOMAWI TYUANED NOANYD 8FISL
00°00L 00 0oL 60599 £T/02/6 SIOVY TANYD
¥ LEYMELS ' TTHEIWYD LP99L
L0 8S5°¢L L0885 L 90599 £I/02/6 TEINAY “dINDE $EOVY TEWYD
ONI STYINIY ALEYd LOTAWYD 9999L
08 LZ 0542 £7599 £T/02/8 SAEX dna
A4¥S ¥ §EYID MO0 M P D §%99L
00°T0€ 00° %62 02599 £T/08/6
0074 02599 £1/02/6 £T0Z 'TT 1dIS-6Z OOV
SIMIT LLODS " TIEWMNg ?P99L
00 LFT 00°L¥T Y8599 ET/02/6 QUYHOIY ‘ODHEEDOW
ONI WYVYIV O1T1d¥vodnd £¥99L
PLOTLE ¥LOTLT £9%99 ET/0E/6
NO¥EWYD ‘ESANYATYD ' NMONS Zh99L
00 SvY 00 91Y LYF99 £T/02/6 avaH IHOIT ZL.LM
0062 LYESY £T/028/6 IIM ¥NNZLNY ZHA ZLIM
SESTYdYILNA A¥uEd T%95L
00°0€ 00 0¢€ 61599 £T/02/6 £I02 ‘TT Id4§-8Z DO¥
HYNOHEd ‘daANEY] 0%99L
€6 762 £6 762 99599 ET/0E/8 g¥00 LHNOEd HD
120a0dd EITUONOD FIITVSVHE 6£99¢L
6L79€L'8T $5°18¢ 06%99 £1/02/6 HENID SHYH¥VH vYads
6E"E 8599 £1/02/6 Jaac ¥od TIQ
9% LST T£999 £1/08/6 2078 ¥OZ STIW - HHOWAYH
SLTPEE 87599 £1/08/6 ATAWCD ¥X ANAOVE AdILLYE
00" 6¥g £%¥99 £1/02/6 EONZ¥EANOD ¥4Y/RISSAT
LT 68T E¥H98 £ET1/02/6 SUIYAEY AMOHS %L IS
8% 62T §%%99 £1/0E/6 STEYOVTE SNIVAVEEY
00° 00T 67559 £T/02/6 TE0d TIId WIA
00 LE 54599 £1/02/6 ONINIVYL JFTHD/JAJIHEHS
TYLIOL LNOOWY #SNVUL TIYT % o/d NOILAYHIS$AA FIIOANI JoaNaA AIEWON
MDTHD ADFHD
£T/0Z/6 HILSISTT MOEHD £€I/61/60 ¢ ®3eq unyg

£ abeg AINOCD RAENOLE STETHd ‘oN 3xodey



4

04281

00 96€7°61
0008

00° 8%

00" 5¥bg

007 9sT

LE'LSZ'Y

05°LET'E
00'02¢
00" 9€ET
£5'108°'02
00° 59

00" 2%9
TO" 0¥

00" 8SS

QG goe

LE #50 ¢

0T 08%

L' L8z

TO SgT 1

IYLOL
AJFHD

abeg

Q0018

o est

00 S6E°6T
0008

00" 8%
00°9%8

05° L6
0S6°' 8§

S2'L2s
[R50
0O SLBTT
00001
0S5 LET’E
00'02¢E
00" 9¢€T
£5°108'02
0099

00 2%8
0" 0%
00855
Qo Lo
BL'TLE
L6691
§8'zz8’e
6% 0TS'T
-tZT RS 'Y
£y 'L82'¢
8L°ETE
0% " BIE'T
017099

L A-1-1A
¥ST6¥T
€L e
=00 0%T

gL 19
Bg'6

LNOOKWY

otgee
EZ598
F9559
6E999
22999
12599

L1223
L1228

SLY3%
SL¥e9
93%99
L1595
28%99
8€999
29¥%99
L2999
05599
09599
LESHI
£053%
£€9999
£9599
29999
29599
29599
29599
€953%9
29599
29599
12999
69599
69599
69529
62539

9495995
95599

#SNYUL

€1/0E/6
£ET/02/6
£1/02/6
£T/02/8
£T/0Z/6
£ET/08/8

ET/0E/6
£1/0z/8

£E1/02/86
£1/0e/e
£T/0E/86
£T/02/6
£1/02/6
£T/02/6
£T/02/6
£1/02/8
£1/02/6
£1/02/8
£1/02/6
£1/02/6
£1/02/8
£T/02/86
£€1/08/6
£1/02/6
£r/oz/e
ET/0Z/6
£T/02/86
£T/02/8
£T/02/6
£1/02/6
ET/08/6
£1/02/6
£1/02/6
£1/02/6

£1/02/6
£T/02/6

qLYA

ET/0R/6

SEOVY TEWWYD

el0z ‘1T 1dAS-62 DAY
HOA TTYES AOWHD
WYHDCHd HNCOH4

€102 11T LdH8-62 20V
€102 'Z 14IS-T1 9n9

6PZET HONWNITHO
HONYHD ONILEAW

£10T LSAONY DESD

£I02 LSNOOY OSIA HISD
1804208

£T/PT/6 NOILVAYASTYE
SEONVAHIUD OF /SHNSSI 03
SAYAQ B ALOA Z¥AL
TOYINOD ISEd Ti IS
X¥I SATYS AINNOD-IHL
6T/0T-0%/6 DOIW
AE-QONVLS

g I4EQ ~L ONY¥  Id4-IM
£T/0Z/0T - €1/€2/6
YIIOLDO LU0EENS
TESITIA FUII HOA
TASIIA ¥ AYIINN Md
TESETQ ¥ QVETINO Mg
TESEITPAYIING TIId HDA
LIdE¥ED

THSAIQ % QYATINA M4
TISHI0 TEIL IW

TISEIC ANIA IW

zsoze#

avy LY0oddns 90£9S 0§
ASY TYES PHC9SHATI
WYY Zia-d BEIL

0s

LY AD0LS HYIA
SYLTd TIC’TANISADOLS

NOIIAIYDSHEA HITOANI

YHISIIEH HDEHD
ALNQOD AEYOLS

Q2 EDI IYLER¥D

¥ OIAWLIO “WISHHD

ONI 0Davyd
SHNOTLYDINOWWCD AYMNOD
27T TIIW d1T0S ADOLSHOD

OUYNEET J¥M TIAID NDOLSHOD

(OA) HIDINOYHD AI0ISWOD

ONI ISEHD ALINOWWOD

d SETIVHD ‘1I¥END00

¥ OAUVH  NOSNEVID

TOULNOD LSEd HIvID
HHENSVEAL NOS¥YD J0 ALID
SNOILVOINOWWOD HELUVHD
HYId ALNOODZ NOAT TVELINED
JIHSYANLYYG QDTTED

ONI ¥00dLOO S8

JNI FATIIASVYD

ONI QD 'IXO ZHETIVA MOSHYD

SYAIAOGTE TOLIAYD

QNI Q¥0d "IYLIdYO

UOANIA

£T/61/60
STETEd

69294
8599L
LI83L
99994
$999L

¥993L

£99924

2995L
T993L
09994
65994
8599L
LS33¢L
9599¢L
55994
PE29L

£599L

29994

T833L

0g2s5L

GHEIAON
MDEHD

ajeqg uny
toN 3xodsy



S

06 €97

00"0€6 '€

05° 012

96709
0458

BT 8981

96°¥6

6€°€91

21" 9%

00°5g2

o0’ 0€9

057 L09

£5'815°¢

0t Le¥
167
00081

¥9"8ET 1Y

¥o'00L

PT16€E6"F
05’286
00'000'5%
00°016
TYEOL
M2EHD

28eg

05" QST
00°'3
004

00°5€9
00°S6E'€E

2899
89°¢£9T

96° %05
0052

06 BY8
BEZ'6TI0'T

o1 LE
08 LS

68 €9T

00’ 0%
9T " ¥#0¢

00°5EE

oo-oLe
00’ 09¢€

06°409
0B EBE'T
5% 97T 1T
LT E00TT
QE'LeF
It 6
00°08T

00"oLY'T
¥9'899 6%

$9°'00%
6€&'66€

TI6E6'Y
05°286
00009791
00'Q0F’8

LNOOWY

¥Z599
v2592
»2599

57999
TI959

16599
165959

15758
L6595

TLE93
L8598

0L589
0L599

28%99

19599
ivs929

66799

LDS9%
18599

80898
898388
85538
89599
TLS99
L9V9%
06699

PLYO9
YLY29

99593
FEFES]

05¥%935
S6%99
9£499
9599

#ENVHL

€T/02/6
£1/02/6
£E1/02/56

ET/02/6
£1/02/86

£E1/0E/6
£E1/0E/6

E1/0Z/6
£1/02/6

£1/02/8
£T/08/8

€1/02/6
£1/02/6

ET/0E2/6

£1/028/6
£r/oz/6

E€1/08/6

ET/0Z/6
£1/02/6

£1/0Z/6
£T/02/8
£T/02/6
£T/02/6
£I/02/6
£L/0g/8
£T/0e/6

£1/0e/8
ET/0Z/8

ET/0E/6
£E1/02/6

£1/02/6
£T/08/6
£1/02/6
£1/02/6

Jiva

TT0Z ‘TT 1dE5-6% 907

HONYNALNIVW TYNNNY
dIX EONYNILNIVW TYARNY

SEITAANS SWE
SEIT4dNS SWA

WIVdgyd FJISAYOA ZTLIM
ASNIEXE TIAVIL

DNIHOLYE oa
OMIHOLWE 2A

SEAQTD -¥Y3qU0IIA
N¥d TVIXY-dIMES

SELITILILIN
AVEd aNOd

SEONYYYEIIY LNID0Qd

NS YNEIY NTd/EOWd TEWYD
¥NYIL DIXGES HS0dXdA

SHOVY TEWYD ADN¥L dHELYM

01’ vAH WNS ME
TISHIASAYETIND AMMDT F¥IA
TESEIIFAYIATNG AMADT ANISE

QYT JQ¥YNS UONOH

dIVdIY¥ LNAWIINDE

SMO ©NITEJOW DITNYHALH
€102 LSNonvY FOVEn

LAIYHE HMOX WOOW"E 02504
NOISSINSNYML 0S50EMd

MOLYHALO EANIONE
NIVML/SMId TAIYTI JA
2078 OS/¥d D § 502-10%
9078 IATVIS D § §02-10%

NOILLATHDEEC EDICANT

€T/02/6 UILSIOTY ADITHD

ALNQOD ATEOLS

HOIAYIS LIGEYD 1043d HWOH

OH2E Jd¥M HL¥NCA DIWOLSIH

DNIDWWIOUDINW LY¥JSEd HOIH

NIZHOS AYNEH
d FJ0H 'AYMYHIVH

A¥YD SHWWH

02 NOILDNULENOD HIINYHD

UADNIVYED

% HIVAYTEOW 'HYZ0Y ‘ZEANOD

D17 dIMOL TYHOTD

CGNYT NOWYHVHS ‘dEWIZHNEZSHD

TAVA TIVHEWYD

SHOTARES AOLIVHEL 5. ANTEd

DT ADYENT SUEATI
HHL-ONI AEN J0 HEJYOLS DHY1L
QIIVANID0 FOVINYAQY LS¥Id

Alddg? JELS TIIANES FUIZ

ONTUTHENIONE I5aM Y¥vd

NI¥ ONI HOTAY¥ES HENITAATEA
T NOSIVL '#@MYHC

ONI ONIAWYL d4aa

AIIHY ¥EDYEENIDDE NYYd
HOANEA

ET/6T/60
STETES

16834

06994

6899L

88294
LBSOL

98534

S89%/

¥B8994

£899L

28994

18994

08994

6L29L

8L39¢L
LL99L
9L99L

SL39L

pL99L

£L99L
TL99L

TLa8L

OLSSL

HEHWNN

MIEHD
1 oB3eq uny
10N jaoday



8k’ bs 89%99 £1/08/6

95" €071 8€599 £€1/02/6 LYW 400713
~65'0¢2 89799 €1/08/6 HONAd EICH 2 MungLad
NI SNOILNTIOS EOIAAC OLEW 90L9L
00°'0S¢€ 00° 08¢ 98599 £T/02/6 AT 62000 ¥D ET
H3E50L 'NIZELSITIESH SOL9L
0009 00°0¢ 82999 £T/02/6 LHOTEM/ANEWITY INONILEYH
00°0¢€ 82999 £r/0e/s LHOIEM/INEWIHY INONILIEYRN
VINTEOE ‘ ITNONILIYA FOLSL
po'o0L0'Z 00°0L0°2 96%99 £E1/08/6 ALINODES DY TAWYD
SELYIDOSSY 3 S50 NILVWYMW EQLIL
noo00'e 00°000°2 SBE9S £L/02/6 INEWISHNEWIHY NOILINT,
NMYHS ‘' NVHYW ZoLSL
00" 05T 00 0E 85599 £€1/02/6
00 0E 65599 £T/08/86
00 0E 65599 £r/0e/6
000 65599 £T/08/6
00 0€ 65599 £1/08/6
d LYEYDEYH  VIVIIYYW TOLSL
PF 608°¢ T 609°¢ 00599 £I/08/86 SHEHSNEAXE ZOvd TIWYD
211 SINAAZ 2078 qINdIT 00LIL
P8 €62 00°957 $SH99 £T/02/6 SEITdANS SWE
¥R LET S99 £T/02/6 SEITAdNS SWE
ONI LSISSY-34IT 6699L
§6° 54T 59°8LT LLG99 £T/02/8 SYAHSYM ¥ SMIIADS
LSTMATN TIVERIN §699L
00°568 00°5 52599 £1/08/6
00°066 52599 £ET/08/8 £102 ‘11 1d435-62 OOV
I¥HD % EJOTENSd '¥ETHDEIA LEQOL
06'2E5'T 6£°0S B6599 £1/02/6 LIM Z4-LM Hu9Id
-00'0¢% 86598 £1/08/86 €08BOEAS ANI ¥LT-T F¥IL
-S6°PTT £6598 E1/02/6 INHWAYE HIYOI'TANG
-6£' %9 £5798 £1/02/6 INEWAYE HI¥2ITdng
SP TROT £S¥99 ET/6Z/6 SYIVAAY €L-T
2711 480 9699L
FT'98€ %1 z29°L3 67599 £1/02/6 QYYAAYOH JANOL dH
85'5€S 65599 £€T/0E/6 TAYMWA FATIDED DdD
¥6'ZLLIET 6%599 £1/02/6 A2ANGA HOEL - NYS ALNAOD
OTT HIEAOS TLI 56994
29'0%% z29'012 01999 £T/02/8 €102 425 LPTIN
NI IOW O4NI NIVINNOW NONI 6994
00°52T 00°SET 66599 £T/02/6 SEHNA TEONMY D01 ATENVIL
TIDNNODEA0D TYNOILYNIALNE £699L
05" €L 06" €L ZLGGY £ET/02/6 dWna md
OLE SONILLIA % ESOH Z699L
9§ T¥2 -88°T¥ 9LG99 £1/0€/6 FIL THILYE
’ -96°6¥ 9L599 £1/0z/6 ATYHTHYOT
9% €T 9L599 ET/0Z/6 FAYL YD LoNd 2L 1S
¥8'9S 9L599% £T/02/6 HIL LEHOIYY dOHS
¥EL 91599 E1/0E2/6 ) L1006 ¥AJA0D INTA UMHS
88 ¥TT 90595 £1/02/6 HALTIIA HD
¥5CLE L5289 £E1/02/8 9X¥ dOHS Ad Nuvd
€8 € $4599 £T/02/6 MNIADS HOWW -INId YAMES
E9'8€E 34599 €T/08/6 JOLYAILIND~LINTI FTMES
z6' 2T 94599 £€1/02/6 MNIT NID-INId dAMIS
95 6¥ 94599 £€1/02/6 ATYMANVOR
TELOL LNOQWY HSNYHL q1va # o/d NOILATEDSEA TDICANI HOANTA HIERON
NIFHD MOEHD

mﬁ\om\mmmamemmmomxu ET/6T/60 * 23¥q uny
9 abeq ALNQOD AFHOLS STgtEd oN jdodsy




00°§¢

SLT8tL’

YE 6T6”

00024

00" 12€E”’

05'0v0 "7

00-0s0”’

29162

oo zee”’

SE'LD9’

0T TEL’

02'30¢€

e8PV

00'5z6°

ST1get
20°00%

LS LO9

ILIOL
ASHHD

L abeq

00" S¢
1T SLTETLIIY
L YEETE'L
00°0gL
¥ 00 IBE'F

T 0867064
00082

T 00080 T
287162

£ Q0" €TS
Q0 s
00'SLZ
00"6TR'E

T SETLOS’T
L gzrezz'L

XA A
[hR vl 4
0e'T

08°'ST
86 €LY
“Z6 66¢
TLTILT
BE ELT
8L'S¥
gL'SY

Ly ¥l
21 LS
BE6' 16
8L VEZT

4 00'526'z
ST €2T
¢0°00¥

S5°6T
¥L'06T
TL'8

TT° L8
FPL'ES
ZL 18
|4 A

LNOOWY

61999
0g999
LT
2gees
TLF99

L8599
LYS99

19599
919599

81999
81999
81999
g1%92

22989
6L595

58693
28599
98539
28539
98599
98599
98699
98599
98599
28528

Z8S38
0858535
85999
08599

L8799
¥cags
BLG9S

BESHY
cg99e
¥L99¢
89F58
§57¥98
55b99
89799

#ENTHL

£1/02/6
E£T/0e/8
£1/02/6
£1/0Z/6
£1/02/6

£1/0E2/6
£1/0z/6

£L/0e/6
£T/02/5

£1/02/6
£E1/0%/56
ET/028/6
£1/02/6

£1/08/86
£T/02/6

£1/02/6
£1/02/6
€1/02/6
£T/08/8
£I/02/6
£T/02/86
£€1/0T/6
£1/02/6
£1/0¢/6
E1/0Z/6

£T/08/6
€T/02/6
£T/02/6
£€T/0E/6

£ET/02/6
£1/0eg/6
£E1/0C/%

ET/02/6
£1/02/6
E1/02/6
£1/02/86
£€1/02/6
£T/02/6
£T/02/6

qLYa

£T/02/6

UNZ HINOW ISnNony

534 HHUNIIEA

I '¥OIdaY

ININSSHSSY 310¥Y¥d HINOA
¥1-A4S DAA-L3O

LIWEEd WALSAS dALWYM
LINMEd INVTd INEWNLVIVL

ONTINIEJHEDONIS
NOILONQO¥d IS8d

aN¥ ELNOW LSNONY
aNE HLNOW ISOONY
GNE HLNOW IS0ONY
GNEZ HLNOW LSNONY

SEHE H2¥OAIA
FSYHIUNd ¥IILVM ATnD

AYES ZL-IM HUIE

319D JWANYIO-JdOHS
AWYPE" APT TL-IM ZHUIZ
TIO SNYAL -dQHS
S¥0LOY -XDOLS

80vd IAYVHYE TL-0 TATI
AYELLYE SYITIVHIIATI
SYQLOYW SZTEBEFOS

SEAVYE ¥TZZ908

SAAVYd GZE8v OF

SAIT440S

INI¥d /UATANINGS

TL L5 - S¥D0T ¥ INIVE
SIT0H HXE ‘NIVHD

20TETH#
LIEIENI 8LZTESHSIWWOD

SOY¥E TWNOTA

SIITAANS HDIIIA0Q
SEITdANS

SONO¥d /M 5¥9AATOd WIINWW
SAITEENS HITII0

S3ITAANS ANIJA0

SLANDYd DOH ¥Od SHVL

NOILATHYISEA EITOANI

LG THEY AOEHD
ALNOQD AFHOLS

(oM} QLT ENTE YAVAAN

HAENSYEEL

HAANTAZA DITEnd
WYVHO0Ud LIJANEL SHEd
SEUNCSTY NYWAOHE

NYWOH-HIAYEH 20 AIQ

ELTVEH 4C AIQ
ALIAYS DITENd 143a

ALBAYS D2ITANd 30 1d4EA

YATIOLAWOD
HITIOLEHWOD

SONNO¥D 2@ 2dtud NIWJY

fitciys

AHN

AEN

AdN

AFN

AN

HAFN

AAN

AN

ATN

ATN

SL¥¥d OLOW ON

TUYMAEYH FSIOHANNOW

I 1¥F80Y 'SITE0W

OTT LDEYIA HOUYNORW

QD JOLOW THOH TEYHIIW

HOaNAA

£I/61/60
5TE1dd

EZLIL
TTLIL
TZL9L
QeLOL
6TLOL

8TL9L

LTL9L
8TL9L

STLIL

LAYA-TA
ETLSL

2ILEL

TILOL

0TLoL
60L9L
BOLYL

LOLOL

UITWAN

ADEHD

ajeq uny
‘ON 3ioday



"D0SSY TYDIDOTOIAYY ONFEH obLoL

$§'g9v’e s5'gove 19%8% £1/0Z/6 SUIVEIY SIUYTIOd
UYED ¥ SATDAD ONAYE EELYL
SE'LL 00’6 LES99 £T/0e/6
gL'6 L2599 £T/0E/6 €T0Z 'IT ILdET-62 90¥
0585 L2999 £1/08/6
W YHONYS 'aQuodavy BELIL
00°5¢ 0054 0FS99 £1/02/6 ONIZOLINOW St IS
ONI SEDIAZY NOILDELOUWd LELYL
00°'0SE 00°0SE 6£999 £1/61/6 SHOYY TIWYD
FOUIIA ITTEMOL 9ELIL
05" LBL 05" LBL 00998 £1/02/6 SHITIINS NOILINIATEE HUTJ
ONI SNOILOWOYd FAILISQE SELOL
00°0TT 00’ 0Tt 92599 £1/02/6 16 “TT 1d4dS-68 DAY
a OMHONY ' ININIAL PELSL
00 0s 00'0¥% 15599 £T/02/6 di#d AL JHE AFY¥OLS
00" 0T 15599 £1/02/6 BNOWIS/SIAVA
ONI NOILYATYAZ THNNOSME] EELIL
96" £08°T 95°9%L'T 898599 £1/02/6 dWNd ¥ELYM HIJIRMG
-99'9%L T 88599 £T/0e/6 dWNd ¥ELYM HIJIEMS
P2 99¢€'T 88599 £ET/02/6 DdS § NIDTIH HAJ3IIMS
TLTLED 88599 E€ET/08/6 YOLOW HIIFAMS LS
SATVYS INFWIINDE SNIMO ZEL9L
£5°50% £5'50% LLY9D £1/0z/6 HOI440 MYITD
o1 'IOdAd WIVd ALISIIO TELIL
0S'TEY §2'% 5599 ET/02/6 SEIAFLHOIT
65 ETT £5499 £1/02/6 SAI1144AS ADIA40
95°'5% [4=3=5:3-3 ET/02/6 ¥FAYE A40D
8z 8% YEE99 €1/02/8 AL FTI4/93ANIL/ STIEVT
8T 22 |23 &F] £1/02/6 YIANIH ayen SSaANISng
6€°L PEF99 £T/02/6 avd ds0oW
6% 0T vPF99 £T/02/8 HEIAINDYN
TL'TL PEE99 £L/02/6 TSNOWRAUYQHYAEN /SNAL
19'807T 21999 £T/02/6 HFAHO0HY '$AITAANS HIIAH0
ONI LO4Za ZDIAJ0 0£L9L
£9°628'T 0% 998 68599 £1/02/6 AYHEHY HuOM QVox
9T %39 68599 £T/02/6 SNSIS XINO ONINYYd HD
LY 9FT 68599 £1/08/8 HARETS ¥ 1EMOVHE YOdHOA
vF0TE 68599 £1/0z/6 HSYOH'zZ-TTM
9T ' Z¥¥ 6899%  €£1/02/6 SNDIS-5AY0d
977 SNILINSNOD NOLAON 6TLIL
L9 TET‘E L3 TET'E LSE9S £T/0E/6 §504 ANIPNE - HAGANS
Y2 FUIJ AINOCD NOART HIION 8ZLSL
§8°' 5§97 §8°697 8L%99 £T/02/6
T-IHN LZLIL
00°00€ 00°00¢ 0Lp99 £1/02/6 SENA ATHSHIGWAN E£106Z
NSSY SUEAVAXYL YAVAEN 9gLoL
S9°LLT S9TLLT §2999 £1/08/6 qaLOFTION SEIL -
ONI @5TANES TYDdT YAYAAN SZTLOL
00" %0T 00°%0T 50599 £1/02/6 FAYYYd A¥d ¥0dvI Z LdES
27T SNHOLD YOYAEN PELYL
00" SLE 00705 95799 £1/02/6 INIVR TYLd0d
0005 ££999 ET/0Z/6 £10Z DOV T4 TEINOE OW
00°' 08 95%29 £1/02/6 LIV 195404
00 STE 3 2-F] £1/02/6 NOILYHEND dWYLS
-00° 08 95F89 £T/02/6 OWEW LIAIND
TYIOL LNOOWY HSNVHEL aLwd # 0/d NOILAT¥ISEA FITOANI HOANTA AFEWON
ADEHD pifeicizie]
£T/02/6 WILSIHAY MIFHD £ET/61/60 ! @3eq uny

8 sheg ALNOCD AEEOLS STETES 'ON 3xoday




[

£5°€95'2

18°9LL

00° 003
05" ¥

00" 0¥P'Y
LS ¥
867181

8v'6Z8°'¥%

01789

0o ¥t
ST 281
00006771
SL'1S

v6'0%5°¢

Z¥'9gt
10°0%T°¢€

TYLOL
ADTHD

abeg

00'66E°T

0% L6T
007602
£T LST 2

S9°vw8
FELSE
-0Q'egze
-00'¥oE

00°009
0s° ¥
00'0F¥’9
LS %%

§6 191

LE' RS
16 0L’ w

25'T
AN

£1°§
64L° €
65°S
96 €
9%'s
16’6
v e
LE”

1€’

66"

0E'61
o€
£s”

2€° ¢
90°¢

00" ¥T
ST'981
Do 006" T
S4°'T9

000052
60V

Z¥' 92T
o' opL’e

LNOOWY

96599

96599
56599
56599

26599
€653%
26595
265999

A3 4E]
82599
21599
2€92%
F0S99

1i8%99
18va99

LESSS
LESI9
LES9Y
LEGHY
LESHY
LESSYG
LES2D
LESES
LESSS
LES9S
LE599
LES99
LES9Y
LES99
LESS9
LES9Y
LEGH9

QeSS
oeyss
L6¥39
9.%99

08%99
089%99

£8599
&L¥8%

HSNYEL

£1/02/6

ET/0E/8
ET/08/8
£€T/02/6

ET/0Z/6
ET/02/6
£1/02/6
€1/02/6

£1/02/6
£1/02/8
£1/02/6
ET/0Z/6
£1T/02/%

£1/08/6
£1/02/6

£T/02/6
£T/08/8
£r/oe/s
£1/08/6
ET/02/8
E1/02/6
£ET/0Z/6
£1/02/6
£1/02/86
£T/02/6
£1/02/6
£T/02/6
£T/02/6
£T/0E/6
£T/02/8
ET/08/8
£1/02/86

€1/0E/6
£ET/02/6
£1/02/¢
€1/02/6

£1/02/6
£T/08/8

ET/0E/6
£T/02/6
TIYd

£1/0E2/6

¥ 0/4a

2L IDIH

ANIYI-XAEH) T00Z

OIavy INTd ¥dLI¥M MOEHD
HSYMMDE OL DNIOH ON LNV
ZI0Z/0T INHWYDY LNVH ATEd

LISO4AT LNOD "YOTED
LISOLAd LNOD 'YOTHD
N¥LIY LNOD
NMEOLEY LNOD

DNISILYEACY SHLNOW 9

£I0Z ‘1T L4ES-62 90V

VAVY SW¥D Y04 ASUNGWITY
WSTHNOL 2A

4oL ZH6T1-L¥8
SNOTLY2INNWWOD-Z2T¥9-262

LI

(Jn) EHIL
HHNOISSIWWOD

wa

HOIYASId TYALNID
UCSSISTY
LNEWIOTIATT ALINAWWOD
(oA) TAIL
QOOMAD0T/BY1d
NIWNAY/ 93 TIOEIIN0D
JIIHIHS

ar

JATUIHS

SAEOM DITdnd

(Jn) =HHIA
HIGEOOHYE

HEETD

£10T 1T I438-62 DNV
SHIT3dNS SWE

TYINTY HIHOVATE HDE TEWNVD
6098L%159

WYED0dd VIQEW TYIDOS
0Z/8 ONY L/8

do¥isod

NOIIJI¥ISAd HDIOANI

ADEHD

ALNNCD AEUOLS

SETYLSNONT ELVLS YIATIS

SWELSAS TOUINOD WE¥HIS

ANYAWOD TYOIHEHD WHdHIS
W NIITHLYA ‘HATOHS
NETTY NYIHE '4VOHS

¥ AYEAJED TTHAIZES
A ¥NYD 'NOOOZES

ONI SHEOIAHMERS Tv¥dOTID DdES

DHI SEDIAYES TIVHOTO 245

GT NI SHADIA¥ES fIYE0TD DHUS
ONI BAINIDLYY SAUYW INIVS
SNI 0D0ddn¥

ONI SMOHSOYOX

ONI ¥SN LS04ayod

WNT ddyNyg

LNAODOY JAYESHEY

HOONIA

£1/61/60

OGLSL

SSL9L

PELIL
€549
€9L9L
TG6LSL
0sL9L

BFLSL

8rLia9L

LELSL
9% LOL
SHLOL
PhLOL

EPLIL

ZhLOL
TvL3L
JEEWNN

ADFHD
|3Bq uny

STETHd ‘ON 3a0ded



00" 91T ¥E£S89 £1/02/6

00 % FESOS £€T/08/6
0D ¥¥ FAAONYL ¥ VINIDUIA £LLSL
00'8LT 00'68 850999 £T/0E2/6 SLETIOL ETavived
0068 50999 £1/0¢8/8 SLATIOL EIEvIdod
N 40 SEJIAMES HLIS QILINO ZLLYL
0F'6IS'T 0B 6TIS'T ¥0999 £1/02/6 SEITAANS TYINOLINYLD
INI SdIMATEOM FDYNOSINN TLLYL
00" LY 00" LY 55599 ET/02/8 INO Q3YND HONOH TIATAYI
OTT WAYAEN 20 ALIWMNOJINA 0LLOL
0C'¥BL 00 BLT [4 3 ZE] £T/02/6 TTYD ADIAMHS zi IS
56° %€ Z9%99 £€T/08/6 YALYM ¥L 1S
S6°0€E Z29%99 £1/02/6 JELYM TL OIS
6" EL £9%99 £T/02/86 HEIYM ZL IS
58°23 55539 £ET/0E/6 QZH
§6°82 ¥£999 £1/02/8 L0 ¥ATO0D HALYM 9aTd
SP 6% £8%99 £T/02/86 ANYL I4 aNY ¥3T000
06° 1S 20999 €1/08/6 INEY A¥ES/YETIO0D ATHINOW
06°TS 20999 £T/08/6 INZE A¥ES/UITOOD ATHLNOW
S¥' 58 £8¥%99 E£T/02/6 ANYL IQ NV JETI00D
§%° 55 £8¥59 €1/02Z/6 ANYI 10 QNY IET00D
S¥' 88 £8F9S £1/08/6 ANYL I0 ANY J3T00D
S§6'5¢ 68%99 £€T/08/6
SAS WALYM SMOUYIH FAADNAL 89LSL
00'008 00§52 £€599 £1/02/6 €102 'IT Id3S-6Z oN%
00°'S% ££599 £T/02/6
SAQEMOD HNOLSHWOL HHL BILYL
00°9L8 00°9L8 59599 £1/02/6 SEIL v PSZEEXI
AOJUOD SYWOHL-~LTYNIEY HHIL L9LOL
00°290'T 00°0€ TEG99 ET/0E8/6 ETCZ 'TT IdI5-62 OOV
00" 2% 2E599 £T/0T/6
00°' 0686 ZES9S ET/0EZ/6
SASTUJUILING AVEd NOS 93LoL
LY 26 LY 28 £6599 £1/02/6 DILA
WILSAS ¥AIWYM 0D IS S9L8L
S2'6F9 ST 6F9 L5599 £1/02/6 TIVL IYER
(DA MELNED ¥OINIS OO 1S $9L9L
08°818°2¢9 00 %9 TE€599 £T/02/6 €102 'TT lLadg-6Z onv
08 %57 '2€9 £2999 £T/02/8 TRAIEDEY XYI ALIFJ0Ed
LIIVLSIA TO0HDS ©D 1§ £9LaL
09 %% 09" ¥¥ £T999 £1/02/6 ‘dINDE DO 40 NUALIY HOd
MHATD 0D 1S Z29L9L
oL'é68L°T 0L 6BL'Z £655% £ET/02/6 LI04308 JOLVHASO
ONI SEDIANES ALITIIN €IS T9LSL
PPLES T b LSS T 60999 £1/02/6 TN~SZZ- €N TAW A¥G 02dL
dAY YOLOW DIMIDRENA SNUvYAS 09L9L
9¢° 88z 9€ '88Z 10999 £T/02/6 TOULNOZ ETLLOYHL vid ZdIL
JNI SIDNAO¥d ¥EMCd HIIWS 65L9L
00°66€ 00°9€2 Z6¥99 £T/08/6 SNOIS 6XZ/UANNYE/TANYD
00" €€ 28t99 £1/02/8 FISSEA ANY IGNAT
00'0%T 26799 £1/02/6 JENNYE HSNOHLRO
YEQ DT SHINISNANI MDITS 98L9L
00 LB 00'1T8 68598  €£1/02/6
009 625898 £T/08/6 ET0T 'TIT I4AS-62 ONY
Y84 TYNOILYN ZLVLS ¥IATIS LSLGL
00'968'T 00 L6¥ 96599 £1/02/6 FAYTIE MOTIMONS
TYLOL LNNOHY #SNVHT, ALY # 0/d NOILAI¥DSEG ZDICANI "OANTA HIAHGN
ADFHD NOEHD
: E1/08/6 NALSIDAY ADTHD E1/6T/60 s3eq uny

0T  ebeq ALNGOD AHHOQLS STETHEE ‘ON 3Ixoday




11

¥6'T9E 956

TE 69L'T

26° 98

0€£°991°¢

007597

15'LEZZ'E

00°00%'2
TS5 059°T
00°989°'1

00°09%°T

0o 0BZ'E

TELOL
ADIHD

abed

TYLOL SAIIHD

¥0'998%
8Z°€06

26°0T
00 0¥
0051
00 og

08785916
go-oz
00°S%1T
8E'0ET°T
88 50T
S¥'LY

09 LEL
09°'50T
00°00T'2
25’ 059°T
00°3%8'1
00°9¢
00°9LE'T
007 9%
00z

Q0'09s
00" 2¢
00'8eS'C

LNDOWT

Zv599
%999

T059%
10599
1059¢
10599

80999

L0239
L0999

£0953
£02938s
€£02999
£0999
£0999

90999
11599
PBT39
54999
S€599
SE£599
SE£S599
PES9S
PES2O
¥E589

#SHTIL

€T/08/6
£1/0e/6

£1/02/8
£1/0e/6
£ET/0€E/6
£T/02/6

£1/02/6

£T/02/6
£T/02/6

ET/0E/6
gET/02/6
£€T/02/6
£1/02/6
£ET/02/8

£1/02/8
£1/02/6
£t/0z/8
£1/02/86
£T/02/6
£T/0eg/8
£T/08/6
ET/0Z/6
£€T/02/6
£1/02/6

dL¥a

£1/02/6

QYUY - ANYS JEHSWYM
UdYA - ONYS CQHEHSYM

IT74d0S. dTYL dINDT LEYWIYM
0T HIY THYD/MUYd A¥ DA
ONTLEIW LLIY

ALEM ATEL/SNYAL I9¥D JT0D
SUHLIW dim

WEQATTOD
ALINTITVATY

IdYL DNITOZ INTE ¥MES
00 ANHUACHN JALYM FLSYM
ANOOEWOD LMIOQD

NOLYH

AWYT FAITYH-TIIVL

OILGAS T¥D 000¢ (EANAS
aNEE MOENIVYH €T10Z LSNONY
SIOIAYAS LSIAGE0T

€102 ‘11 1dE8-62 9N

ET0Z 'I1 LdH5-62 o0V

NOILdI¥JISEA EJIOANI

UYILSIDEY HOTHD
ALNGOD ATYOLS

ONI FLEYINCD ag

SSITHOD 'doom

00 ATddNS Ya¥AEN NIELSEM

YT TYINANNOYIANT NEELSEM

QNI 0DaEM
VEd AS MNVL DILdIS SUILYM
A¥ES HOINIS ALNAOD HOHSYM

SHTLYIDOSSY B UINTWM

ONI SHN0L ALID VINISYIA

AOANIA

£ET/6T/60
STETEA

28L9L

T8LGL

08L9L

6LLIL

BLLIL
LLLOL
SLL9l

SLLSL

¥LLOL

JIERON

ADAHD
t a3eq uny
soN jaodey



HANOISFIHWOD
NYWIIVHD
HIENSTIAL
YHTTOULAWOD
ET/08/6 LV MOIHD Y6 T9E7956 TYLOL §ADHIHD

NOILLYZTYCHINY (NY MITATY JI0 INIWIDHTITMONNDY




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 10/1/13 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License First Readings

2. Recommended motion: None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda)
I'move to approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request)

3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff susnmary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally

approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioners’ meeting for approval,

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required: None
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
_X__ Departme Department Name: Community Development
ﬂw nty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
M Approved

[ Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [

Continued

[ —

Agenda Item No.




Storep County Community Bebelopment
Buginess g Licenging

L
ANV

P O Box 526 » Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0966 » Fax (775) 847-0935 * buslic@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa DuFresne, Clerk’s Office September 20, 2013
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Fr: Stacey Bucchianeri

Please add the following item(s) to the October 1, 2013, COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READINGS:

CINTAS CORPORATION #3 — General / 250 Vista Blvd ~ Sparks (Uniform Services)

B&G BEAUTY SUPPLY - Home Business / 2440 Enterprise Road (Consultant) VCH
THOMPSON GARAGE DOORS - Contractor / 171 § 18% ~ Sparks (Overhead Door Install)

TANN CORPORATION - Contractor / 2300 Northridge ~ Kaukauna, WI (Pollution Equipment)

LES SCHWAB TIRE CENTERS OF NV - Contractor / 4175 South Virginia ~ Reno (Tire Dist.)

BROFp

Inspection Required

ec: Shannon Gardner, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff’s Office
Austin Osbormne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept.
Dean Haymeore, Economic Dev, Assessor’s Office




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: October 1, 2013 Estimate of time required: 10-15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

L. Title: DISCUSSION (No Action): Presentation from Debra Erdody of Connect Nevada
regarding the completed Storey County Technology Action Plan.

2. Recommended motion: None required as this is only an item for discussion.
3. Prepared by: Pat Whitten
Department: Commissioners Office Telephone: 847-0968

4. Staff summary:  Connect Nevada is a non-profit organization that was commissioned by the
state to work with all Nevada broadband providers to create detailed maps of broadband
coverage in order to accurately pinpoint remaining gaps in broadband availability as well as
to coordinate efforts with other Federal grant award recipients in the state. Connect
Nevada is now supporting the development of a statewide plan for the deployment and
adoption of broadband. The goal is to spread high-speed Internet across the state and make
sure all Nevada residents have access to its life-changing benefits. Storey County has been
working with Connect Nevada over the course of the last two years to develop a Storey
County Technology Action Plan which is completed and being presented to you.

S. Supporting materials:  Connected Community Engagement Flyer

Agenda Action Report
6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:

Q@CCEEEW Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—r—
e b

Agenda Item No.




Connected Community Engagement

Connect Nevada is working to help communities identify their technology needs
and opportunities. Bolstered by benchmarking data that has been gathered
through Connect Nevada's mapping and market ressarch, the Connected
Community Engagement program is drilling down to the regional and local level
to facilitate community technology planning. Through this program, regions
and communities across Nevada are aiming to accelerate the availability,
adoption, and use of technology toward creating a better business environment,
more effective community and economic development, improved healthcare,
enhanced education, and more efficient government.

Access: is the infrastruciure there?
Adoption: Do rasidents use available techneology?
Use: Are residents using technology 1o improve the guality of life?

Connect Nevada's Community Engagement program guides communities
through an assessment of their overall broadband and technology innovation,
using criteria that parent organization Connected Nation has set as a part of a
“community certification” model. The program helps train regional team leaders
and supports the formation of community planning teams made up of various
sector representatives.

Connect Nevada is helping communities leverage
technology as a key economic z:iewé@;mmﬁm drivar,

Connect Nevada is recruiting and training local champions who will lead

the community teams. Connect Nevada, in collaboration with the Nevada
Broadband Task Force, is inviting national and regional partners to support these
community efforts and to help bring solutions to the challenges identified in the
assessment phase.

¢ Communities benefit through a process of assessment, benchmarking,
planning, and certification

* Citizens benefit through expanded access to relevant technology

* Private sector benefits by cultivation of a more investment-friendly
environment and increasingly tech-savvy customer base desiring a
greater level of online engagement

For more information about Connect Nevada and the Connected Community
Engagement program please contact Lindsey Niedzielski, State Program
Manager, at (775) 343-9600 or Iniedzielski@connectnv.org.

Névada

Follow us!

facgbooku

CONNECTED

O NATIEDN.

I Nevada

www.connecinv.org




»/\(‘ CONNECTEDS’

Lomma}mtv Engagement Br rogram '_ R '

STOREY COUNTY

TECHNOLOGY ACTION PLAN

PREPARED BY CONNECT NEVADA
AND THE
STOREY COUNTY BROADBAND TECHNOLOGY TEAM

Neévada )V(< CONNECTED'

community Engagement: Program

OcToBER 2013




))A\((CONNECTED _

Community Engagement Program

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION tttveisiiinesisinrnrrreiscessessnseesseas R N

BACKGROUND wovive sttt sttt et et ce ety sa e s s s et s e asa s ataes e bsas b e aa s aa b e 0s e b B b bd e an b st e eA ke e st bt sbse s b dedemmne
P ETHODOLOGY 11 suveiesrersntesassseesvenesnbessbtnesbaseesesnannsensrssssssassessressonsesssessssaserasessssstsnsnsssmesraseessnssensesnsen

CONNECTED ASSESSMENT ..ocrerreveessiennans eernrRrEErrrTeee YRS Eeeehhber st abntsrannnsnarnrrnn

CONNECTED ASSESSIMIENT CRITERIA 1eviverereersrisrensienssesssnsssessssssesssonseisssssssasesstissesssssstsssssenresonremns
COMMUNITY TECHNOLOGY SCORECARD 11 tvtvrestretsrtsnivesssstrnnsssnssessesnsesssrnsssseessssssssnsesossessnnsssssaeesas
COMMUNITY TECHNOLOGY SCORECARD BRIEF 11vuvviiasisesiinisinirenisssssessisasessssssesssensssssssessssosessisesseens
ITEMIZED KEY FINDINGS «.\veveeeverrursrerseraressiessressasssarismasasssssssasssnsstnestessesass ssbaessassnessasesssiassossonsnne
COMMUNITY PRIORITY PROJECTS - vvvvavrasvressrenssrsrssiassrassesserassssssssesssesnsssasssesiatessessssesesssesstoesennone

PROPOSED PROJECTS 1ty vavirverssrevinssnsrsrsasarirsssssassssssessansseessssarsnsssossesssensssstonssssntsosassenerensasseonsnn
DETAILED FINDINGS..ctvvveerrsrsinmireesstimivsinemriscssroserssssssssssesssssssrnssos ossssssesnnsss

STOREY COUNTY ASSESSMENT FINDINGS 1.vvevivrvssinsrssssnesinssisnierseransesssessrssssnsnssrssssssesssrnsesssessssesesss
CONNECTED ASSESSMENT ANALYSIS ..evivecriens SRR TRPUPROIIN

ACTION PLAN ..o ceirerreecererrrsnmernese s snsnesssssnnes

COMMUNITY PRIGRITY PROJECTS v-.-vvvcvuvsuessonsassssasesassasssssssnsssessensssnsssnssiessessenssesssssansinsasestarsssssasssasssssssnsssssssssssasssanss
ALL PROPOSED PROJIECTS ... e veceeruemsercrerserasersesssonsesessnsasassonsasssarasssessrassessesessnsssssassonsssessassenssesssustassensesssssnssres fesaessneas

APPENDIX 1: STATEWIDE PERSPECTIVE OF BROADBAND ..cooueceeiivereerrrercnnrerssesesensessssnressenares :

APPENDIX 2: PARTNER AND SPONSORS wcirevecrevcrsrrvirrisssssnserrsssssssessnssrsssssssssssasesssasesssssnss S 55
APPENDIX 3: WHAT IS CONNECTED?...crrveersnesrnerssssseranssreosessssersssssessssssansssssssssssansesiansassessnsssns 57
APPENDIX 4: GLOSSARY OF TERMS tiiiiiiccrrereenriresneersssssnneeseersssssansesssassans rrersanines vrersiserererrrnreess 59

STOREY COUNTY TECHNOLOGY ACTION PLAN




D& CONNECTED
S

: :Communi_t;.{ Engagement Program

INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this report is to summarize the community’s assessment of local broadband
access, adoption, and use, and to provide an action plan for broadband acceleration

Background

Deploying broadband infrastructure, services, and application, as well as supp:
universal adoption and meaningful use of broadband, are challenging - but r
blocks of a twenty-first century community. The success of a community has be
dependent on how broadly and deeply the community adopts technology résd_urce,s ~this
includes access to reliable high-speed networks, digital literacy of residents, and:the use of
online resources locally for business, government, and leisure. Due in large partto:private.
investment and market-driven innovation, broadband in America has improve
the last decade. Mare Americans are online at faster speeds than ever before.

Despite the progress, there are still critical problems that slow the progress of the acce%s{,
adoption, and use of broadband. Connected Nation estimates that approximately 70 milli
30% of, Americans do not subscribe to home broadband service, and adoption varies :
significantly across socioeconomic lines.! Connected Nation’s studies also show that 17 million
families with children do not have broadband at home —and 7.6 million of these children live in
low-income households. Connected Nation also estimates that at least 1.8 million businesses -
24% - in the United States do not utilize broadband technology today.?

In early 2009, Congress directed the Federal Communications Commission {FCC) to develop a
National Broadband Plan (NBP) to ensure every American has “access to broadband
capability.”® Congress also required that the plan include a detailed strategy for achieving
affordability and maximizing use of broadband to advance “consumer weifare, civic
participation, public safety and homeland security, community development, health care
delivery, energy independence, and efficiency, education, employee training, private sector
investrment, entrepreneurial activity, job creation and economic growth, and other national

purposes.”

! consumer Broadband Adoption Trends, Connected Nation, Inc., March 2013,
http://www.connectednation.org/survey-results/residential
? Connected Nation, Broadband and Business: Leveraging Technology to Stimulate Economic Growth,
http://www.connectednation.org/survey-results/business
8 Connecting America: The National Broadband Plan, Federal Communications Commission, April 2010,
L‘Itt /fwww.broadband.gov/download-plan

Ibid.

 STOREY COUNTY TECHNOLOGY ACTION PLAN ~ e OCTOBER 2013 . Page3




)A« (:ONNEGTED

Commun:ty Engagemept Program

To fulfill Congress’s mandate, the National Broadband Plan, released in 2010, makes
recommendations to the FCC, the Executive Branch, Congress, and state and local governments
that influence the broadband ecosystem — networks, devices, content, and applications —
four ways: '

1. Design policies to ensure robust competition and, as a result, maximize cansum
welfare, innovation, and investment. i

2. Ensure efficient allocation and management of assets and government contri
influences, such as spectrum, poles, and rights-of-way, to encourage netw
and competitive entry.

3. Reform current universal service mechanisms to support deploymen
voice in high-cost areas; and ensure that low-income Americans can affo
and in addition, support efforts to boost adoption and utilization.

4. Reform laws, policies, standards, and incentives to maximize the benefit
in sectors that government influences significantly, such as public ed
and government operations.®

In addition to these recommendations, the plan recommended that the country s
following six goals for 2020 to serve as a compass over the decade:

GOAL No. 1: At least 100 million U.S. homes should have affordable access to actual downtoad
speeds of at least 100 megabits per second and actual upload speeds of at least 50 megabits
per second.

GOAL No. 2: The United States should lead the world in mobile innovation, with the fastest and
most extensive wireless networks of any nation.

GOAL No. 3: Every American should have affordable access to robust broadband service and
the means and skills to subscribe if they so choose.

GOAL No. 4: Every American community should have affordable access to at feast 1 gigabit per
second broadband service to anchor institutions such as schools, hospitals, and government
buildings.

GOAL No. 5: To ensure the safety of the American people, every first responder should have
access to a nationwide, wireless, interoperable broadband public safety network.

GOAL No. 6: To ensure that America leads in the clean energy economy, every American should
be able to use broadband to track and manage their real-time energy consumption.®

® Ibid.
® 1bid.

STOREY COUNTY. TECH




% CONNEGTED“

Meeting these six goals will help achieve the Congressional mandate of using broadband to
achieve national purposes, while improving the economics of deployment and adoption. While
the National Broadband Plan recommends significant action by the FCC, the Executive Branch,
and Congress, it requires a strong partnership among all broadband stakeholders. Federal
action is necessary, but state, local, and Tribal governments, corporations, and community
based organizations must all do their part to build a high-performance America.

To assist communities in localizing the goals and recommendations made by the N
Broadband Plan, Connected Nation developed the Connected Community Engage
Program.’ The program is designed to help communities identify local technology
complete an assessment of local broadband access, adoption, and use, and
plan for accelerating broadband’s integration into the community’s prioritie

Methodology
By actively participating in the Connected Community Engagement Program
Broadband Technology Team is boosting the community’s capabilities in educa t
and public safety, and stimulating economic growth and spurring job creation. The
County Broadband Technology Team has collaborated with multiple community orgamzatl‘
and residents to: :

1. Empower a community team leader {local champion) and create a community team
composed of a diverse group of local residents from various sectors of the economy
including education, government, healthcare, the private sector, and libraries.

2. Identify the community’s technology assets, including local infrastructure, providers,
facilities, websites, and innovative uses employed by institutions.

3. Complete the Connected Assessment, a measurement of the community’s access,
adoption, and use of broadband based on the recommendations of the National
Broadband Plan.

4. Match gaps in the local broadband ecosystem to solutions and best practices being
utilized by communities across the nation.

5. Pursue Connected certification, a nationally recognized platform for spotlighting
communities that excel in the access, adoption, and use of broadband.

7 Connected Nation, parent company for Connect Nevada, is a national non-profit 501{c)(3) organization that
expands access to and use of broadband Internet and the refated technologies that are enabled when individuals
and communities have the opportunity and desire to connect. Connected Nation works In multiple states to
engage community stakeholders, state leaders, and technology providers to develop and implement technology
expansion programs with core competencies centered around the mission to improve digital inclusion for people
and places previously underserved or overlooked.

STOREY GOUNTY TECHNOLOGY ACTION PLAN . -~ OCTOBER 2013




CONNECTED ASSESSMENT

The Connected Assessment framework is comprised of three elements: access, adoption, ai
use. Each sub-assessment has a maximum of 40 points. To achieve Connected certificat
community must have 32 points in each sub-assessment and 100 points out of 120.
overall.

The access assessment reviews whether an adequate broadband foun

gaps that could affect a local community broadband ecosystem includ
middle mile issues, cost issues, and competition issues. As notedin t
Broadband Plan, broadband access “is a foundation for economic grov
global competitiveness and a better way of life.”® '

* Broadband adoption is important for consumers, institutions, and communitie allke to
take the next step in fully utilizing broadband appropriately. The adoption sub-
assessment seeks to ensure the ability of all individuals to access and achieve .
meaningful use of broadband service by measuring the community’s capability and
commitment to eliminating the major barriers that keep non-adopters from getting
broadhand.

* Broadband use is the most important component of the framework because it is where
the value of broadband can finally be realized. However, without access to broadband
and adoption of broadband, meaningful use of broadband wouldn’t be possible. As
defined by the NBP, meaningful use of broadband includes those areas of economic
opportunity, education, government, and healthcare where values to individuals,
organizations, and communities can be realized.

Connected Assessment Criteria

The criteria for the Connected Assessment stems from the Federal Communication
Commission’s National Broadband Plan, as well as the broadband speed tiers used under the
National Telecommunications and Information Administration’s State Broadband Initiative
Grant Program. The Connected Assessment’s thirteen questions are as follows:

# Connecting America: The National Broadband Plan, Federal Communications Commission, April 2010,
http://www.broadband.gov/download-plan/

OREY Co MTYTECHN oGY CTIONPLAN " OCTOBER 2013




D (< CONNECTED" :

i~ ommunizy mgagement program..

ACCESS

« Broadband Availability: What percentage of homes in the community has access to
fixed broadband speeds of 3 Mbps or higher?®

¢ Broadband Speeds: What is the highest speed level avaifable to at least 75% of the

households in your community? 4

« Broadband Competition: What percentage of homes in the community has access to

more than one broadband provider?

¢ Middle Mile Access: What is the availability of middle mile access to the;'rommunlty?

* Mobile Broadband Availability: What is the mobile broadband availabili

community?

ADOPTION : :
+ Digital Literacy: What is the number of digital literacy program grad uate over the past
year in the community?
¢ Public Computer Centers: What is the number of public computer hou
fow-income resident per week?
¢ Broadband Awareness: What percentage of the community is reached by broadband
awareness campaigns?
¢ Vulnerable Population Focus: How many vulnerable population groups are being
targeted within the community?

UsE

» Economic Opportunity: What economic opportunity applications are currently in place
utilizing broadband technology?

+ Education: What broadband-enabled applications are currently being utilized by the
education sector?

« Government: What broadband-enabled applications are currently being utilized by the
government sector?

+ Healthcare: What broadband-enabled applications are currently being utilized by the
Healthcare sector?

® The Broadband Availability criterion is based on the speed tiers required by the National Telecommunications
and Information Administration’s State Broadband Initiative Grant Program. The closest combination of speeds for
which NTIA collects data that would allow a consumer, according to the Federal Communications Commission’s
National Broadband Plan, to “access a basic set of applications that include sending and receiving e-mail,
downloading web pages, photos and video, and using simple video conferencing” is 3 Mbps downstream and 768
kbps upstream. Downstream speed measures the rate at which a user can download data from the Internet,
including viewing Web pages, receiving e-mails, or downloading music. Upstream speed measures the rate at
which a user can upload data to the Internet, incfuding sending e-mail messages and files. For more information,

go to: http://www.ntia.doc.gov/files/ntia/publicationsfushb avail_report 05102013 .pdf.

STOREY COUNTY TECHNOLOGY ACTION PLAN - . .7 OCTOBER 2013




E ) (< CONNECTED

Co_rnmu_nit_y Engagement Program .

Community Technology Scorecard
The Community Technology Scorecard provides a summary of the community’s Connected

Assessment. The Connected Assessment’s criteria are reflective of the recommendations made
by the Federal Communications Commission’s National Broadband Plan. These scores reflect.
the community's progress to meeting these national benchmarks to universal fixed broadb
service, ubiquitous mobile service, and growing access to higher speed next-generation
services. Lower scores do not necessarily signify a complete lack of access to broadb
but instead reflect that the broadband infrastructure in the community has not met
national goals and benchmarks. :

Community Technology Scorecard Brief |
The Community Technology Scorecard provides a summary of the communi
Assessment,

+ The community scored 17 out of a possible 40 points in broadband access:
broadband availability, speeds, and competition within the county.

e The community scored 32 out of a possible 40 points in broadband adoptlon

e The community scored 39 out of a possible 40 points in broadband use.

» Storey County achieved a score of 88 points out of 120 for overall broadband and
technology readiness, which indicates that the community has had some successes in
technology adoption and use; however, they did not achieve the score of 100 required for
Connected certification.

e Storey County has not exceeded the 32 points in each focus area that are required for
certification at this time.

While the results indicate that the community has made tremendous strides and investments in
technology, this technology action plan will provide some insight and solutions that will help
the community continue to achieve success.

STOREY COUNTY TECHNOLOGY ACTION F ..~ 'OCTOBER 2013




Broadband <70% of households have access to
Availability

Broadband

. access to more than 1 Broadband S} : 5
, Competition ‘ ,

provider
Availabil

=
Program grads are greater than 10 .
per 1,000 residents over the past 10 10

year

ADETY 4

Cém paigns reach 30% of the
community

Education

Governmen

Healthcare

OCTOBER 2013




_:'-_CONNECTED”

_ommunlty Engagementpragr’\m _.

Iltemized Key Findings
The Storey County Broadband Technology Team identified the following key findings {in
addition to findings illustrated in the community scorecard) through its technology assessment: -

ACCESS

e 5 last mile broadband providers currently provide service in Storey County:

©  69.61% of households have access to 3 Mbps.

© More than 92.78% of Storey County homes have access to 1.5 Mbps servic

©  69.49% of Storey County households have access to more than 1 provide
- o Middle mile fiber infrastructure is available from one provider in Storey Co
e 100% of Storey County households have access to mobile broadband.

ADOPTION :
o 7 Digital Literacy Programs exist in the community resulting in at least GI:gl
past year.

7 Public Computer Centers (PCC) with a total of 15 computers are open to th pu
7 Broadband Awareness Campaigns are reaching 80% of Storey County.
5 organizations are working with vulnerable populations,

USE .

e Atleast 7 uses of broadband were identified in the area of economic opportunity including
2 advanced uses and 5 basic uses.

e At least 9 advanced uses of broadband were identified in the area of education,

e At least 6 uses of broadband were identified in the area of government including 5
advanced uses and 1 basic use.

» Atleast 11 uses of broadband were identified in the area of healthcare including 4 advanced
uses and 7 basic uses.

In addition to the items identified above, the Storey County Broadband Technology Team
identified the following technology resources in the community:

Technology Providers

o 14 broadband providers were identified in Storey County
o 1 hardware provider

s 1 network developer

Technology Facilities

e . 6 public computing centers
e 4 wireless hotspots

* 2 video conference facilities

TOREY COUNTY TECHNO CT . OCTOBER2013




% CONNECTED
e

Community Engagement Program -

Community Websites

e 23 Business-related websites (excluding private businesses)
e 2 Education-related websites

e 3 Government-related websites

e 7 Tourism-related websites

Community Priority Projects
The Connected Assessment has culminated in the outlining of projects designed to
the community to accelerate broadband access, adoption, and use. Below are ,n‘i‘“
projects. Detailed descriptions of each project can be found in the Action Plan
this report.

Analyze Local Regulations
Broadband Speed Testing
Collect and Display Business and Zoning Information

Develop or Identify a Broadband Training and Awareness Program for Srﬁall{ ne
Medium Businesses

Implement a Community-Based Technology Awareness Program
Secure Low-Cost Computers via Partnerships

Support Current Broadband Projects

Support Digital Learning Initiatives

Support Public Safety Network Initiatives

Proposed Projects
Below is a complete list of proposed projects. Detailed descriptions of each project can be
found in the Action Plan section later in this report.

ACCESS

Broadband Availability

1. Deploy Educational WiMAX

2. Apply to USDA for Funding to Support Broadband Build-out in Community
3. Perform a Broadband Build-out Analysis in Unserved Areas

"'-:_"_S_;l"é)"REYIC_O.lJNTYTE NOLOX oN PLA ' - OCTOBER 2013




Community Engagemen

)A(< conmct D"

4, Support Current Broadband Projects

Broadband Speeds
5. Identify, Map, and Validate Broadband Demand
6. Broadband Speed Testing

Broadband Competition
7. Analyze Local Regulations

Middle Mile Access
8. Develop Public-Private Partnerships to Deploy Broadband Service
9. Develop & Issue an RFP for Build-out

Mobile Broadband Availability
10. Complete a Vertical Assets inventory

ADOPTION
Digital Literacy

11. Secure Low-Cost Computers via Partnerships

Public Computer Centers — No proposed projects

Broadband Awareness

12. Develop or Identify a Broadband Training and Awareness Program for Small and Medium
Businesses

13. Implement a Community-Based Technology Awareness Program

Vulnerable Population Focus
14. Develop a Technology Mentorship Program

USE

Economic Opportunity

15, Establish a "Digital Factory"

16. Collect and Display Business and Zoning Information

Education
17. Support Digital Learning Initiatives

Government
18. Support Public Safety Network Initiatives

Healthcare

' OCTOBER 2013




| )V(< CONNECTED”.

Commun Engagerﬁent Drogram

19. Promote Teiemedicine in Remote Areas

STOREY COUNTY TECHNOLOG _ : i OCTOBER2013 .




ty Engagement Program .

: % goNNEcTE

DETAILED FINDINGS

Storey County Assessment Findings

Residents in Storey County (or sections of the community) are served by 14 providers
Currently, broadband is defined as Internet service with advertised speeds of at leat
downstream and 200 Kbps upstream.10 According to Connect Nevada’s latest bro;
mapping update, the following providers have a service footprint in the Store
Community:

oadband Providers Technologyﬁfype . : .W.ébISi_te Reference

AT&T DSL, Mobile www.att.com

Hughes Netwark Systems Satellite www.hughesnet.com®
Wild Blue Communications (ViaSat} Satellite www.wildblue.com .
Highlands Wireless Fixed Wireless www.highlandswireless.com
High Speed Network Fixed Wireless www.hsne50.com

ViaSat, Inc Satellite www.wildblue.com
Charter Communications Cable www.charter.com

Great Basin Internet Services Fixed Wireless www.greatbasin.net

High Desert Internet Service Fixed Wireless www, hdiss.net

Hot Spot Broadband Fixed Wireless http://hsbnv.net
StarBand Communications Satellite http://starband.com
Sprint Mokbkile WWW.Sprint.com
T-Mobile Mobile www2. t-mobile.com
Verizon Wireless Mobile www.verizonwireless.com

Below is a list of community websites (sorted by category} designed to share and promote local
resources.

- Wehsite
. Category

_(_)_rg_a__hization_ Name _Webéite

B Street House Bed & Breakfast www.bstreethouse.com/ Business
Botcha-Caloops www.botchacaloops.com/ Business

“® Organizations define broadband in different ways. For information to be included on the National
Telecommunications and Information Administration’s National Broadband Map, the technology must provide a
two-way data transmission (to and from the Internet) with advertised speeds of at least 768 kilobits per second
{Kbps) downstream and at least 200 Kbps upstream to end users. The Connected Community Engagement Program
defines basic broadband as 768 Kbps downstream and 200 Kbps upstream.

- STOREY COUNTY TECHNOLOGY ACTION PLAN "~ """ OCTOBER 2013 .




9% CONNECTED'

-Community En ment Program

Bucket of Blood Saloon www.bucketofbloodsaloonve.com/ Business
C L Marshall Images, LLC www.clmarshall.com/ Business
Café Del Rio www.cafedelriove.com/index.html Business
Comstock Civil War Reenactment Www.cowr.us/ Business
David John and the Comstock
Cowboys www.comstockcowboys.com/ Business
Fred's Closet www.fredscloset.net/ Business
Happy Hoofers www.happyhoofers.com/ Business
Lockwood Area Blog lockwooding.blogspot.com/ Business
Mark Twain Bookstore www.marktwainbooks.com/ Business
Nevada Energy WWW.NVENErgy.com Business
NV Shows www.nvshows.com/ Business
Railroad Art by Scotty www.railroadart.com/ Business
Silverland Inn & Suites www.silverlandusa.com/ Business
State Historic Preservation Office nvshpo.org/ Business
Tahoe House Hotel tahoehousehotel.com/ Business
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center www.tahoereno.com Business
Territorial Enterprise www. territorial-enterprise.com/ Business
The Good Old Songs www.goodoldsongs.com/ Business
The Old Red Garter www.theoldredgarter.com/ Business
Virginia City News virginiacitynews.com Business
Virginia Range Wildlife Protection
Association virginiarange,com/ Business
Community Chest Inc. www.communitychestnevada.net Education
Virginia City Schools www.storey.k12.nv.us Education
EDAWN www.edawn.org/ Government
Northern Nevada Development
Authority www.nnda.org Government
Storey County Government www.storeycounty.org Government
www.visitcarsoncity.com/attractions/virgi
Carson City Convention Center nia_city.php Tourism
Pipers Opera House piperslive.com./ Tourism
V&T Railway www,steamtrain.org/ Tourism
Virginia & Truckee R.R. www.virginiatruckee.com/ Tourism
Virginia & Truckee Railroad www.virginiatruckee.com/ Tourism
Virginia City Tourism www,visitvirginiagitynv.com/ Tourism
Wild Horse Adventure of Nevada wildhorseadventure.net/ Tourism

Below is a iist of local technology companies that are providing technical services or
distributing/selling technical resources.

INTY TECHNOLOGY ACTION PLAN

: “OCTOBER 2013




>) ((‘couNEcTED

Cofnmunlty Eﬂgagm‘nent P

' Company Name L Website _.ProvnderType

nghlands Wireless Hardware Provider www.highlandswireless.com
Highlands Wireless Network Integrator www.highlandswireless.com

Below is a list of organizations that are making technological resources available to the
community. These include organizations that provide videoconferencing, public computing
and wireless hotspots.

| Organlzatlon Name “Website SR - Resource Type

Virginia City High School www.storey.k12.nv.us Video Conference Facility
Virginia City Fire House Training
Center www.storeycounty.org/fire/ Video Conference Facility
Virginia City RV Park vervparknv.com/ Wireless Hotspot
Virginia City Coffee House www.facebook.com/VeCoffeeHouse Wireless Hotspot
Comstock Corner comstockcorner.com/ Wireless Hotspot
Community Chest www.communitychestnevada.net/ Wireless Hotspot
www.storeycounty.org/News Detail
Virginia City Senior Center .aspriD=533 Public Computer Facility
Lockwood Senior Center no website Public Computer Facility
Virginia City Tourism www.visitvirginiacitynv.com/ Public Computer Facility
Storey County Sheriff storeycounty.org/index.asp Public Computer Facility
Storey County Courthouse storeycounty.org/index.asp Public Computei’ Facility
Storey County Community
/Youth Resource Center storeycounty.org/index.asp Public Computer Facility

HNOLOGY AGTION PLAN -




)

%

R

¢ CON’NEC’TED

CommuruLy tﬁgag_ement Program .o

Connected Assessment Analysis

ACCESS SCORE EXPLANATION

Broadband Availability {0 out of 10 Points Possible) — is measured by analyzmg t
of households in the community with access to fixed broadband speeds of 3
Data is collected by Connected Nation's broadband mapping program.** If br
missing, the community team was able to improve the quality of data to enst
are included.

» According to the April 2013 data collected by Connect Nevada, 69.61%
County residents had access to broadband speeds of 3 Mbps or greaté

Broadband Speeds (0 out of 5 Points Possible) — is measured by analyzing the speed:tit
available within a community. Data is collected by Connected Nation’s broadband mapping:
program. The Connected Assessment analyzes broadband coverage by the highest speed-tie
with at least 75% of households covered. If broadband data is missing, the community team
was able to improve the quality of data to ensure all providers are included.

s According to the April 2013 data coflected by Connect Nevada, 92.78% of Storey
County residents had access to broadband speeds of 1.5 Mbps.

Broadband Competition (1 out of 5 Points Possible) —is measured by analyzing the number of
broadband providers available in the community and the percentage of that community’s
residents with more than one broadband provider available. Connected Nation performed this
analysis by reviewing the data collected through its broadband mapping program. In
communities that may have broadband data missing, community teams were able to improve
the guality of data to ensure all providers are included.

e According to the April 2013 data collected by Connect Nevada, 69.49% of Storey
County residents had access to more than one broadband provider.

* Connected Nation is working across states and with the federal government to implement the State Broadband
Initiative (SBI) program created by the Broadband Data Improvement Act of 2008 and managed by the National
Telecommunications and Information Administration {NTIA) within the Department of Commerce. One of the main
components of the SBI program s the creation of a detailed, nationwide map of broadband coverage in order to
accurately pinpoint remaining gaps in broadband availability across the nation. Connected Nation is the largest
mapping agent across the nation supporting the SBI program, and has worked in thirteen jurisdictions to collect,
process, integrate, and validate provider data, and map the broadband inventory across these jurisdictions.
Connected Nation has received, processed, and submitted records to the NTIA from over 1,400 service providers.

STOREY COUNTY TECHNOLOGY ACTION PL




mmunity Engagemcnt Program

Middle Mile Access (6 out of 10 Points Possible) — is measured based on a community’s
availability to fiber. Three aspects of availability exist: proximity to middle mile points of
presence (POPs), number of POPs available, and available bandwidth. The community, in
collaboration with Connected Nation, collected and analyzed middle mile access data.

+ Storey County is served by one middle mile fiber provider.

Mobile Broadband Availability (10 out of 10 Points Possible) — is measured by analyzmg
provider availability of mobile broadband service gathered by Connected Natio
mapping program. in communities that may have mobile broadband data m
teams were able to improve the quality of data to ensure all providers are in

e According to the April 2013 data collected by Connect Nevada, 100%
residents had access to mobile broadband service.

‘of Storey.County

ADOPTION SCORE EXPLANATION

Digital Literacy (10 out of 10 Points Possible} — is measured by first identifying all digital literacy
programs in the community. Once the programs are determined, a calcuiation of program
graduates will be made on a per capita basis. A digital literacy program includes any digital
literacy course offered for free or at very low cost through a library, seniors center, community
college, K-12 school, or other group serving the local community. A graduate is a person who
has completed the curriculum offered by any organization within the community. The duration
of individual courses may vary. A listing of identified digital literacy offerings is below.

'Organ_iz'ation Name S0 Program Dé:S(ﬁription B Number of
- . - e Grads

Storey County Schoaol One-to-One N/A
Virginia City Senior Center Assistance with general Internet/computer/taxes not tracked
Lockwood Senior Center Assistance with general internet/computer/taxes not tracked
Community Chest One-to-Onefjob resources/GED not tracked
\Si’setsrtiz;lul\l;eavada Development Business development/entrepreneur training 11
Virginia City Tourism Commission | Social media training not tracked
Community Chest Comstock Youth Works 50




Y& CONNECTED

~Lommunity Engagement Program .

Public Computer Centers (6 out of 10 Points Possibie) — is measured based on the number of
hours computers are available each week per 1,000 low-income residents. Available computer
hours are caiculated by taking the overall number of computers multiplied by the number of
hours open to a community during the course of the week, A listing of public computer centers
availabfe in Storey County is below. .

Available
Computer Hours
~per Week

o Numbéf_'of Open Hours Number'_éf'.

Or anizat'on'i\!é :
g ' S me . per Week : Compu_ters

Community Chest

4
Virginia City Senior Center 20 2
Lockwood Senior Center 20 2
th’glnIF‘:l C.It\/ Tourism 16 1
Commission
Storey County Sheriff 40 - 2
Storey County 40 9
Courthouse/Recorder Office
Storey County
Community/Youth Resource 10 (avg.) 2
Center

Broadband Awareness (8 out of 10 Points Possible) — is measured based on the percentage of
the population reached. All community broadband awareness programs are first identified, and
then each program’s community reach is compiled and combined with other campaigns. A
listing of broadband awareness programs in Storey County is below,

' _tampaign Deer:.i‘_i_ptiOI_'l _

. e I t N . .
Storey County Break'lng COL'lnty nf_\ws & alerts/special use & building 100%
permits, business ficenses, school alerts
Job postings, can pay property taxes/water/sewer
Storey County bills online/senior center information/ Flood Safety 100%
(FEMA)
Storey County County minutes/agendas 5% (opt-in option)
| —= -
Community Chest nternships/job postings/case management/before & 59
after school payments
Storey County Schools Power School 20%
Virginia City Tourism Tourism information, purchase tickets online, social 0
oo . 100%
Commission media & Facebook
Storey County Social media/Facebook 100%

STOREY COUNTY TECHNOLOGY ACTION PLAN




Commumty Enqagement Program

’2\(‘ CONNECTED‘”

Vulnerable Population Focus (8 out of 10 Points Possible) — A community tallies each program
or ability within the community to encourage technology adoption among vulnerable groups.
Methods of focusing on vulnerable groups may vary, but explicitly encourage technology use
among vulnerable groups. Example opportunities include offering online GED classes, English as
a Second Language (ESL) classes, video-based applications for the deaf, homework assistance:
for students, and job-finding assistance. Communltles receive po:nts for each group on whic

Organization

: '.:'Pro ram Description
“Name - g p

Community Chest - | GED classes, homework assistance, job

Virginia City assistance
Community Chest - | GED classes, homework assistance, job . :
. Low-income/children:
Lockwood assistance ST
Storey County Job assistance Low-income
Food closet/backpack program/food Low-

Community Chest

deliveries & computer assistance |ncome/ch1Idren/elderly/d|sab1ed? L
Storey
County/Washoe Ride Share Program Low- mcome/dlsabled/e[derly ,
County RTC :

[JSE SCORE EXPLANATION

Economic Opportunity (9 out of 10 Points Possibie) — A community receives one point per basic
use of broadband and two points per advanced use of broadband. Categories within economic
opportunity include: economic development, business development, tourism, and agriculture.
Identified uses of broadband in the area of economic opportunity are listed below and
identified as basic or advanced.

Application Provider advanced

Virginia Ci in Street . _ .
rginia City Main Str Attractions/events/tourism Basic
Program
Local attractions liste , . .
. d Local attractions can be located online Basic
online
Local Online Banking Online banking Basic

. STOREY COUNTY TECHNOLOGY ACTION PLAN




- >),\(<=CONN’ECTED“? :
- TN

Cammunity Engagement Program. ...

interactive database designed to link assets & resources
Asset Management GIS . . o . Advanced
for new/perspective companies, & existing companies
Listing of - - -
Storey County |st|-ng of commercial development properties, specialty Advanced
zoning, ete.
Virginia City Coffee House | Wireless hotspot Basic .
Comstock Coffee Wireless hotspot Basi

Education (10 out of 10 Points Possibie) — A community receives one point per bas
broadband and two points per advanced use of broadband. Categories within e :
K-12, higher education, and libraries. Identified uses of broadband in the area '
listed below and identified as basic or advanced. :

Baslc/ o

Application Provider Advanced

Storey County Schools One-to-One
Storey County Schools Power Schools
Truckee Meadows

Community College

Online classes

Western Nevada College Online classes

University of Nevada Online college classes Advanced
Storey County Schools Elementary laptop classroom initiative Advanced .

S > o ieital I
Storey County Schools :ﬁﬂf of 12th graders graduate with digital literacy Advanced
Storey County Schools Online classes are offered for middle and high school Advanced
students
Storey County Schools ::'f;\g :;Jscused curriculum & labs for high school Advanced

Government {10 out of 10 Points Possible) — A community receives one point per basic use of

broadband and two points per advanced use of broadband. Categories within government
include general government, public safety, energy, and the environment. Identified uses of
broadband in the area of government are listed below and identified as basic or advanced.

S Ba_s__i_c/:_':. :
. Advanced

Applica__t_i_t':'_r'_n'?ro'v'i'déf " Description.

' . nty services are located here; breakin )
Storey County Website County s es are focated g Basic
new/alerts/school information

Storey County Over 50% of government services are online Advanced
Storey County interoperable wireless safety network Advanced
Tahoe Reno industrial Presence of smart buildings Advanced
Center

Storey County Mobile government applications Advanced

STOREY COUNTY TEGHNOLOGY-ACTION PLAN . " | OCTOBER 2013




>) (< CONNECTED’“

Camm agement Program

| Storey County

| Advanced caller ID and up-to-date narrow bandwidth

Healthcare (10 out of 10 Points Possible)

Appllcation Name :

HAWC Clinic

‘ Description

Electronic Medical Records

Community Chest

Behavioral/individual/group therapy

Renown Medical Center

Electronic Medical Records

Renown Medical Center

Physicians listed online

Renown Medical Center

Lab results are available online

Carson Tahoe Medical Center

Electronic Medical Records

Carson Tahoe Medical Center

Physicians listed online

Carson Tahoe Clinics at Wal-Mart

Electronic Medical Records

Renown Medical Center

Telemedicine available at some locations

5t. Mary's Hospital

Physicians listed online

Northern Nevada Medical Center

Physicians listed online

STOREY COUNTY TECHNOLOGY ACTION PLA

. OcToBER 2013

| Advanced |

— A community receives one point per basic use of
broadband and two points per advanced use of broadband. Entities within healthcare can
include, but are not limited to, hospitals, medical and dental clinics, health departments,
nursing homes, assisted living facilities, and pharmacies. Identified uses of broadband in
area of healthcare are listed below and identified as basic or advanced.




NECTED"

1_mun|t_y Engagement Prog;"_am R

ACTION PLAN

Community Priority Projects
The Connected Assessment has culminated in the outlining of projects designed to empowe
the community to accelerate broadband access, adoption, and use. Below are nine pr:orlt'
projects. This is followed by a complete list of all proposed sclutions.

Analyze Local Regulations

Project Description :
High capital investment costs, including permit processing, pole attachment co
effective planning and coordination with public authorities, negatively impact th
deployment. For example, the FCC’s National Broadband Plan concludes that,”
and conditions for access to rights-of-way (including pole attachments) significant|
broadband deployment.” The costs associated with obtaining permits and leasing poele
attachments and rights-of-way are some of the most expensive cost functions in a servic

Goal

1. Ensure that local policies are conducive to broadband build-out, lowering cost barriers in
building business cases for broadband deployment, and encouraging good public policy and
provider relatians.

Action Items

1. Review local policies, ordinances, and other barriers to broadband deployment, and consult
with community leaders, providers, utilities, and other members of the community to
ensure support of policies (local ordinances, pole attachments, rights-of-way) that are
conducive to broadband build-out.

2. Develop an awareness campaign targeted toward community leaders to inform them of the
benefits of broadband to the entire community derived from access to global resources that
outweigh the need for some policies.

3. Initiate ways of integrating broadband into the local planning process.

Implementation Team
To be determined.

Broadband Speed Testing

Project Description

' :'.OCT_O_BERZO’is oy




@ . 'Community Engagement Program

Encourage residents to participate in data contribution through county-level speed testing. in
order to validate available speeds of local providers, host a contest for gathering speed data
from residents, This will enable a more detailed speed map for the technology team’s use in the
future.

Goals

1. Create a more detailed map for the community regarding available speeds, enabling
technology team and community stakeholders to better understand the broad
landscape and to address residential concerns anecdotally gathered at local
team meetings.

2. Create a coliaborative environment between local community members
serve the area.

3. Understand existing and potential markets for broadband subscribers (b
business).

Action Items

1. Host a contest encouraging local residents to complete an online speed test

2. Overlay speed data with provider data via the Connect Nevada maps.

3. Anaiyze the data for accuracy across mapping platforms, working with providers a
residents to develop a plan for increased speeds.

4. include the speed test information on the County general information line, 775-847-Info
{4633).

Implementation Team
To be determined.

Collect and Display Business and Zoning Information

Project Description

Collect business and zoning information to contribute as a layer on the avaiiability map to
analyze business access, specifically across areas considered for possible economic
development.

Goal

1. Empower the technology team and local economic development professionals to better
understand the broadband landscape to support current businesses and to recruit new
business.

Action 1tems

1. identify additional resources for zoning layers {i.e. GIS maps).

2. Create an overfay to the last mile service maps provided by Connect Nevada.
3. Discuss service needs with current and potential businesses.

¥ COUNTY TECHNOLOGY ACTION PLAN .




 CONNECTED'

%_ ommurut\ E‘ngagementprogram

4. Analyze maps for gaps in service for business.
5. Use broadband in awareness campaigns as a driver for new business recruitment.

implementation Team
To be determined.

Develop or Identify a Broadband Training and Awareness Program for Siy
Medium Businesses

Project Description

Methods of implementing a small and medium business broadband awaren
include, but are not limited to, facilitating awareness sessions, holding press
community leaders, inviting speakers to community business conferences ot
public service announcements. It is also important to educate focal business:
that are available at minimum or no cost to them.

A training program, or entry-level “Broadband 101” course, could be utilized to g
medium businesses an introduction on how to capitalize on broadband connectivityi:as well:as
more advanced applications for IT staff. In addition, training should include resources
staff, such as how to use commerce tools for sales, streamline finances with online records
leverage knowledge management across an organization. Additional training might include:
¢ “How to” training for key activities such as online collaboration, search optimization,
cybersecurity, equipment use, and Web 2.0 tools.
* Technical and professional support for hardware, software, and business operations.
¢ Licenses for business applications such as document creation, antivirus and security
software, and online audio- and video-conferencing.
¢ Website development and registration.
* Basic communications equipment, such as low-cost personal computers and wireless
routers.

Goal
1. Implement a broadband awareness and training program.

Action items

1. Identify ways businesses interact with local government and assess existing online business
applications to determine appropriate use and ease of services. Develop a plan to better
serve local businesses and to promote creation of new business.

2. ldentify federally or state sponsored business support programs (e.g. Chamber of
Commerce, SBA, EDA, Agriculture, Stronger Economics Together (SET), or Manufacturing
extension) that include assistance with broadband or IT content,

3. ldentify or develop a business awareness and training program,

' STOREY COUNTY TECHNOLOGY ACTION PLAN




-~ “Community Engagement Program

%.-_caNNECTED

4. |dentify or develop online training modules for businesses. For example, the Southern Rural
Development Center, in partnership with National Institute of Food and Agriculture, USDA,
administers the National e-Commerce Extension Initiative. As the sole outlet nationally for
e-Commerce educational offerings geared at Extension programming, the National e-
Commerce Extension Initiative features interactive online iearning modules. In addition,:t
program’s website offers a library of additional resources and a tutorials section for
explanation on website design and function. Modules and presentations include:
Beginner’s Guide to e-Commerce, Doing Business in the Cloud, Electronic Retai
on the internet, Helping Artisans Reach Global Markets, and Mobile e-Comme
http://srde.msstate.edu/ebeat/small business.htmi#

5. Continue to offer small and medium business within the county the Nex
course/s from University of Nevada, Reno. These courses include: Devel
Plan, How to Effectively Open a New Business, Sustaining a Current Busi

Implementation Team
To be determined.

Implement a Community-Based Technology Awareness Program

Project Description
Conduct an extensive advertising campaign to raise awareness about the benefits of broadba
and related technology. Develop a strategy to help the community become more aware of the
benefits associated with Internet and computer adoption in their daily lives and activities.
Methods of delivery include, but are not limited to, classroom style awareness sessions, press
conferences led by community leaders, having a speaker at a community event; posting
community posters, handouts, and public service announcements. Additionally, the campaign
should specificaily target technology non-adopters. By using established media, the campaign
reaches non-adopters where they are. Public radio, broadcast and cable TV, utility bill stuffers,
and print newspapers have been utilized to reach households of many types. Other viable
platforms include social media, the County’s general information line (775) 847-INFO (4633), or
the “breaking news for Storey County” on the County’s website; also consider using the
County’s outbound phone notifications and the Virginia City app, which could be utilized to
promote the public awareness campaign. The public awareness campaign should focus on
helping residents, particularly those from underserved communities, understand the personal
vaiue they can derive from an investment in information technology.

There are also opportunities to leverage existing resources to expand and enhance workforce
training programs, encourage more post-secondary education, and create additional awareness
within the community in regards to global resources. It is important to support the outcomes of
awareness training with the development of technology training programs that wil! then teach
community members how to use the technology.

'STOREY COUNTY TECHN




| }’(( CONNECTED“

Goals

1. Organize, promote, and deliver a technology awareness program to the community.

2. Increase utilization of technology resources in the community to better serve residents,
particularly low-income and vulnerable populations.

3. Increase adoption of technology across the community.

Action [tems

1. Determine the type of public awareness campaign that is appropriate for the

2. Connect Ohio’s statewide Every Citizen Online public awareness campaign pre
excellent case study of a professionally developed campaign.
http://connectohig.org/public-awareness-campaigns.

3. Create a centralized technology portal which promotes county and local technology -
resources for use by residents. Including resources like calendars (promotmg local tech
events and showing available hours at public computing centers), online train
and local computer resources.

Implementation Team
To be determined.

Secure Low-Cost Computers via Partnerships

Project Description
The first step in establishing computer refurbishing is recruiting community members to
sanitize old computers and install new software. There are several target groups for performing
refurbishments, among them community volunteers or high school and college students.
Community computer refurbishing provides an apportunity for volunteers and students to gain
valuable new skills and training that can be used for career enhancement, in some cases
earning credits for school or college, while reinvesting in their communities.

Connect2Compete {C2C) is a national nonprofit organization designed to help narrow the digital
divide by making high-speed Internet access, computers, education and job content, and digital
literacy training more accessible for Americans without home connectivity and will, in the
future, impact Nevada’'s broadband landscape.

Connect2Compete will help Americans access technology through free digital literacy training,
discounted high-speed Internet, and low-cost computers. The program will expand to all 50
states in January 2013.

Connect2Compete will implement the following broadband, PC, and digital literacy offerings:
e Multiple cable providers are offering discounted Internet service at $9.95.
e Computers will be available for purchase for two price points - $150 for a refurbished
computer and $250 for new computers from Microsoft.

'SfcRE_YCquNTY ECHNG v AGTION | ..'.__.__'_Q;:'.['OBERQD’]




)V(< CONNECTED'

Commumty Engagement Dmgram

¢ Through a partnership with Best Buy’s Geek Squad, Connect2Compete will offer in-
person digital literacy training in communities nationwide and free online digital literacy
training.

When C2C is available in Nevada, families with a child enrolled in one of the selected pilot
schools and receiving free school lunches are eligible for the $9.95 Internet and low-cost .
computer offerings. In addition, for the Internet offer only, eligible families must not
subscribed to cable Internet within the past 90 days of signing up for C2C and cannot.
outstanding debt or unreturned equipment with the cable company. Families eli
will receive the reduced-price Internet for 2 years as long as they remain contin
subscribed to the Internet service. However, the computer is the family’s to k
families will be able to apply online at www.Connect2Compete.org or by ph

Computer Corps, a non-profit organization, provides computers and skills tr
groups in northern Nevada inciuding low-income, at-risk youth and their fami
other challenged individuals, displaced workers, seniors, and military personn

Connect Nevada provides access to a variety of free online computer skills trainin
through the Every Community Online program. These self-paced courses will show user
many ways that technology can connect them with their communities, including how to
computer, how to use e-mail to communicate, and general Internet knowledge. Once traini
completed, trainees qualify for a low-cost computer program. These computers are also
available to registered students and local community non-profits.

Goals

1. Ensure that low-income community members have the opportunities to purchase reduced
price computers and Internet access through the Connect2Compete Initiative and through
local resources like Computer Corps and Connect Nevada.

2. |Initiate a computer refurbishment program designed to help recycle computers donated by
tocal businesses, government, schools and other organizations, and then distribute them to
low-income households and other households who face affordability barriers to computer
ownership.

Action Items

1. Determine the need of local residents for low-cost computers.

2. Develop a strategic plan for communicating available resources to target segment.

3. Communicate and implement strategies to connect target segment with national, state, and
local resources.

Implementation Team
To be determined.

TOREY COUNTY TECHNOLOGY.ACTION PLAN - -




)V(< CONNECTED"

Communlty Engagement Program,

Support Current Broadband Projects

Project Description
Support current projects acting as a liaison between providers, residents, and community
leaders to ensure ongoing project success and consumer satisfaction. As projects progress
ensure appropriate communication channels are utilized and the needs of community mer
and providers are met. This will be achieved by establishing ongoing technology teany
and developing communication strategies for team members.

Goals
1. Support providers and projects which will encourage timely progress, maxil
resources, and create relationships of collaboration carrying into the futt
this may lead to a reduction in cost for both infrastructure deployment aj
residents.
2. Establish a clear communication channel between residents and provider

Action ltems :

1. Identify all providers in the area, including contact names, service territory, and-available:
speeds. :

2. Invite providers and local customers to ongoing technology meetings, identifying resources: -
and challenges for both the community providers.

3. Consider opportunities for leveraging community assets to promote broadband
deployment,

4. Develop a system of communication, through single paints of contact, to providers
regarding city/county planning initiatives.

Implementation Team
To be determined.

Support Digital Learning Initiatives

Project Description

Several digital learning platforms are available for K-12 implementation. For example, CFY is a
national education nonprofit that helps students in low-income communities, together with
their teachers and families, harness the power of digital learning to improve educational
outcomes. The organization is unique in that it operates both “in the cloud” {through
PowerMylearning.com, a free K-12 online learning platform) and “on the ground” {through its
Digital Learning Program, a whole school initiative that works hands-on with all three of the
constituents that impact student achievement: teachers, parents, and students).

PowerMylearning.com is a free online educational tool that helps students, teachers, and
parents locate and access over 1,000 high-quality online digital learning activities — videos,

STOREY COUNTY TECHNOLOGY ACTION PLAN




)V(< CONNECTED"

Commumty Engagement Progr am .’

simulations, and other educational software — to prope! student achievement in subjects
including math, English, science, and social studies. The platform features a kid-friendly design.
There is a playpoint/badge feature to help motivate students. In addition, students can rate
digital learning activities and share them with friends via e-mail, Facebook, and Twitter.

CFY also provides onsite training to instruct teachers how to integrate PowerMyLearning into
their classrooms.

In the future, there may be an opportunity to leverage the newly adopted, June 1
program that the Nevada Commission on Educational Technology approved. Its.g
create a path to transforming education in Nevada by promoting student succ
economic growth, and creating a twenty-first century workforce. This plant
consideration the results of a 2011 study commissioned by the Governor’s Qff
Development (GOED) that firmly states that the Nevada educational system
underperforming, and sets the goal of raising standards in science, technology, éngineering,
and mathematics (STEM) education, and implements a robust strategy for giving
access to computers in the classroom. .

of Economic

Goal
1. Increase student attention and engagement and encourage students to take ownership o
their learning while making it easier for teachers to differentiate instruction to serve the -
needs of students.

Action Items

1. Determine needs of local schools related to technology.

2. Determine capacity of schools {funding limitations, access to broadband and technology
resources).

3. Identify partners and implement strategies to better serve students through technology.

Implementation Team
To be determined.

Support Public Safety Network Initiatives

Project Description

The overall system architecture of Public Safety Answering Points (PSAPs) has essentially not
changed since the first 911 call was made in 1968. These 911 systems are voice-only networks
based on original wireline, analog, circuit-switched infrastructure which prevent easy
transmission of data and critical sharing of information that can significantly enhance the
decision-making ability, response, and quality of service provided to emergency callers. To meet
growing public expectations of 911-stystem functionality (capable of voice, data, and video
transmission from different types of communication devices), that framework should be
replaced. This would require replacing analog phone systems with an Internet Protocot {IP)-

- :STOREY COUNTY T_:-:c;-lNdLOGY ACTION PLAN




% CONNECTED

: Cgmmunity Engagement Program

based system. This system would provide an enabling platform for current technology, as well
as future upgrades.

For example, in January 2013, the Federal Communications Commission proposed to amend |t :
rules by requiring all wireless carriers and providers of “interconnected” text messaging
applications to support the ability of consumers to send text messages to 911 in all areas:
throughout the nation where 911 Public Safety Answering Points {PSAPs) are also prep’é‘
receive the texts {which requires an IP-based system). Text-to-911 will provide cons

interoperability at the state and federal levels and value sharing of resources a
county region and with additional public and private stakeholders.

Goals
1. Facilitate/support the creation of a public safety network that supports mteroperablllt
management of a robust, state-wide public safety network to support residents.
2. Continue current efforts and functional within the quad County area, including: Carson
Lyon, Douglas, and Storey counties. This group built an application that includes: VoIP, GIS
and data with the broadband speed of 200 Mbps. 4

Action Items

1. Establish a communication vehicle (liaison) between the technology team, the local
community, and the public safety network.

2. Continue current efforts within the quad County area: Carson, Lyons, Douglas, and Storey.

3. Support the efforts as needed.

Implementation Team
To be determined.

All Proposed Projects

ACCESS

Broadband Availability

1. Deploy Educational WiMAX

Deploy WIMAX to the community and provide students with WiMAX-enabled laptops to ensure
equal access for ali students regardless of socioeconomic status. WiMAX is primarily a wireless
and highly cost effective means of extending the school district’s intranet-based content and

STOREY-COUNTY NOLOGY AGTION PLAN -




)Vi(< CONNECTED"

Lommun:ty Engagement Program

applications to the student body beyond the school campus and outside of school hours
equating to anytime, anywhere instruction.

WIMAX is an IP-based, wireless broadband access technology that provides performance simila
to Wi-Fi networks, but with the coverage and quality of service of cellular networks. WiMAX
can provide broadband wireless access (BWA) up to 30 miles {50 km) for fixed stations, al
10 miles (5 - 15 km) for mobile stations. Developing a WiMAX network should be done j
partnership with providers, technology organizations, and local government.

Community-wide WiMAX networks require significant infrastructure, including: ic
and placement determined by a site survey conducted by the instalfation company)
WiMAX transmitters and receivers; management server; Internet backhaul; ar
to-one laptop and WiMAX program wouid include network and hardware maintenance costs.
WiMAX infrastructure is a capital expense that can be amortized over many. years The typlcal
infrastructure costs $5-20 per student per month, over a five-year period, dependlng on-factors
such as population density, terrain, and the size of the area to be covered. :

Goal
1. Extend school district’s intranet-based content — Extend school district’s intran
content and ensure equal access to home Internet.

Benefits

1. Affordability. WiMAX is cheaper than DSL, Cable, Fiber to the Home, and 3G wireless. This
low cost per home brings it into the realm of possibilities for a school district to build its
own private access network independent of commercial operators.

2. Empowers all students to access online educational material after school hours so that
digital content is not restricted to school or library computer labs for low-income students
who cannot afford laptops or internet access at home.

3. Provides equal hardware and Internet access to all students.

4. Supports curriculum updates and increased push for STEM education.

Action Items

1. Develop partnership with area providers, technology and education organizations, local
government, and school districts.

2. Assess infrastructure needs.

3. Contact local or national WiMAX service and equipment providers.

2. Apply to USDA for Funding to Support Broadband Build-out in Community

The USDA, through its Rural Development mission area, administers and manages housing,
business, and community infrastructure and facility programs through a national network of
state and local offices. Rural Development has an active portfolio of more than 5165 billion in
loans and loan guarantees. These programs are designed to improve the economic stability of

OBER 2013




g,\(g CONNECTED"

Ca"nmumty Engagemmt Progra m

rural communities, businesses, residents, farmers, and ranchers and improve the quality of life
in rural areas,

Programs:
1. Farm Bill Loan Program — USDA
This program is designed to provide loans for funding, on a technology neutral b
the costs of construction, improvement, and acquisition of facilities and equ f
provide broadband service to eligible rural communities.

Additional Information: .
e Direct loans are in the form of a cost-of-money loan, a 4-percer
combination of the two.

Eligibility:
e Must be a rural area. Rural area means any area, as confirme
decennial census by the U.S. Census Bureau, which is not locate ]
o Acity, town, or incorporated area that has a population of mor
20,000 people
o Anurbanized area contiguous and adjacent to a city or town with:
population of more than 50,000 people. An urbanized area means a.
densely populated territory as defined in the latest decennial census.
s To be eligible for a broadband loan, an applicant may be either a nonprofit or
for-profit organization, and must take one of the following forms:
o Corporation
o Limited liability company (LLC)
o Cooperative or mutual organization
o Federally recognized Indian tribe or tribal organization
o State or local government, including any agency, subdivision, or one of
their units.
e A service area may be eligible for a broadband loan if all of the following are
true:
o The service area is completely contained within a rural area
o At least 25 percent of the households in the service area are underserved
households
o No part of the service area has three or more incumbent service
providers
o No part of the funded service area overlaps with the service area of
current RUS borrowers and grantees
o No part of the funded service area is included in a pending application
before RUS seeking funding to provide broadband service.

Contact Information:

UNTY TECHNOLOGY AGTION PLAN © . OCToBER 2013




2. Community Connect Program — USDA

e Point of Contact: Ken Kuchno
Telephone: (202) 690-4673
E-mail: kenneth.kuchno@wdc.usda.gov
Website: www,rurdev.usda.gov/utp farmbill.html

This program provides community access to broadband services in un-served area
through a one-time grant to such organizations as tribes, cooperatives, pri
companies, and universities, and uses the infrastructure built by the grai
opportunities for continued improvement. ‘

Additional information:

¢ The funding will support construction, acquisition, or lease 0
spectrum, to deploy broadband transmission services fo all ¢
facilities and to offer such services to all residential and busine
located within the proposed service area.

e The funding can be put towards the improvement, expansion, constructi
acquisition, or leasing of a community center that furnishes free access t'.
broadband Internet service, providing that the community center is open and
accessible to area residents before, during, and after normal working hours and-
on Saturday or Sunday.

¢ Al equipment purchases with grant and/or matching funds must be new or non- "
depreciated.

Eligibility:

* Must be single community with a population of less than 20,000 that does not
have Broadband Transmission Service.

» Applicants must be organized as an incorporated organization, an Indian tribe or
tribal organization, a state or local unit of government, or other legal entity,
including cooperatives or private corporations or limited liability companies
organized on a for-profit or not-for-profit basis.

* The project must deploy Basic Broadband Transmission Service, free of all
charges for at least 2 years, to all Critical Community Facilities located within the
proposed Service Area. Additionally, it should offer Basic Broadband
Transmission Service to residential and business customers within the proposed
Service Area.

Contact Information:
e Point of Contact: Thera Swersky or Steven Levine
Telephone: (202) 690-4673
Email: community.connect@wdc.usda.gov

:CHNOLOGY ACTION PL . OCTOBER 2013




CONNECTED"

~Community Engagement Program

Website: www.rurdev.usda.gov/utp commconnect.html

3. Distance Learning and Telemedicine Loans and Grants Program — USDA
This program provides loans and grants to rural community facilities {e.g. schools,
libraries, hospitals, and tribal organizations) for advanced telecommunications syste
that can provide healthcare and educational benefits to rural areas.

Additional Information:

¢ The Distance Learning and Telemedicine Loans and Grant Progr

Program} provides three kinds of financial assistance: a fulf gra
combination, and a full loan.

Eligibility:
To be eligible for a grant, your organization must:
e Currently deliver or propose to delwer distance learning or telem_ I

sustainability. Planning studies, research prolects and short-term demonstr,
projects of less than two years will not be considered. -

* Be legally organized as an incorporated organization or partnership; an indian "
tribe or tribal organization; a state or local unit of government; a consortium; or
other legal entity, inclugding a private corporation organized on a for-profit or
not-for-profit basis with the legal capacity to contract with the United States
Government.

e Operate a rural community facility or deliver distance learning or telemedicine
services to entities that operate a rural community facility or to residents of rural
areas at rates calculated to ensure that the benefit of the financial assistance
passes through to such entities or to residents of rural areas.

Contact Information:
¢ Point of Contact: Sam Morgan
Telephone: (202) 720-0665
E-mail: ditinfo@wdc.usda.gov
Website: www.rurdev.usda.gov/UTP_DLT.html

4. Universal Service Rural Heafth Care Program — Universal Service Administration
Company
The Rural Health Care program supports healthcare providers serving rural communities
by funding telecommunications services necessary for the provision of healthcare. The

STOREY COUNTY TECHNOLOGY ACTION PLAN




>) (< CONNECTED"

Communlty Es}gagement Program

program is intended to ensure that rural healthcare providers pay no more for

telecommunications in the provision of healthcare services than their urban
counterparts.

Additional Information:

Eligibility:
Eligible organizations include:

Public and non-profit healthcare providers in rural areas can receive disc
instaliation and monthly charges for telecommunications and internet,
service used for the provision of healthcare by using one of two me
mileage-based calculation, or a calculation of the “urban rate” to
equal to the difference between what they pay and what they
were receiving the service in any city in their state with a pop
more, e
The rural healthcare provider must submit a form requesting servic
Universal Service Administrative Company (USAC). Once the f S
is posted on USAC's website seeking bids from telecommunic
interested in providing the requested services. After the rural h
provider selects a provider from qualified bidders and USAC has appr
funding request, the services may begin. Support from the USF is th
help pay for eligible services provided to the rural healthcare provider.

Post-secondary educational institutions offering healthcare instruction, including
teaching hospitals and medical schools

Community health centers or health centers providing healthcare to migrants
Local health departments or agencies

Community mental health centers

Not-for-profit hospitals

Dedicated emergency departments in rural for-profit hospitals

Rural healthcare clinics

Part-time eligible entities located in facilities that are ineligible

Groups of healthcare providers consisting of one or more entities described
above

Contact Information:

Telephone: (800) 229-5476
E-mail: rhc-admin@usac.org
Website: www.universalservice.org/rhc/default.aspx

3. Perform a Broadband Build-out Analysis in Unserved Areas

STOREY COUNTY TECHNOLOGY ACTION PLAN -




Communit Engagement Program

>)A(< CONNECTED' B

Conduct an onsite visual assessment of the defined geographic area seeking broadband
coverage. The assessment determines the feasibility of deploying various Internet systems in a
defined area. You should gather site specific information required for {i} determining use of

existing infrastructure, (ii) designing wired and wireless Internet system using these assets, and:
(ii) expanding the broadband coverage in the defined area. .

Wireless may be the best likely solution. To assist with that, you should conduct a wsual
assessment of the vertical assets (broadcast towers and water tanks) to determine the
feasibility of deploying a fixed wireless broadband Internet system in the unserve
and to gather site-specific information required for that purpose. '

Goal
1. Determine which areos lack the necessary technolog:ca! structure Det

Internet systems in the defined area.

Benefits
1. Determines project feasibility and provides information to develop a business'cas
out.

2. First step in providing unserved community residents with adequate broadband acéé:é;'s

Action I[tems

Conduct a wireless assessment to include:

Determining the functionality of all potential transmit locations

Surveying the availability of adequate power sources at each location

Identifying any issues regarding ingress and egress at each location

Designing a wireless broadband system using these potential transmit locations
Creating a methodology for the expansion of wireless broadband coverage into the
unserved areas of the community

ke wne

4. Support Current Broadband Projects

Support current projects acting as a liaison between providers, residents, and community
leaders to ensure ongoing project success and consumer satisfaction. As projects progress,
ensure appropriate communication channels are utilized and the needs of community members
and providers are met. This will be achieved by establishing ongoing technology team meetings
and developing communication strategies for team members.

Goals

1. Support providers and projects which will encourage timely progress, maximize local
resources, and create relationships of collaboration carrying into the future. In some cases
this may lead to a reduction in cost for both infrastructure deployment and service cost to
residents.

2. Establish a clear communication channel between residents and providers.

INOLOGY ACTION PLAN .+ . OCTOBER2013 -




V

>) (< CONNECTED"

7N, Commumty Engagement Program

Action ltems
1. Identify all providers in the area, including contact names, service territory, and available
speeds.

2. Invite providers and local customers to ongoing technology meetings, identifying resource
and challenges for both the community providers.
3. Consider opportunities for leveraging community assets to promote broadband
deployment. L
4. Develop a system of communication, through single points of contact, to provider
regarding city/county planning initiatives.

Broadband Speeds

5. Ildentify, Map, and Validate Broadband Demand

Develop a team to conduct research surveys and market analyses to validate'a:bu
market analysis includes research on the existing and potential service offerings

respective rates to determine the levels of interest in the services and rate plansoffered.b
client. The team should provide accurate, timely, and thorough solutions accompamed by
personalized service to meet the needs of communities or broadband providers.

Goal
1. Understand existing and potential markets — Understand existing and potential markets for
broadband subscribers (both residential and business).

Benefits
1. Enables the ability to better understand the key drivers of the broadband market.
2. Validates the business case for network build-out and capacity investment.

Action Items
1. The project team should be prepared to provide research project design, data collection
services, data analysis and reporting, and presentation development and delivery.

6. Broadband Speed Testing

Encourage residents to participate in data contribution through county-level speed testing. In
order to validate available speeds of local providers, host a contest for gathering speed data
from residents. This will enable a more detailed speed map for the technology team’s use in the
future.

Goals
1. Create a more detailed map for the community regarding available speeds, enabling the
technology team and community stakeholders to better understand the broadband




. (§ mNNEc:TED

_ Communlty Engagement Program

landscape and to address residential concerns anecdotally gathered at focal technology
team meetings.
2. Create a collahorative environment hetween local community members and providers that
serve the area.
3. Understand existing and potential markets for broadband subscribers (both residential and.
business).

Action ltems

1. Host a contest encouraging local residents to complete an online speed test

2. Overlay speed data with provider data via the Connect Nevada maps.

3. Analyze the data for accuracy across mapping platforms, working with p
residents to develop a plan for increased speeds.

4, Include the speed test information on the County general information lir
(4633).

Broadhand Competition

7. Analyze Local Regulations
High capital investment costs, including permit processing, pole attachment costs, and:
effective planning and coordination with public authorities, negatively impact the case f
deployment. For example, the FCC's National Broadband Plan concludes that, “the rates, terms,
and conditions for access to rights-of-way (including pole attachments) significantly impact
broadband deployment.” The costs associated with obtaining permits and leasing pole

attachments and rights-of-way are some of the most expensive cost functions in a service,

Goal

1. Ensure that local policies are conducive to broadband build-out, lowering cost barriers in
building business cases for broadband deployment, and encouraging good public policy and
provider relations.

Action Items

1. Review local policies, ordinances, and other barriers to broadband deployment, and consult
with community leaders, providers, utilities, and other members of the community to
ensure support of policies (local ordinances, pole attachments, rights-of-way) that are
conducive to broadband build-out.

2. Develop an awareness campaign targeted toward community leaders to inform them of the
benefits of broadband to the entire community derived from access to global resources that
outweigh the need for some policies.

3. Initiate ways of integrating broadband into the local planning process.

Middle Mile Access

NTY TECHNOLOGY ACTION PLAN - © OCTOBER 20




| A« CONNECTED" |

Community Engagement Program

8. Develop Public-Private Partnerships to Deploy Broadband Service
Public-private partnerships take many forms, limited only by the imagination and legal

framework in which the municipality operates. Some communities issue municipal bonds to
fund censtruction of a network which they lease to private carriers, with the lease payment
covering the debt service. Others create non-profit organizations to develop networks i
collaboration with private carriers or provide seed investment to jumpstart constructi
networks that the private sector is unable to cost-justify on its own.

A public-private partnership should not be simply seen as a method of financi:n"‘
of these partnerships is that each party brings something important to the tab
doesn t have or can "t easny acquire. The community can offer mfrastructure

bring network-building and operatlons experience.

Goal
1.. Fund broadband network depfoyment.

Benefits

1. The public sector transfers much of the risk for private investment. For example, the p
sector has many funding tools available, including incentivizing continued investment
through tax credits, encouraging greater availability of private capital through government
guaranteed loans, or government being a direct source of capital through loans or grants.

2. The partnership can aggregate demand and reduce barriers to deployment. By working
together, public and private parties can educate and build awareness needed for the public
to better integrate the use of broadband into their lives, thereby improving the business
case for broadband deployment.

3. A good partnership concentrates investment on non-duplicative networks and aims to
ensure that all residents have access to adequate broadband service.

Action ltems
1. Decide on the technology (e.g. cable, DSL, fiber, etc.}.
2. lssue an RFP.

3. Develop a finance and ownership model.

9. Develop & Issue an RFP for Build-cut

An RFP (request for proposals) is a widely used technigue for establishing a selection of
qualified responses far which to choose when contracting for services. The RFP should provide
a guidance and due diligence framework for interested broadband providers and vendors.
Furthermore, the RFP should request that interested parties provide plans for cost-effective
community broadband networks, including equipment lists, locations, and itemized engineering

”..STOREYCOUNTY : . OCTOBER 2013




~ YK CONNECTED"

Community Engagement Program

cost estimates. In addition, the completed design should include what technology will be
needed at customer premises, the performance that can be expected, and recurring costs
associated with operating and maintaining the system once it is in place.

Goal B
1. Identify the most credible and reliable broadband provider — Identify the most credib and ‘
reliable broadband provider to serve your region’s households and businesses.

Benefits

1. After completing an RFP, your community will have a good handle on the
risks, as well as benefits, associated with build-out.

2. An RFP lets providers know that the situation will be competitive, The co
scenario is often the best method available for obtaining the best pricin
correctly, the best value,

Action Items

1. Content: The RFP should include a project overview, background information,
work, and selection criteria. Additionally, the RFP should require that vendors
cover letter, a statement of project understanding, a business plan, a proposed proj
schedule, qualifications, references, and cost.

2. Distribution: The RFP could be posted to the community’s website. Alternatively, one
method of efficiently distributing an RFP is to send out to a wide audience a cne-page
document announcing the availability of the full RFP. Vendors and consultants who are
interested in your project can then contact you to obtain the full RFP.

Mobile Broadband Availability

10. Complete a Vertical Assets inventory

Wireless communications equipment can be placed in a wide variety of locations, but ideally,
wireless providers look for locations or structures in stable conditions, with reasonably easy
access to electricity and wired telecommunications, and with a significant height relative to the
surrounding area. “Vertical assets” are defined as structures on which wireless broadband
equipment can be mounted and positioned to broadcast a signal over as much terrain as
possible. These assets include structures such as cell towers, water tanks, grain silos, and multi-
story buildings.

The fack of easily accessible and readily usable information regarding the number and location
of vertical assets prevents the expansion of affordable, reliable wireless broadband service.
Wireless broadband providers must determine if it is worth the effort and expense to collect
and analyze this data when making investment decisions. Public sector organizations are faced
with the same challenges. A centralized and comprehensive vertical assets inventory can help
wireless broadband providers expedite decisions regarding the deployment of affordable,
reliable broadband service in rural areas.

~ STOREY.COUNTY TECHNOLOGY AGTIONPLAN =~ - . OCTOBER 2013




Community Engagement Program -

) CONNECTED"

Goal
1. Develop a single repository of vertical assets — Develop a single repository of vertical assets,
such as communications towers, water tanks, and other structures potentizally useful for the:
support of deploying affordable, reliable wireless broadband in less populated rural areas or
topographically challenged areas.

Benefits
1. The verticatl assets inventory provides data for private and public investmen
lowering the initial cost of efforts needed to identify potential mounting loc
infrastructure. !
2. Theinventory can encourage the expansion of affordable, refiable wirel
services to underserved areas by shortening project development time.

Action Items

1. Identify or develop a vertical assets inventory toolkit to provide guidelines+t
structures or land that could serve as a site for installation of wireless com
equipment.

2. Data to collect would include vertical asset type, owner type, minimum base elev. '4
minimum height above ground, and location.

3. I|dentify and map elevated structures utilizing your community’s GIS resources. The resu
database should be open ended; localities should be encouraged to continuously map
assets as they are made available.

ADOPTION

Digital Literacy

11. Secure Low-Cost Computers via Partnerships

The first step in establishing computer refurbishing is recruiting community members to
sanitize old computers and install new software. There are several target groups for performing
refurbishments, among them community volunteers or high school and college students.
Community computer refurbishing provides an opportunity for volunteers and students to gain
valuable new skifls and training that can be used for career enhancement, in some cases
earning credits for school or college, while reinvesting in their communities.

Connect2Compete (C2C) is a national nonprofit organization designed to help narrow the digital
divide by making high-speed Internet access, computers, education and job content, and digital
literacy training more accessible for Americans without home connectivity and will, in the
future, impact Nevada’s broadband landscape.

STOREY COUNTY TECHNOLOGY ACTION PLAN .. OCTOBER'2013




ONNECTEL

Community Engagement Program

Connect2Compete will help Americans access technology through free digital literacy training,
discounted high-speed Internet, and low-cost computers, The program will expand to all 50
states in January 2013.

Connect2Compete will implement the following broadband, PC, and digital literacy offering
» Multiple cable providers are offering discounted Internet service at $9.95.

» Computers will be available for purchase for two price points - $150 for a refu

computer and $250 for new computers from Microsoft.

¢ Through a partnership with Best Buy’s Geek Squad, Connect2Compete will

person digital literacy training in communities nationwide and free online digital:literacy

training.

When C2C is available in Nevada, families with a child enrolled in one of the
schools and receiving free school lunches are eligible for the $9.95 Internet
computer offerings. In addition, for the Internet offer only, eligible families
subscribed to cable Internet within the past 90 days of signing up for C2C and®
outstanding debt or unreturned equipment with the cable company. Families
will receive the reduced-price Internet for 2 years as long as they remain continuol
subscribed to the Internet service. However, the computer is the family’s to keep. Eligi
families will be able to apply online at www.Connect2Compete.org or by phone. |

Computer Corps, a non-profit organization, provides computers and skilis training to six main
groups in northern Nevada including low-income, at-risk youth and their famities, physically and
other challenged individuals, displaced workers, seniors, and military personnel.

Connect Nevada provides access to a variety of free online computer skills training courses
through the Every Community Online program. These self-paced courses will show users the
many ways that technology can connect them with their communities, including how to use a
computer, how to use e-mail to communicate, and general Internet knowledge. Once training is
completed, trainees qualify for a low-cost computer program. These computers are also
available to registered students and local community non-profits.

Goals

1, Ensure that low-income community members have the opportunities to purchase reduced
price computers and Internet access through the Connect2Compete Initiative and through
local resources like Computer Corps and Connect Nevada.

2. Initiate a computer refurbishment program designed to help recycle computers donated by
local businesses, government, schools and other organizations, and then distribute them to
low-income households and other households who face affordability barriers to computer
ownership.

Action Iltems

STOREY COUNTY TECHNOLOGY AGTION PLAN . OCTOBER 2013




>)A<:§ QONNECTED“
N _

Ccmmumty Engage e

1. Determine the need of local residents for low-cost computers,

2. Develop a strategic plan for communicating available resources to target segment.

3. Communicate and implement strategies to connect target segment with national, state, and
local resources.

Public Computer Access — No proposed projects

Broadbhand Awareness
12. Develop or Identify a Broadband Training and Awareness Program for Smal

Businesses '
Methods of implementing a small and medium business broadband awaren
include, but are not limited to, facilitating awareness sessions, holding pres
community leaders, inviting speakers to community business conferences o
public service announcements. It is also important to educate local businesse
that are available at minimum or no cost to them.

A training program, or entry-level “Broadband 101" course, could be utilized to
medium businesses an introduction on how to capitalize on broadband connectivity;
more advanced applications for IT staff. In addition, training should include resources fo
staff, such as how to use commerce tools for sales, streamline finances with online recor‘ds}:
leverage knowledge management across an organization. Additional training might include:
* “How to” training for key activities such as online collaboration, search optimization,
cybersecurity, equipment use, and Web 2.0 tools.
¢ Technical and professional support for hardware, software, and business operations.
e Licenses for business applications such as document creation, antivirus and security
software, and online audio- and video-conferencing.
¢ Website development and registration.
¢ Basic communications equipment, such as low-cost personal computers and wireless
routers.

Goal
1. Implement a broadband awareness and training program.

Action Items

1. Identify ways businesses interact with local government and assess existing online business
applications to determine appropriate use and ease of services. Develop a plan to better
serve local businesses and to promote creation of new business.

2. Identify federally or state sponsored business support programs {e.g. Chamber of
Commerce, SBA, EDA, Agriculture, Stronger Economics Together (SET), or Manufacturing
extension} that include assistance with broadband or IT content.

3. Identify or develop a business awareness and training program.

ECHNOLOGY ACTION PLAN.




(< coum:c'rf:n“

Commumty Engagement Program

4. |dentify or develop online training modules for businesses. For example, the Southern Rural
Development Center, in partnership with National Institute of Food and Agriculture, USDA,
administers the National e-Commerce Extension Initiative. As the sole outlet nationally for
e-Commerce educational offerings geared at Extension programming, the National e-
Commerce Extension Initiative features interactive online {earning modules. In addltlon t
program’s website offers a library of additional resources and a tutorials section for gre:
explanation on website design and function. Modules and presentations include:
Beginner’s Guide to e-Commerce, Doing Business in the Cloud, Electronic Retaijli
on the Internet, Helping Artisans Reach Global Markets, and Mobile e-Comme
http://srdc.msstate.edu/ebeat/small business.html#

.5. Continue to offer small and medium business within the county the Nex e ékl’
course/s from University of Nevada, Reno. These courses include: Developlng a Busmess
Plan, How to Effectively Open a New Business, Sustaining a Current Busmess et ‘

13. implement a Community-Based Technology Awareness Program
Conduct an extensive advertising campaign to raise awareness about the benefits
and related technology. Develop a strategy 1o help the community become mofe‘,__
benefits associated with Internet and computer adoption in their daily lives and a
Methods of delivery include, but are not limited to, classroom style awareness sessions;:
conferences led by community leaders, having a speaker at a community event; posting =
community posters, handouts, and public service announcements. Additionally, the campaign
should specifically target technology non-adopters. By using established media, the campaign
reaches non-adopters where they are. Public radio, broadcast and cable TV, utility bill stuffers,
and print newspapers have been utilized to reach households of many types. Other viable
platforms include sacial media, the County’s general information line {775) 847-INFO (4633), or
the “breaking news for Storey County” on the County’s website; also consider using the
County’s outbound phone notifications and the Virginia City app, which could be utilized to
promote the public awareness campaign. The public awareness campaign should focus on
helping residents, particularly those from underserved communities, understand the personal
value they can derive from an investment in information technology.

There are also opportunities to leverage existing resources to expand and enhance workforce
training programs, encourage more post-secondary education, and create additional awareness
within the community in regards to global resources. It is important to support the outcomes of
awareness training with the development of technology training programs that will then teach
community members how to use the technology.

Goals

1. Organize, promote, and deliver a technology awareness program to the community.

2. Increase utilization of technology resources in the community to better serve residents,
particularly low-income and vulnerable populations.

3. Increase adoption of technology across the community.

ACTION PLAN




o >)®(< CONNECTED

LCommunity Engagement Program

Action ltems

1. Determine the type of public awareness campaign that is appropriate for the community:.

2. Connect Ohio’s statewide Every Citizen Online public awareness campaign provides an
excellent case study of a professicnally developed campaign.
http://connectohio.org/public-awareness-campaigns.

3. Create a centralized technology portal which promotes county and local technology
resources for use by residents. Including resources like calendars (promoting local tecl
events and showing available hours at public computing centers), online trai
and local computer resources.

Vulnerable Population Focus

14. Develop a Technology Mentorship Program

Initiate a program designed to recruit local high school or college students wh
and exhibit advanced leadership and technology skills to assist in technology tra
support, and outreach efforts in their communities. Recognizing students as a pe
resource for local outreach efforts, the program will challenge them to extend their tecl
experiences beyond the classroom. The program essentially taps into a technology kndw___
base that exists through these exceptional students. Students will be required to develop
programs such as training seniors to use computers, initiating a computer refurbishing
program, offering basic computer training for local communities, building websites, etc.

Goal
1. Utilize student technology knowledge — Utilize student technology knowledge to implement
community programs.

Benefits

1. The program helps students develop seif-confidence and technical competencies as they
work with their families, leaders, peers, neighbors, seniors, and other members of their
communities. In addition to empowering these students with real world experience, it helps
enhance their skills as they mature into productive and highly competent citizens.

2. 1t helps to build character by awarding students opportunities to give back to their
communities and embrace responsibilities associated with community service.

3. The program will engage students who are creative, knowledgeable, and interested in
technology as a great resource for planning, implementation, support, and using technology
at a local level. With guidance and support, they will help to provide a missing, and
impartant, link between the members of community that have experience with broadband
technology and those who are currently not using it.

4. The program will expose students to potential career paths and provide a basis to
determine if they want to further their educations in a technology field. It could also

~ STOREY COUNTY TECHNOLOGY ACTION PLAN




potentially provide a beginning client base from the relationships he or she has built within

the community as a student.

Usk

Economic Opportunity

15. Establish a "Digital Factory"
A digital factory is a hybrid between an employment agency and a co-working faci
connects residents with online training courses and connections with compan
physical presence in the community. Digital factories provide office space, con
broadband access, and conference space, as well training ranging from computer
literacy skills to computer proegramming. s

“VisionPerry,” located in Perry County, Tennessee, provides an ideal example. s
factory concept. VisionPerry provides office space, high-speed Internet service a |
room, and training/work rooms that all act as a hub for employees, remote emplp
online training courses. Training at VisionPerry currently follows two main courses:
Service Representative and Programmer Training.

VisionPerry currently partners with companies such as LiveQps, Salesforce.com, and Koda
desire customer service representatives and remote programmers. Just like a co-working
facility, workers who are employed and working at the digital factory pay, according to their
salary and job levels, a small monthly fee for using the facilities and services of the digital
factory, making the operation sustainable without ongoing government support. For more
information, visit: www.visionperry.com/.

Ancther example would be Connected Nation’s recently unveiled Digital Works program, The
Digital Works program creates jobs in areas facing high unemployment by leveraging
broadband technology for call center and IT outsourcing, Extended training is available for
HTML programming and cther technical positions as well. The program is providing an avenue
for communities to create a job incubator, retaining workers in the area, and attracting
corporate jobs while providing a pathway for improving a worker’s competitive advantage in
the twenty-first century workforce with specified coursework and training.

At the end of training, workers are placed in available pasitions that match their skills and
interests. All jobs pay above minimum wage and the training provides opportunities for
placement at levels for upward mobility. This is work that can be done from home or at the
Digital Works center, which is provided through a partnership with the community. For more
information, visit: www.connectednation.org/sites/default/files/connected-
nation/ffiles/cn_digital works launch final.pdf

Goal

'_-"-_S_TOREYCOUN'E_'Y_IE_CHNOLOGYACTION_PLAN .- .. ... QcToBER2013 =~ -~




>)A(f< CONNECTED'

Commumty Engagement Program

1. Connect T training and education — Connect IT training and education with remote
employment opportunities.

Benefits
1. This type of project can educate, train, employ, and has the potential to ultimately incre
the productivity and economic competitiveness of your community’s workforce.

2. The physical infrastructure and training exposes a broad spectrum of re5|dents to th
benefits of telecommunications and productive uses of the Internet.

3. Through training and work, participants will rely heavily on local ISPs, broad
technology, and emerging IT technologies to provide services to a global m
turn fostering the demand-driven strengthening of your community’s ph
infrastructure,

Action ltems

1, The digital factory concept requires a site suitable for establishing office
educational partners to develop the workforce, and business relationships
willing to hire workers through the digital factory.

2. Identify the physical, financial, and technological rescurces needed to establis
factory.

3. Space to house workspace and training and support offices will be needed, as well a
equipment, such as computers and monitors for video conferencing and training.

4, Develop partnerships with companies that would provide contractual employment to
program graduates.

5. This employment-focused program can be coupled with a digital literacy program, such as
Connected Nation’s Every Community Online program, in order to provide basic computer
and Internet skills. Connected Nation provides a discounted, turnkey training lab solution,
including refurbished or new computers, presentation equipment, training curriculum, and
broadband service,

16. Collect and Display Business and Zoning Information

Collect business and zoning information to contribute as a layer on the availability map to
analyze business access, specifically across areas considered for possible economic
development.

Goal

1. Empower the technology team and local economic development professionals to better
understand the broadband landscape to support current businesses and to recruit new
business.

Action ltems
1. Identify additional resources for zoning layers (i.e. GIS maps).
2. Create an overlay to the last mile service maps provided by Connect Nevada.

STOREY COUNTY TECHNOLOGY ACTION PLAN - OCTOBER2013 . -




Community Engagement Progra

3. Discuss service needs with current and potential businesses.
4. Analyze maps for gaps in service for business.
5. Use broadband in awareness campaigns as a driver for new business recruitment.

Education

17. Support Digital Learning Initiatives
Several digital learning platforms are available for K-12 implementation. For exam
national education nonprofit that helps students in low-income communities, {0 '
their teachers and families, harness the power of digital learning to improve ed
outcomes. The organization is unique in that it operates both “in the cloud”
PowerMylearning.com, a free K-12 oniine learning platform) and “on the gr
Digital Learning Program, a whole school initiative that works hands-on with
constituents that impact student achievement: teachers, parents, and stude

PowerMylearning.com is a free online educational tool that helps students, t
parents focate and access over 1,000 high-quality online digital learning activitie
simulations, and other educational software — to propel student achievement in
including math, English, science, and social studies. The platform features a kid- frlendly~de5|gn‘
There is a playpoint/badge feature to help motivate students. In addition, students can rate
digital learning activities and share them with friends via e-mail, Facebook, and Twitter.

CFY also provides onsite training to instruct teachers how to integrate PowerMylearning into
their classrooms.

In the future, there may be an opportunity to leverage the newly adopted, June 12, 2012, 1tol
program that the Nevada Commission on Educational Technology approved. Its goal was to
create a path to transforming education in Nevada by promoting student success, supporting
economic growth, and creating a twenty-first century workforce. This plan takes into
consideration the results of a 2011 study commissioned by the Governor’s Office of Economic
Development {GOED) that firmly states that the Nevada educational system is
underperforming, and sets the goal of raising standards in science, technology, engineering,
and mathematics (STEM) education, and implements a robust strategy for giving students 1:1
access to computers in the classroom.

Goal

1. Increase student attention and engagement and encourage students to take ownership of
their learning while making it easier for teachers to differentiate instruction to serve the
needs of students.

Action Items
1. Determine needs of local schools related to technology.




)"(( coNNEeﬁn

Co mL i 'Engagement Program .

2. Determine capacity of schools (funding limitations, access to broadband and technology
resources).
3. I|dentify partners and impiement strategies to better serve students through technology.

Government

18. Support Public Safety Network Initiatives
Several digital learning platforms are available for K-12 implementation. For example; CFY
national education nonprofit that helps students in low-income communities, te

parents locate and access over 1,000 high-quality online digital learning activities,
simulations, and other educational software — to propel student achievement in
including math, English, science, and social studies. The platform features a kid-friendly design. .. - -
There is a playpoint/badge feature to help motivate students. In addition, students can raite“, T
digital learning activities and share them with friends via e-mail, Facebook, and Twitter. "
CFY also provides onsite training to instruct teachers how to integrate PowerMyLearning mto '
their classrooms.

in the future, there may be an opportunity to leverage the newly adopted, june 12, 2012, 1tol
program that the Nevada Commission on Educational Technology approved. Its goal was to
create a path to transforming education in Nevada by promoting student success, supporting
economic growth, and creating a twenty-first century workforce. This plan takes into
consideration the results of a 2011 study commissioned by the Governor’s Office of Economic
Development {GOED) that firmly states that the Nevada educational system is
underperforming, and sets the goal of raising standards in science, technology, engineering,
and mathematics (STEM} education, and implements a robust strategy for giving students 1:1
access to computers in the classroom.

Goal

1. Increase student attention and engagement and encourage students to take ownership of
their learning while making it easier for teachers to differentiate instruction to serve the
needs of students.

Action ltems
1. Determine needs of local schools related to technology.

REY COUNTY TECHNOLOGY ACTION PLAN * - OCTOBER 2013




Healthcare

% CONNECTED"

Community Engagement Program

2. Determine capacity of schools (funding limitations, access to broadband and technology
resources).
3. Identify partners and implement strategies to better serve students through technology.

19. Promote Telemedicine in Remote Areas
Promote the delivery of healthcare services from a distance using video-based tech 0l

awarding access to specialists in major hospitals situated in other cities, sta
While telemedicine can be delivered to patient homes, it can alse be imple
partnership with local clinics, libraries, churches, schools or businesses that h;
appropriate equipment and staff to manage it. The most critical steps in pr
telemedicine are ensuring that patients and medical professionals have accessito
service, understand the main features of telemedicine, are aware of the technolog
for telemedicine, and understand how to develop, deliver, use, and evaluate telem
services.

One relevant funding opportunity includes Distance Learning and Telemedicine Loans and
Grants Program. USDA provides loans and grants to rural community facilities (e.g. schools,

libraries, hospitals, and tribal organizations) for advanced telecommunications systems that can
provide healthcare and educational benefits to rurai areas. Three kinds of financial assistance
are available: a full grant, grant-loan combination, and a full loan.

Goal
1. Deliver improved healthcare — Deliver improved healthcare services to rural residents.

OC_TOB_ER 2013




>)V(< CONNECTED}:--

Commumty Engagement Dmgram

APPENDIX 1: STATEWIDE PERSPECTIVE OF BROADBAND

Statewide Infrastructure

months, with updates in October and April annually.

The most current Statewide and County Specific Broadband Inventory Maps re
spring of 2013 depict a geographic representation of provider-based broadban
represented by cable, DSL, wireless, fiber, etc. These maps also incorporate data such'as
political boundaries and major transportation networks in the state. A statewide map |s foundi L
at www.connectnv.org/mapping/state. The county maps are found at

www.connectnv.org/community profile/find your county/nevada/storey.

Tahkle 1: Estimate of Broadhand Service Availability in the State of Nevada
By Speed Tier Among Fixed Platforms '

At Least 3 Mbps/768 Kbps
" At Least 6 Mbp.

At Least 10 Mbps/1.5 Mhps
At Least 50 Mbps/l 5 mbps

At Least 1 Gbps/l 5Mbps

Source: Connect Nevada April 2013

Table 1 reports updated summary statistics of the estimated fixed, terrestrial broadband
service inventory {excluding mobile and satellite service) across the state of Nevada; it presents
the number and percentage of unserved and served households by speed tiers. The total

' STOREY COUNTY, TECHNOLOGY ACTION PLAN -




_ 5"(< CONNECTED

Communlty Engagement ng ram

number of households in Nevada in 2010 was 1,006,250, for a total population of 2,700,551
people. Table 1 indicates that 99.11% of households are able to connect to broadband at
download speeds of at least 768 Kbps and upload speeds of at least 200 Kbps. This implies that
the number of households originally estimated by Connect Nevada to be unserved has droppe
from 9,950 households in the fall of 2010 to 8,956 households in the spring of 2013. Further, :
approximately 989,000 households across Nevada have broadband available of at least 3:Mb
download and 768 Kbps upload speeds. The percentage of Nevada households having:]
broadhand access available of at least 6 Mbps download and 1.5 Mbps upload speed
estimated at 97.41%.

Taking into account both fixed and mobile broadband service platforms, an est
of Nevada households have broadband available from at least one provider :
of 768 Kbps or higher and upload speeds of 200 Kbps or higher. This leaves 2
the State completely unserved by any form of terrestrial broadband {includ
excluding satellite services).

As differences in broadband availability estimates between the fall of 2010 and t € -
2013 show, additional participating broadband providers can have a large impact upon N_evada R
broadbhand mapping inventory updates. Further, the measured broadband inventory pro"des 5
an estimate of the true extent of broadband coverage across the state. Thereis a degree o
measurement error inherent in this exercise, which should be taken into consideration when'.
anhalyzing the data. This measurement error will decrease as local, state, and federal '
stakeholders, identify areas where the displayed coverage is underestimated or overestimated.
Connect Nevada welcomes such feedback to be analyzed in collaboration with broadband
providers to correct errors identified in the maps.

In addition, the broadband availability data collected, processed, and aggregated by Connect
Nevada has been sent on a semi-annual basis to the NTIA to be used in the National Broadband
Map, and comprises the source of Nevada's broadband availability estimates reported by the
NTIA and the FCC in the National Broadband Map. The National Broadband Map can be found
here: hitp://www.broadbandmap.gov and the Map’s specific page for Nevada can be found
here: http://www.broadbandmap.ogv/summarize/state/nevada.

Interactive Map

Connect Nevada provides My ConnectView™, an online tool developed and maintained by
Connected Nation, intended to allow users to create completely customized views and maps of
broadband infrastructure across the state. The self-service nature of this application empowers
Nevada’s citizens to take an active rcle in seeking service, upgrading service, or simply
becoming increasingly aware of what broadband capabilities and possibilities exist in their area,
city, county, or state.

http://www.connectnv.org/interactive-map

‘"' 'STOREY COUNTY TECHNOLOGY A




}V(< CONNECTED

Commumty Engagement Program -

For additional maps and other related information, visit;
http://www.connectnv.org/broadband-landscape

Business and Residential Technology Assessments
To complement the broadband inventory and mapping data, Connect Nevada periodicall
conducts statewide residential and business technology assessments to understand broad
demand trends across the state. The purpose of this research is to better understand
drivers and barriers to technology and broadband adoption and estimate the broadb
adoption gap across the state of Nevada. Key questions the data address are: w
how are households in Nevada using broadband technology? How is this technol
Nevada households and residents? Who is not adopting broadband service a
the barriers that prevent citizens from embracing this empowering ‘cechnoio’j‘g\‘,r

Through Connect Nevada’s research, many insights are able to be collected.:
residential technology assessment revealed the following key findings:

¢ Three out of four Nevada adults (75%, or approximately 1.5 million adults in Ne
subscribe to home broadband service. This is an increase of eight percentage p
2011.

+ Over half a million adults in Nevada still do not subscribe to home broadband servic
including 210,000 who do not have Internet access at any location.

e Nearly three out of four Nevadans with Internet access (73%) bank online, 57% access e-
health information, and 44% search or apply for jobs online.

Additionally, an assessment on technology in businesses refeased in 2012 in a report titled
Technology Adoption among Nevada Businesses revealed the following key findings:

e Across Nevada, 77% of businesses subscribe to broadband service, a slight increase from
2010 when 75% of businesses subscribed.

» Mevada business establishments that use broadband report median annual revenues that
are approximately $300,000 higher than businesses that do not use broadband.
Approximately 21,000 Nevada businesses use the Internet to advertise job openings or
accept job applications, including 2,000 businesses that only accept applications via the
Internet.

For more information on the statewide information described, visit the Connect Nevada website at
http://www.connectnv.org/research.

OREY COUNTY TECHNOLOGY ACTION P




ty Engagement Program

APPENDIX 2: PARTNER AND SPONSORS

Connect Nevada, in partnership with the Nevada Broadband Task Force, supports Nevac
reinvention and technological transformation through innovation, job creation, and %
entrepreneurship via the expansion of broadband technology and increased usage
residents. In 2009, Connect Nevada partnered with the Nevada Broadband Tas_ki._
engage in a comprehensive broadband planning and technology initiative as p:
effort to map and expand broadband. The program began by gathering provid,
statewide broadband map, and has progressed to the planning and develop_:
point the program is expanding to include community engagement in local t hno
identification of opportunities with existing programs, and implementation ¢
projects designed to address digital literacy, improve education, give residents
Internet resources, and stimulate economic development.
www.connectnv.org

Connect Nevada is a subsidiary of Connected Nation and operates as a non-profit in the-
Nevada. The public-private initiative has been established to work with each of the state’s
broadband providers to create detailed maps of broadband coverage, conduct surveys to as
the current state of broadband adoption across Nevada, and to help communities plan for
technology expansion. Connect Nevada's efforts are funded by the United States Department of
Commerce's State Broadband Initiative (SBI} grant program through the National
Telecommunications and Information Administration. More information is available at
http://www.broadband.gov

Connected Nation {Connect Nevada's parent organization) is a leading technology organization
committed to bringing affordabie high-speed Internet and broadband-enabled resources to all
Americans. Connected Nation effectively raises the awareness of the value of broadband and
related technologies by developing coalitions of influencers and enablers for improving
technology access, adoption, and use. Connected Nation works with consumers, community
leaders, states, technology providers, and foundations, including the Bill & Melinda Gates
Foundation, to develop and implement technology expansion programs with core
competencies centered on a mission to improve digital inclusion for people and places
previously underserved or overlooked.

www_.connectednation.org

The National Telecommunications and Information Administration (NTIA} is an agency of the
United States Department of Commerce that is serving as the lead agency in running the State
Broadband Initiative (SBI). Launched in 2009, the NTIA’s State Broadband Initiative {SBI)

implements the joint purposes of the Recovery Act and the Broadband Data Improvement Act,

TY TECHNOLOGY F SRR _-IIOC.ITITOIBER 20




)V(< CONNECTED"

Commumty i—fzg}agemem Program

which envisioned a comprehensive program, led by state entities or non-profit organizations
working at their direction, to facilitate the integration of broadband and information
technology into state and local economies. Economic development, energy efficiency, and
advances in education and healthcare rely not only on broadband infrastructure, but also on
the knowledge and tools to leverage that infrastructure.

broadband adoption, searching out and creating innovative applications tha
government services and information, and developing state and local task force
broadband access and adoption.

Since accurate data is critical for broadband planning, another purpose of the SBI
assist states in gathering data twice a year on the availability, speed, and location
services, as well as the broadband services used by community institutions such as schools,
libraries, and hospitals. This data is used by the NTIA to update the National Broadband Ma
the first public, searchable nationwide map of broadband availability launched February 17,
2011.

STOREY. COUNTY TECHNOLOGY ACTION PLaN - - . OCToSER 2013




>)A(< CONNECTED

Commumty Engagement Program :

APPENDIX 3: WHAT IS CONNECTED?

The goal of Connect Nevada’s Connected program is to certify that each community that
the program has, in socme relevant manner, addressed their community’s need for im
Adoption, and Use of technology by assessing community technological resources, i
and working to fill those gaps:

e ACCESS —|s Broadband infrastructure available to all residents?

¢ ADOFTION = Do residents use the technologies?
e UsE- Are residents using technology to improve their quality of life?

Connected Process

The Connected process consists of a 4-step process:

Step 1: Create a community technology team. Facilitate kickoff meetings and program
orientation with regional leaders and cornmunity champions. Provide them with tools and
resources to form a community team. This team will be represented by local leaders from key
community sectors, including:

OcTo_BER 2013




comzc-rsm

Community Engagement Program -

Broadband Provider Community

Government: General, Public Safety, Energy and Environment
Economic Opportunity: Economic Development, Business Development, Tourism
Agriculture

Education: K-12, Higher Education
Libraries

Healthcare

* & & & & & 9

technology grad

Team will work with community members to determine thelr overall broadbz nd
on a thirteen-point “community certification AAU” model:

1. Broadband Availability
2. Broadband Speeds
3. Broadband Competition
4, Middle Mile Access
5. Mobile Broadband Availability
6. Digital Literacy
7. Public Computer Centers i g
8. Broadband Awareness sts-for Change
9. Vulnerable Population Focus . o
. - .- CN Initiatives and Interventions
10. Economic OPPOI’tumtV * Expand Access
11. Education s fxpand Adoption
® Expand Use L
12. Government ' R RSREINERIS .
13. Healthcare SRR " Broader
ADOPTION
ACCESSto - .
Step 3: Action Planning & implementation. B;“ef;“d
Following Community Assessments, the data is Networks

analyzed, gaps will be determined, and
recommended actions to help to fill gaps will be
identified. After successful execution of projects
the community will be certified as a Connected
Community.

Step 4: Project Success and Expanded Local
Empowerment, Once a community is certified, the community will have an avenue to discuss its
success and pursue opportunities as a recognized, technologicaily advanced community.

STOREY COUNTY TECHNOLOGY ACTION PLAN




) (< CONNECTED‘”

. Cos’: : gagement Program

APPENDIX 4: GLOSSARY OF TERMS

#
3G Wireless - Third Generation - Refers to the third generation of wireless cellular techn
It has been succeeded by 4G wireless. Typical speeds reach about 3 Mbps. .
4G Wireless - Fourth Generation - Refers to the fourth generation of wireless cell
technology. Itis the successor to 2G and 3G. Typical implantations include LTE, W
others. Maximum speeds may reach 100 Mbps, with typical speeds over 10 M

A

ARRA - American Recovery and Reinvestment Act.
ADSL - Asymmetric Digital Subscriber Line - DSL service with a larger portlon
devoted to downstream communications, less to upstream. Typically though
service.

ATM - Asynchronous Transfer Moade - A data service offering by ASI that can be
interconnection of customers’ LAN. ATM provides service from 1 Mbps to 145 Mbps'u
Cell Relay Packets.

B
Bandwidth - The amount of data transmitted in a given amount of time; usually measured in
bits per second, kilobits per second, and megabits per second.

BIP - Broadband Infrastructure Program - Part of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act
{ARRA]}, BIP is the program created by the U.S. Department of Agriculture focused on expanding
last mile broadband access.

Bit - A single unit of data, either a one or a zero. In the world of broadhand, bits are used to
refer to the amount of transmitted data. A kilohit (Kb) is approximately 1,000 bits. A megabit
(Mb} is approximately 1,000,000 bits.

BPL - Broadband Over Powerline - An evolving theoretical technology that provides broadband
service over existing electrical power lines.

BPON - Broadband Passive Optical Network - A point-to-multipoint fiber-lean architecture
network system which uses passive splitters to deliver signals to multiple users. Instead of
running a separate strand of fiber from the CO to every customer, BPON uses a single strand of
fiber to serve up to 32 subscribers,

Breoadband - A descriptive term for evolving digital technologies that provide consumers with
integrated access to voice, high-speed data service, video-demand services, and interactive
delivery services (e.g. DSL, cable Internet).

BTOP - Broadband Technology Opportunities Program - Part of the American Recovery and
Reinvestment Act {ARRA), BTOP is the program created by the U.S. Department of Commerce
focused on expanding broadband access, expanding access to public computer centers, and
improving broadband adoption.

TOREY COUNTY TECHNOLOGY ACTIONPLAN .~ OCTOBER 2013 -




)A( CONNECTED?“'

D Commumty Engagement Program

<
Cable Modem - A modem that allows a user to connect a computer to the local cable system to
transmit data rather than video. It allows broadband services at speeds of five Mbps or high

CAP - Competitive Access Provider - (or “Bypass Carrier”) A company that provides network
links between the customer and the Inter-Exchange Carrier or even directly to the Inte
Service Provider. CAPs operate private networks independent of Local Exchange Carrn
Cellular - A mobile communications system that uses a combination of radio tra
conventional telephone switching to permit telephone communications to and-f
users within a specified area.

CLEC - Competitive Local Exchange Carrier - Wireline service provider that is
state and federal rules to compete with ILECs to provide local telephone and
CLECs provide telephone services in one of three ways or a combination th
or rebuilding telecommunications facilities of their own, b) by leasing capacity:fro
local telephone company (typically an ILEC) and reselling it, or c} by leasing discr:
ILEC network referred to as UNES.
CMTS - Cable Modem Termination System - A component (usually located at the |
head end of a cable system) that exchanges digital signals with cable modems on a cab .
network, allowing for broadband use of the cable system. i
CO - Central Office - A circuit switch where the phone and DSL lines in a geographical area
come together, usually housed in a small building. ‘
Coaxial Cable - A type of cable that can carry large amounts of bandwidth over long distances.
Cable TV and cable modem broadband service both utilize this technology.

Community Anchor Institutions (CAl} - Institutions that are based in a community and larger
user of broadband. Examples include schools, libraries, healthcare facilities, and government
institutions.

CWDM - Coarse Wavelength Division Multiplexing - Multiplexing (more commonly referred to
as WDM) with less than 8 active wavelengths per fiber.

D

Dial-Up - A technology that provides customers with access to the Internet over an existing
telephone line. Dial-up is much slower than broadband.

DLEC - Data Local Exchange Carrier - DLECs deliver high-speed access to the Internet, not voice.
DLECs include Covad, Northpoint, and Rhythms.

Downstream - Data flowing from the Internet to a computer {surfing the net, getting e-mail,
downloading a file).

DSL - Digital Subscriber Line - The use of a copper telephone line to deliver “always on”
broadband Internet service.

DSLAM - Digital Subscriber Line Access Multiplier - A piece of technology installed at a
telephone company’s CO that connects the carrier to the subscriber loop {and ultimately the
customer’s PC}.

STOREY COUNTY TECHNOLOGY ACTION PLAN . ' OCTOBER 2013




Community Engageme nt Drogram

»,,g CONNECTED

DWDM - Dense Wavelength Division Multiplexing - A SONET term which is the means of
increasing the capacity of Sonet fiber-optic transmission systems.

E
E-rate - A federal program that provides subsidy for voice and data lines to qualified schoo
hospitals, Community-Based Organization (CBOs), and other qualified institutions. The sub
is based on a percentage designated by the FCC.

Ethernet - A local area network (LAN) standard developed for the exchange data
network. It allows for speeds from 10 Mbps to 10 Gbps.

EON - Ethernet Optical Network - The use of Ethernet LAN packets running ovi
network.

EvDO - Evolution Data Only - A new wireless technology that provides dat
are 10 times faster than a regular modem.

F
FCC - Federal Communications Commission - A federal regulatory agency that
for, among other things, regulating VoliP.

Fixed Wireless Broadband - The operation of wireless devices or systems for broad-b
fixed locations such as homes or offices.

Franchise Agreement - An agreement between a cable provider and a government entity:
grants the provider the right to serve cable and broadband services to a particular area -
typically a city, county, or state.

FTTH - Fiber To The Home - Another name for fiber to the premises, where fiber optic cable is
pulled directly to an individual’s residence or building allowing for extremely high broadband
speeds.

FTTN - Fiber To The Neighborhood - A hybrid network architecture involving optical fiber from
the carrier network, terminating in a neighborhood cabinet that converts the signal from optical
to electrical.

FTTP - Fiber To The Premise (Or FTT8 — Fiber To The Building) - A fiber optic system that
connects directly from the carrier network to the user premises.

G

Gbps - Gigabits per second - 1,000,000,000 bits per second or 1,000 Mbps. A measure of how
fast data can be transmitted.

GPON - Gigabyte-Capable Passive Optical Network - Uses a different, faster approach {up to
2.5 Gbps in current products) than BPON.

GPS - Global Positioning System - A system using sateilite technology that allows an equipped
user to know exactly where he is anywhere on earth.

GSM - Global System for Mobile Communications - This is the current radio/telephone
standard in Europe and many other countries except Japan and the United States.

H

OCTOBER 2013




)A( Commumty Engagement Ijrogram

HFC - Hybrid Fiber Coaxial Network - An outside plant distribution cabling concept employing
both fiber optic and coaxial cable.
Hotspot - See Wireless Hotspot.

1
IEEE - Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers (pronounced “Eye-triple-E.”). SE
ILEC - Incumbent Local Exchange Carrier - The traditional wireline telephone service prowders S

within defined geographic areas. They typically provide broadband Internet servi
technology in their area. Prior to 1996, |LECs operated as monopolies having the
and responsibility for providing local and local toll telephone service within LA’
IP-VPN - Internet Protocol - Virtual Private Network - A software-defined ne
appearance, functionality, and usefulness of a dedicated private network.
ISDN - Integrated Services Digital Network - An alternative method to simul
voice, data, and other traffic, using the switched telephone network.
ISP - Internet Service Provider - A company providing Internet access to coné_um
businesses, acting as a bridge between customer (end-user) and infrastructure o
up, cable modem, and DSL services. -

5 3
Kbps - Kilobits per second - 1,000 bits per second. A measure of how fast data can be
transmitted.

L
LAN - Local Area Network - A geographically localized network consisting of both hardware and
software. The network can link workstations within a building or multiple computers with a
single wireless Internet connection.

LATA - Local Access and Transport Areas - A geographic area within a divested Regional Bell
Operating Company is permitted to offer exchange telecommunications and exchange access
service. Calls between LATAs are often thought of as long-distance service. Calis within a LATA
{IntralLATA} typically include local and local toll telephone services.

Local Loop - A generic term for the connection between the customer’s premises (home, office,
etc.) and the provider’s serving central office. Historically, this has been a wire connection;
however, wireless options are increasingly available for local loop capacity.

Low Income - Low income is defined by using the poverty level as defined by the U.S. Census
Bureau. A community’s low-income percentage can be found at www.census.gov.

M

MAN - Metropolitan Area Network - A high-speed date intra-city network that links multiple
locations with a campus, city, or LATA. A MAN typically extends as far as 50 kilometers (or 31
miles).

Mbps - Megabits per second - 1,000,000 bits per second. A measure of how fast data can be
transmitted.

OCTOBER 2013 .




Y(< CONNECTED

Commumty Eﬂgagnmem Program ;

Metro Ethernet - An Ethernet technology-based network in a metropolitan area that is used for
connectivity to the internet.

Multiplexing - Sending multiple signals {or streams) of information on a carrier {wireless
frequency, twisted pair copper lines, fiber optic cables, coaxial, etc.) at the same time.
Mutiplexing, in technical terms, means transmitting in the form of a single, complex signal ani
then recovering the separate (individual) signals at the receiving end.

N
NTIA - National Telecommunications and Information Administration, which is housed within
the United State Department of Commerce.

NIST - National Institute of Standards and Technology.

o

Overbuilders - Building excess capacity. In this context, it involves investme
infrastructure projects to provide competition.

OVS - Open Video Systems - A new option for those looking to offer cable tele
cutside the current framework of traditional regulation. It would allow more flex!.‘_
providing service by reducing the build-out requirements of new carriers.

[*]
PON - Passive Optical Network - A Passive Optical Network consists of an optical line
terminator located at the Central Office and a set of associated optical network terminals
located at the customer’s premises. Between them lies the optical distribution network
comprised of fibers and passive splitters or couplers.

R

Right-of-Way - A legal right of passage over land owned by another. Carriers and service
providers must obtain right-of-way to dig trenches or plant poles for cable and telephone
systems and to place wireless antennae.

RPR - Resilient Packet Ring - Uses Ethernet switching and a dual counter-rotating ring topology
to provide SONET-like network resiliency and optimized bandwidth usage, while delivering
multi-point Ethernet/iP services.

RUS - Rural Utility Service - A division of the United States Department of Agriculture that
promotes universal service in unserved and underserved areas of the country through grants,
loans, and financing.

5

Satellite - Satellite brings broadband Internet connections to areas that would not otherwise
have access, even the most rural of areas. Historically, higher costs and lower reliability have
prevented the widespread implementation of satellite service, but providers have begun to
overcome these obstacles, and satellite broadband deployment is increasing. A satellite works
by receiving radio signals sent from the Earth (at an uplink location also called an Earth Station)

NTY:TECHNOLOGYACTIONPLAN. o OCTOBER 2013




% CONNECTED

Community Engagement Program

and resending the radio signais back down to the Earth (the downlink). In a simple system, a
signal is reflected, or "bounced,” off the satellite. A communications satellite also typically
converts the radio transmissions from one frequency to another so that the signal getting sent
down is not confused with the signal being sent up. The area that can be served by a satelhte
determined by the "footprint" of the antennas on the satellite. The "footprint" of a satelliteis
the area of the Earth that is covered by a satellite's signal. Some satellites are able to sh
their footprints so that only certain areas are served. One way to do this is by the use.of
beams called "spot beams." Spot beams allow satellites to target service to a specifi
provide different service to different areas. ‘ i
SBI - State Broadband Initiatives, formerly known as the State Broadband Dat: "'&'jp:e,v,_ opment”
{SBDD) Program.

SONET - Synchronous Optical Network - A family of fiber-optic transmission
Streaming - A Netscape innovation that downloads low-bit text data first, th
graphics. This allows users to read the text of an Internet document first, rat
for the entire file to load.

Subscribership - Subscribership is the number of customers that have subscri
particular telecommunications service.

Switched Network - A domestic telecommunications network usually accessed by
key telephone systems, private branch exchange trunks, and data arrangements.

T
T-1 - Trunk Level 1 - A digital transmission link with a total signaling speed of 1.544 Mbps. It isa
standard for digital transmission in North America.

T-3 - Trunk Level 3 - 28 T1 lines or 44.736 Mbps.

U

UNE - Unbundled Network Elements - Leased portions of a carrier’s {typically an ILEC’s)
network used by another carrier to provide service to customers,

Universal Service - The idea of providing every home in the United States with basic telephane
service.

Upstream - Data flowing from your computer to the Internet (sending e-mail, uploading a file}.

Vv

VDSL {or VHDSL) - Very High Data Rate Digital Subscriber Line - A developing technology that
employs an asymmetric form of ADSL with projected speeds of up to 155 Mbps.

Video On Demand - A service that allows users to remotely choose a movie from a digital
library and be able to pause, fast-forward, or even rewind their selection.

VLAN - Virtual Local Area Network - A network of computers that behave as if they were
connected to the same wire even though they may be physically located on different segments
of a LAN.

VolP - Voice over Internet Protocol - A new technology that employs a data network {such as a
broadband connection) to transmit voice conversations.

STOREY COUNTY TECHNOLOGY ACTION PLAN




>)A(< CONNECTED

Communlty Engagement Program

VPN - Virtual Private Network - A network that is constructed by using public wires to connect
nodes. For example, there are a number of systems that enable one to create networks using
the Internet as the medium for transporting data. These systems use encryption and other
security mechanisms to ensure that only authorized users can access the network and that th
data cannot be intercepted.

Vulnerable Groups -Vulnerable groups will vary by community, but typically include lo
income, minority, senior, children, etc.

W
WAN - Wide Area Network - A communications system that utilizes cabie systems; ti
lines, wireless, and other means to connect multiple locations together for
data, voice, and video.

Wi-Fi - Wireless Fidelity - A term for certain types of wireless local network
specifications in the IEEE 802.11 family.

WiManx - A wireless technology that provides high-throughput breadband co
fong distances. WiMax can be used for a number of applications, including last:
connections, hotspots, and celfular backhaul and high-speed enterprise connectivity fo
businesses.
Wireless Hotspot - A public location where Wi-Fi Internet access is available for free or.
small fee. These could include airports, restaurants, hotels, coffee shops, parks, and mor
Wireless Internet - 1) Internet applications and access using mobile devices such as cell phoﬁés_
and palm devices. 2) Broadband Internet service provided via wireless connection, suchas ™
satellite or tower transmitters.

Wireline - Service based on infrastructure on or near the ground, such as copper telephone
wires or coaxial cable underground, or on telephone poles.

. STOREY COUNTY.TECHNOLOGY ACTIONPLAN -~ .-~ OCTOBER 2013




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: October 1, 2013 Estimate of time required: 10 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [X]

1. Title: Discussion and possible action to approve the second reading of Ordinance 13-249,
an ordinance amending Storey County Code chapter 1.08 General Provisions providing for general
penalties for violation of the code and amending other sections to be consistent and providing for
other properly related matters.

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve the second reading of Ordinance 13-249.

3. Prepared by: Robert Morris, Outside counsel
Department: District Attorney’s Office TELE: 847-0964

4, Staff summary:

The Storey County Code has reserved a general penalty section in chapter 1.08. This
ordinance puts a general penalty chapter into the code. Through the years new sections of the code
have been approved with penalty sections for each ordinance. It has led to multiple, somewhat
inconsistent, penalty sections with many of them being out of date. This ordinance uses the same
language for criminal penalties in all the sections. Now the definition of crimes is in one section
making it easier to update in the future. The penalty sections that presently exist in the code cover all
the chapters and titles of the code that make a violation unlawful. This ordinance moves the general
penalty sections from chapter 9 to chapter 1. Several sections of the code and state statutes specify
civil remedies, which will remain the preferred remedy, because the new general penalty section
specifically defers to existing civil remedies. This amendment contains the standard language found
in most Nevada county codes.

5. Supporting materials: Ordinance 13-249
6. Fiscal impact: None on local government

7. Legal review required: Yes M District Attorney

8 iewed by:
meni Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
@Mnty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[ " —"}

Agenda Item No.




Ordinance No. 13-249

Summary

An ordinance amending Storey County Code chapter 1.08 General Provisions to provide
for general penalties for violations of the code and amend other sections
to be consistent with the change.

Title

An ordinance amending Storey County Code chapter 1.08 General Provisions
providing for general penalties for violation of the code and amending other sections
to be consistent and providing for other properly related matters.

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, does ordain:
SECTION I: Chapter 1.08 General Penalties is amended as follows:

1.08.010 Penalties specified.

Whenever in this code an act is required or prohibited or is declared unlawful and no specific
penalty or fine is provided, any person who violates any provision or to fails to comply with any
of the requirements of this code is guilty of a misdemeanor, except as otherwise specified by state
law or expressly provided by this code.

A. Misdemeanor. Any person violating any of the provisions or failing to comply with any of
the mandatory requirements of this code or that has violated a section with a penalty specified as
a misdemeanor, any person convicted of a misdemeanor under the provisions of this code must
be punished by a fine of not more than $1000 or by imprisonment in the county jail for a period
not exceeding 6 months, or by both fine and imprisonment.

B. Infraction. Any person convicted of an infraction for a violation of this code, as provided
Jor in this code or specified by state law, may be punished by a fine up to $1000.

C. Separate offense. A person is guilty of a separate offense for each act and for each day, or
during any portion of a day, for any violation of a provision of this code committed, continued or
permitted by that person.

D. The county, in addition to or in place of any criminal actions, may also pursue any allowed
civil actions against the person.

1.08.020 State misdemeanors.

The commission of any act or the failure to perform any act within the county, which act or
Jailure to act is made a misdemeanor by the provisions of the Nevada Revised Statutes as
amended, constitutes a misdemeanor under this code.

Draft 8-12-13




1.08.030 Disposition of fines and forfeitures.
All fines and forfeiture for violations of this code must be deposited in the general fund of the
county.

3.08.030 Penalty for failure to make return or furnish data.

Any retailer or other person who fails or refuses to furnish any return required to be made, or
who fails or refuses to furnish a supplemental return or other data required by the tax
commission or who renders a false or fraudulent return, or any person who violates any provision
of Echapters 3.04 through 3.48, shall-be is guilty of a misdemeanor.

3.16.070 Prohibited acts-—-Criminal penalty.
Any person violating Ssections 3.16.030, 3.16.050 or 3.16.060 of this chapter is guilty of a
misdemeanor.

3.52.070 Violation—Criminal pPenalty.

A. Violation of any of the provisions of this chapter is a misdemeanor.

B. Failure to do any act required to be done by the provisions of this chapteris a
misdemeanor. '

3.80.370 Unlawful acts designated—Criminal pPenaltyies.
A. Tt is unlawful for any person:

1. To refuse or neglect to make any statement, report or return required by the provisions
of this chapter;

2. Knowingly to make, or aid or assist any other person in making, a false statement in a
report to the Department of Taxation or in connection with an application for refund of any tax;

3. Knowingly to collect or attempt to collect or cause to be repaid to him or to any
person, either directly or indirectly, any refund of any tax without being entitled to the same;

4. To sell any motor vehicle fuel upen-which fhat the tax imposed by this chaptershall
has not been paid; or

5. To act as an agent to sell any motor vehicle fuel, obtained in any manner, upen-vwhiech
that the tax 1mposed by thls chapter shaH has not been pald

Draft 8-12-13




5.04.010 License Rrequired, Violation-Criminal penalty.

Ne A person, firm, association or corporation within the limits of the-tewn-ofVirginta-City;
the-town-of- Geld Hillor Storey County shall-be-allewed-te-may nof pursue any calling, trade,
business or profession, until he, she, they or it has taken out a license therefor, and paid all fees

for the license. same—as—preaﬂded—m—ehaﬁ—chap{er—aﬂd—feraﬁny person v101at1ng en»ef this chapter

is guﬂty of a misdemeanor. 4

1 g Ii E']'.

5.08.140 Violations-Criminal penalty.
In addition to penaltles of revocation provided herein regarding work permits, any person
v1olatmg any prov1sron of thls chapter shatlbe is gu11ty of a mlsdemeanor——aﬁé—&pen—eeme&eﬂ—

5.12.170 Misdemeanor.
A violation of any provision of this chapter is a misdemeanor.

5.16.240 Violations--Criminal penalty.
In addition to penalties provided herein-regarding revocation of licenses and work cards, any
perscn v101at1ng any prov151on of thlS chapter ehall—be is guﬂty ofa mlsdemeanor—aﬁd—apeﬁ

5.20.060 Violations—-Criminal penalty.

In addition to penalties provided herein regarding eestificates-ofcomplanee revocation of a
permit, any person vrolatmg any prov1s1on of thls chapter shedl-be is guilty of a misdemeanor;

Draft 8-12-13




8.02.080 Violation--Criminal Ppenalty
Any person who VlOlatCS any pr0v131on of this chapter shal—l—be—éeaﬂeé is guﬂty of a
m1sdemean0r ard-u ;

8.04.040 Violation--Criminal Ppenalty.
Any person who v101ates any prov1510n of thls chapter shaﬂ—be—deemeé is gullty of a
misdemeanor an ; /e .

8.08.140 Violation--Criminal Ppenalty
Any person who Vlolatcs the pr0v151ons of thls chapter shall»«be-éeemeé is gu11ty ofa
mlsdcrneanor and-upen ; 254 3 e

8.10.550 Penalties: Violation--Criminal Ppenalty.

A. If a permit is revoked, the former permit holder and the record owner of the property shal
be is responsible for all costs of enforcement, compliance, and associated environmental
remedial action. These costs are in addition to any other civil or criminal penalties that may be
imposed.

B. Violation of the terms of a special use permit or a waste management facility permit shal

bcdeeme-é is a zonmg code v101at10n and isa mzsdemeanor Eaeh—twe&l—y—t-ew'—hem—éay—fs—a

8.12.050 Right of entry--Penalty-for-vFiolation--Criminal Ppenalty..
Fire inspection officials may, with the consent of the owner or occupant of any premises,
enter sueh the premises or property to inspect it the-same for fire hazards. All other entries by

saek officials shall-be-onpresentation-of require a warrant except in exigent (emergency)
circumstances. Failure to comply with directives given to correct identified fire hazards may

result in a misdemeanor prosecution,

8.16.120 Violation--Criminal Ppenalty.

Violation of any provision of this chapter shall-be is a misdemeanor. ;-and-in-addition-thereto;
tThe board ecuntycommissieners may charge the person or persons responsible for any costs
involved in extinguishing any fire resulting from a violation of any of the provisions of this
chapter,

Draft 8-12-13




8.24.120 Violation--Criminal Ppenalty.
His-unlavwful-for-a-Any person te who violates any provisions or fail to comply with any

requlrements of tl'ns chapter-Aﬁype%seﬁ—se—éem-g—sha}l—be is gullty of a mlsdemeanor and-apen

8.28.120 Unlawful acts--Remedies.
A. If an owner of any interest in real property:
1. Holds or conducts a commercial entertainment event or special event on this property
without first obtaining a permit for the holding or conducting of the event; or
2. Knowing that a permit is required, agrees to let the property to another person for the
purpose of holding or conducting a commercial entertainment or special event prior to the other
person obtaining a permit, and the other person thereafter holds or conducts an event without
having obtained a permit.
B. No liability under this section shall attach to any public entity.
C. The liability imposed by this section is in addition to any other liability imposed by statute,
ordinance or judicial decision on any person.
D. It is unlawful for any permittee, employee, agent or person associated with the permittee,
to do any of the following:

1. Conduct or operate a special event or outdoor entertainment event without first
procuring a permit to do so;

2. Sell tickets to a special event without a license first having been obtained;

3.Operate, conduct or carry on any special event or outdoor entertainment in a manner to
create a public or private nuisance;

4. Exhibit, show or conduct within the place of special event or outdoor entertainment any
obscene, indecent, vulgar or lewd exhibition, show play, entertainment or exhibit no matter by
what name designated,

5. Allow any person on the premises of the permitted event to cause or create a disturbance
in, around or near any place of the special event, by offensive or disorderly conduct;

6. Knowingly allow any person to consume, sell or be in possession of intoxicating liquor
while in a place of the event except where the consumption or possession is expressly authorized
under the laws of the state;

7. Knowingly allow any person at the permitted event to use, sell or be in possession of
any narcotic or dangerous drug while in, around or near a place of the event.

Any person vzolarmg the provzszons of IhIS tltle is guzlly of a mlsdemeanor Any-oftheabove

retains any and all ¢ivil remedies, including the ri ght of civil 1njunct10n for the prevention of
these violations and for the recovery of money damages therefore.
E. In addition to any other remedy, the county may enforce its permit requirements by
bringing an action to enjoin any or all of the following:
1. The holding of or performance at a commercial entertainment event or special event,
without a permit;
2. Ticket sales for, or advertising or promotion of a commercial entertainment event prior

Draft 8-12-13




to the time a permit has been obtained;
3. The threatened violation of a permit requirement limiting the number of persons in
attendance at a commercial entertainment event or special event.

8.32.080 Violation--Criminal Ppenalty.
A. Any person who violates any of the provisions of this chapter, or of the provisions of the
regula‘aons estabhshed by the board pursuant to thls chapter is guﬂty of a misdemeanor. and;

—e In the event of a hazardous materlals accident or Splll within the county requiring the
expenditure of county funds to respond to andfor to clean-up and dispose of the hazardous
material and to clean or decontaminate the affected area and the equipment involved in the clean-
up, such expenditure to include contract services, the board shall must determine the amount
expended and the person responsible for or in control of the material at the time of the spill or
accident. Upen-such-determinationt The board shall must deliver its findings to the district
attorney who shall initiate recovery by legal action from the responsible person or person-in-
control of the costs incurred by the county. In the event a determination of responsibility cannot
be made or recovery from a responsible person or person-in-control is not possible the county
commissioners shall apply to the state or state federal government under such reguiations as may
be in force at the time for reimbursement of clean-up and disposal costs. Reimbursement from
spillers or other sources shall be deposited to the county general fund. The recovery by the
county of clean-up and response costs shall not relieve a responsible person or person-in-control
from any fines, penalties, charges or sanctions imposed by the county or other authorities relating
to a hazardous materials incident.

8.36.070 Fraudulent claims--Criminal Ppenalty.
Adl-parties Any person knowingly assisting in the preparation or payment of fraudulent

applications shetl-be-prosecuted-for is guilty of a misdemeanor. effense:

Draft 8-12-13




9.08.010 Unauthorized digging and removal of artifacts prohibited.

A It is unlawful for any person to excavate or dig for bottles or other artifacts of any kind on
any property within the county without the written consent of the owner or possessor of the
premises.

B. It is unlawtful to take, carry away, or remove any bottles or artifacts of any kind from the
property of another without the written consent of the owner or possessor of the premises.

C. As to public property, written consent must be obtained from the county commissioners at
a regular meeting thereof.

D. Violation-of this-sectionis-punishable-as Any person violating the provisions of this

chapter is guilty of a misdemeanor.

9.08.020 Obstructing free passage--Loitering.

A. It is unlawful for any person to wil/fully obstruct the free passage of the public on the
streets, sidewalks and high ways, or to loiter unnecessarily on the streets, sidewalks and
highways of this county.

B. Eveiﬂy Any person v1olat1ng the prov1smns of thls section is gmlty of a mzsdemeanor shall;

eeas%&a%e—a—sep%a%e—eﬂeﬁs& Any person Who v101ates the terms of Sectlons 9.12. 010 through
9 12. 030 of thlS chapter shaﬁ—be—deemeé is gulity ofa mlsdemeanor aﬂé—ﬁpeﬂ-eem%ﬁen

......

2

9.12.060 In vehicle or streets--Prohibited.
A. Any person under the age of twenty-one years who purchases any alcoholic beverage or

Draft 8-12-13




any-such-persor who consumes or has in his possession any alcoholic beverage in a vehicle or on
the streets, hrghways 31dewa1ks or elsewhere in Storey County, is gullty of a misdemeanor.

9.20.030 Violation--Criminal Ppenalty--Exception.
A. It is unlawful for any person knowingly or intentionally to manufacture, sell, advertise for
sale, deliver Or possess an imitation controlled substance Any person who v1olates this chapter is

B. The prohibition set out in subsection A efthis-seetionshall-does not apply to persons
registered under the Uniform Controlled Substances Act to manufacture, distribute, dispense,
prescribe or possess an imitation controlled substance for use as a placebo by a practitioner in the
course of professional practice or research.

9.24.010 Prohibitions Violation—-Criminal Ppenalty.

A. Tt is unlawful for any person to have an open glass container of alcoholic beverage on the
sidewalks along SR Hwy 341, within the Township of Virginia City.

B. Special-event(s)yIn-additien— It is alse unlawful for any person to have an open glass
container of alcoholic beverage within a properly permitted special event venue on public
property.

C. Every person v1olat1ng the prov1sxons of thls section is gmhy of a mzsdemeanor shal—l—en

10.04.020 State provisions--Misdemeanors.
All traffic acts and violations defined as misdemeanors under NRS Chapters 482, 483, 484A,
484B, 484C, 484D, 484, 485, 486 and 706 are declared to be violations of this chapter unless

otherwise prohibited by state law.

10.04.140 Violation--Criminal Ppenalty
Every person vrolatmg the prov1s1ons of th1s chapter is guzlty of a mzsdemeanor shaH—en

Draft 8-12-13




10.08.020 Compliance required--Penalty for violation.

A, Tt is unlawful for the driver of any vehicle to fail to stop in obedience to any sign erected in
accordance with the provisions of this chapter, except where directed to proceed by a police
officer or traffic-control signal.

B. The stop required shalt-be is a full and complete stop and shalt must be made before
entering the intersection on the near side of the intersection.

C. Any person who v1olates any of the provrsrons of thrs chapter shaH—be is gurlty of a
misdemeanor. ;-an

10.12.030 Violation--Criminal Ppenalty.
Any person who v1olates any of the provmons of th1s chapter is guﬂty of a mrsdemeanor 3

10.16.040 Violation.

A. Ne 4 peace officer sheall may not arrest a person for an alleged violation of this chapter if
probable cause exists to arrest that person for a violation of NRS 484.379.

B. The standard of probable cause for arrest under this chapter is equal to the standard of
probable cause for arrest for a violation of NRS 484.379.

C. A violation of this chapter is a lesser and included offense of a violation of NRS 484.379.
A prosecuting attorney may charge a violation of this chapter only if upon review of all of the
relevant facts and law, he knows or it is obvious that a charge of driving under the influence
under NRS 484,379 is not supported by probable cause or that such a charge cannot be proved at
time of trial.

10.16.060 Violation--Criminal Bpenalty
Every person v101at1ng the provrsrons of thls chapz‘er is guzlly of a mzsdemeanor article-shall;

o A § ot ,, Sae 23D T3S s 5

10.18.050 Violation--Criminal Ppenalty.
Vielationr of Any person violating this chapter is guilty of a misdemeanor.

10.20.090 Violation--Criminal Ppenalty.
Any person, firm or corporauon convicted of v101at1ng the prov1510ns of th1s chapter is guzlty
of a mzsdemeanor e sxceed -

10.24.030 Violation--Criminal Ppenalty.

Draft 8-12-13




Any Ppersons v101at1ng the pr0v1smns of thlS chapter shali»be»éeemeel guﬂty of a mlsdemeanor

10.26.010 Motor vehicle restrictions.

A. In order to protect and conserve the Lagomarsino Canyon Petroglyphs located in Storey
County, it is unlawful for any person(s) to operate a motor vehicle, cycle, ATV, car, or truck
within the said gated property as described: The South one half of the Northeast one-quarter of
Section 12, Township 18 North, Range 21 East, M.D.B.M.

B. Any other portion of the county whiek thar may from time to time be defined by resolution
of the board of county commissioners.

C. Prohibited acts; penalties; exceptions; civil remedy.

1. Violation of this section is punishable as a misdemeanor.

3- In addition to any other penalty, a person who violates a provision of this section is
liable for civil damages to the county agency or political subdivision which has jurisdiction over
the county land in an amount equal to the cost or, in the discretion of the court, an amount equal
to twiee the cost of the restoration, stabilization and interpretation of the site plus any court costs
and fees.

12.04.020 Violation--Criminal Ppenalty.
Violations-of Seetion12:04:010 Any person violating this chapter is guilty of a misdemeanor

and may be subject an-alleged-vielater to civil penaltics. and-may-further-be-prosecuted-as-a
misdemeaner:

12.06.010 {Cemetery--Hours--Accessibility--Violations.}

A. Hours of accessibility to the county cemeteries located within Storey County are shall-be
seasonal, September through April 6:00 a.m. to 6:30 p.m., May through August 5:30 a.m., to
8:30 p.m., daily. Accessibility shall may be allowed at other times only with the presence of a
member of the Comstock Cemetery Foundation or a Storey County Eemployee. An escort is not
required for family members and they are authorized to use their vehicles within the cemetery.
The cemetery keys will be available for authorized persons at a location designated by Storey
County. Proper identification procedures will be required to obtain the keys. The Comstock
Cemetery Foundation will insure current keys are provided.

B. Dogs may be walked in the cemetery during hours of operation so long as animal feces is
properly picked up and carried out by the dog walkers.

C. No overnight parking is permitted in cemetery parking lots or access roads.

D. No smoking is allowed within the cemetery boundaries except in designated areas with ash
dispensers;-whete-they-are-provided.

E. No unauthorized vehicles are permitted within the cemetery grounds.

F. Any person violating the provisions of this chapter is guilty of a misdemeanor ¥ielationof

Draft 8-12-13

10




)

e unless a different penalty

is prov1ded by Nevada Rev1sed Statues Re&feﬂee—xsﬂﬂade—te—NRS-Gh&p%eﬁlé%geve%ﬂg—ehe
operatiorrefcemeteries.

13.08.060 Violation--Criminal Ppenalty.
Any person vzolatmg the prowszons of thzs chapter is guzlty of a mzsdemeanor %e%a&eﬁef

13.12.070 Enforcement--Criminal Ppenalty.

Storey-County's Director-of Public Wesls-er-histher The director of public works or designee
has shal-have the authority to enforce this chapter. It is unlawful for any person, firm, or
corporation at any time to make or maintain or cause to be made or maintained, temporarily or
permanently, for any period of time whatsoever, any cross-connection between plumbing pipes
or water fixtures being served with water by Storey County water system and any other source of
water supply or to maintain any sanitary fixture or other appurtenances or fixtures which, by
reason of their construction, may cause or allow backflow of water or other substances into the
water supply system of Storey County and/or the service of water pipes or fixtures of any
customer of Storey County.

Any person v1oIat1ng ons of the prov1810ns of thls chapter is guzlty of sh&li—ee&s&%ate a
mlsdemeanor P e : 3

13.84.010 Prohibitions generally.

It is unlawful for any person to place, deposit, or permit to be deposited in an unsanitary
manner upon public or private property within the accepted limits of Virginia City and Gold Hill,
unincorporated areas in the county, any human or animal excrement, garbage, or other
objectionable waste.

13.84.030 Discharge of untreated waste prohibited.

It shall-be is unlawful to discharge to any stream or watercourse any sewage, industrial
wastes, or other polluted waters except where suitable treatment has been provided in accordance
with the provisions of this #itle division.

13.120.030 Unlawful acts--RIght of entry--Penaltles

Draft 8-12-13




—B. Any person who violates any of the provisions of this chapter or regulations and
resolutions adapted pursuant hefeto thzs chapter is guﬂty of a mlsdemeanor Eaeh—day—er—paﬁei—a

= 243 . = & o o B8 - O & v, -

c B The dumplng of SOlId waste in any area of Storey County, 1nclud1ng a solld waste
disposal site, without obtaining a permit and paying fees is a misdemeanor.

15.04.090 Violation--Criminal penalty.
Any person, firm, or corporatlon vwia‘ung any pr0v1510n of thls chapter shaﬁ—be is guxlty ofa
mlsdemeanor, -and-y 2 a1

15.08.080 Violation--Criminal Ppenalty.
Any person, firm, or corporation violating any provision of this chapter, enforced by the
buﬂdmg 0fﬁc1al or hls/her staff shaH—be is gullty ofa misdemeanor —aﬂd—ﬁﬁeﬁeeﬁwe‘a%—ahaﬁ

15.12.099 Tampering and penalty,
}-A. Fampering: No one except an employee or representative of Storey County or the State
of Nevada shal may at any time or in any manner operate or alter a water meter or otherwise

interfere with a meter or its connections.
2 B. Penalty: Any person violating ¥ielatienof any provision of this divisten chapter is guilty

of ee&atﬁa—‘ees a mlsdemeanor w&h&b}e—byhﬁfmre{—te—e*eeed—ﬁve—hm&dfed—éellafs—

15.12.150 Violation--Criminal Ppenalty.
Any person, firm, or corporatlon v101at1ng any pr0V1310n of this chapter sha%l—be is gullty ofa
mlsdemeanor and-v :

16.12.050 Violation--Criminal Ppenalty.

It is unlawful for any person to sell, contract to sell or transfer any subdivision or any part
thereof or land divided pursuant to a parcel map or map of division into large parcels until the
required map thereed, in full compliance with the appropriate statutory provisions, has been
recorded in the office of the county recorder. Any person violating the provisions of this chapter

is guilty of wielation-ofthis-seetionispunishable-as a misdemeanor, and further may be subject

Draft 8-12-13
12




fo resuliin a civil penalty of not more than three hundred dollars for each lot or parcel sold or
transferred.

17.03.040 Enforcement.

It is unlawful for any person, firm or corporation, whether as a principal, agent, employee, or
otherwise, to construct, build, convert, alter, erect maintain a building, structure or any use of
property, equipment, or operation in violation of a provrsmn of this t1tle Any Vioiatlon of this

tltle is a public nulsance and a mlsdemeanor offet

W@ﬂﬂ—ﬁfmﬁﬁﬁmﬁ% The followmg procedures apply to enforce the provrsrons of

this title:

A, Tf a violation of this title occurs, the director may deliver to the party in violation an order
to comply with the provision of this title in a time period up to 30 days from the issuance of the
order to comply at the director's discretion.

B. The director may also refer notice of the violation to the district attorney who may
commence an action to abate, remove and enjoin the violation as a public nuisance or a criminal

action in the manner provrded by law A—party—rs—guﬁ&ef—a—separa%e—e%ﬂse—fer;e&eh—aﬁd—eﬁm

9

C. The conviction and punishment of any person under this section will not relieve the person
from the responsibilities of correcting the nuisance.

Proposed on , 2013,

by Commissioner

Passed on , 2013.
Vote: Ayes: Commissioners
Nays: Commissioners
Absent Commissioners
Draft 8-12-13

13




Bill Sjovangen, Chair
Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Attest:

Vanessa DuFresne
Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County

This ordinance will become effective on , 2013,

Draft 8-12-13
14




Request from Tom Quigley to be reimbursed for expenses for work on water meter
leak in the amount of $596.60




ECEIVE

SEP 23 2013

Storey County Commission
September, 23, 2013

Virginia City Nevada

Dear Storey County Commission,

| would like to request that an item be placed on the next agenda for the
Storey County Commission. Please place for discussion and possible action, a
request from Tom Quigley to be reimbursed for expenses for work on water
meter leak in the amount of $596.60.

Thank- You,
Tom Quigley
85 C St. Virginia City, Nevada




Request from Tom Quigley for clarification of county policy regarding county
employee use of county owned property for personal use. In specific, the parking
lot and electrical hookup of personal RV and vehicles alongside the main fire
station on C 5t.




ECEIVE

SEP 23 2013
Storey County Commission

September, 23, 2013

Virginia City Nevada

Dear Storey County Commission,

| would like to request an item be placed on the agenda of the next Storey County
Commission. Please place for discussion and possible action a clarification of
county policy regarding county employee use of county owned property for
personal use. In specific, the parking and electrical hookup of personal RV and
vehicles alongside the main fire station on C St.

Thank- You,
Tom Quigley
85 C St. Virginia City, Nevada




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: October 1, 2013 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: DISCUSSION (No Action): (Per TRI/Storey Development Agreement): Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Center Boundary Line Adjustment for Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC., an
adjustment of parcels 2011-07 and 2011-08 of Record of Survey File No. 115859 being a
portion of the Bast ¥ of Section 10, and the West % of Section 11, T.19N, R.22E, M.D.M.

2. Recommended motion. No action per TRI/Storey Development Agreement

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.1144

4. Staff summary:
Brief presentation of item explained in “Title” above. Staff will assure that the map is
recorded with the Office of the Storey County Recorder. Request for item to be under “Planning”.

5. Supporting materials:
1. Record of Survey to Support a Boundary Line Adjustment; (2) Deeds and Legal

Descriptions.
6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: n/a Fund: n/a Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

n/a District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
' 7 _Department Head Department Name: Planning

Qwunty Manager Other agency review:

0, Board action:
{1 Approved
{] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

——
i

Agenda Item No.




7 SHOYIE— 504 ADI1LVE\DOVAEALLVE— L\ OHdWSTS D _
00S-T00-G22 10068 AN ONT ™~
r ¥ 315 ‘I3RS LS8 1SN 03 ~ TUOK BV 43 U151, TIAYIS d¥d SSYE/M 3eid KO KY OMID 7y
NOLIVEOLE00 DNEIFINIONT ONTL ~ - LNIHNNOM 30LLIO ONY1 JNGMNUA0S SAIVIS GEINA O8N0
-~ ONRIVIE ViV (H)
WUVAEN AINNOO AHSOLS e GIUON SY YO KTVOL S7d ¥D # HYEIM 876 ONNDY @
. ~ QUGN SV HO BIEEL STd VO P WVEIY 0SS ONNDd O - B
Eﬁgﬂg%ﬂw%%gﬁg<; T QIO S¥ O BICBE S JIAVIS d¥D 7 Wi .8/5 135 © LT
s ON BT S0H 50 $-KE ¥ UK STATEVY 40 LNAPLSHAY NV ey aNaoTT ooz oo o5 o
-
OTT FHINAD TVIELSAANT ONAU-AOHVL ™
ol T~
INAWLSMAY ANIT AIVANNOY ™~ - ‘_f
V¥ LGS OL XHANNS 40 QUO0HE - 191
e — * J—
. \ 62—120-500 NdY _ /T~ -7 01
\ 2EE0IT 0N / ~ S
\ \ £—6002 1304¥d ~ P
| 2711 *S13N40I8 YHYIIS WRNITNY \_\ T~ #
4
Vo - T~ A E
5 S~ P
B 4 ~ AT F
- ~eee 5 / pice -
- y / AT~ /
\ _ - ~—
. e - \\, ND.J. \. A\mw \ivf.r —_
e - P ~
-~ - 2, 5, - / -
- -~ ’&rOn\.c/m Ko, S m_m.mo__. 9 AL, / _ P / ~—
-~ - e Wb Pona ' Say Y / L . 7
-~ - EY 98gy T3 - st
L - ~ ¥ ey / L L /
P \ ~ Mg, / _ yO-120-506 NIY S /
- \ — Yy zeeoll sod S
. - / y-500E TIONVS - /
\ - _ YAINID TMELSNANI ONIE—30HY.L \\ /
i 5
\ - \ /
\ h % /
\ ya /
\ s /
N saEav Faral .y o /
AN . T0T-£102 Py /
,
N\ > /
4 —
N - /
AN ~ s — /
~ I N30UTE WNIDRG S~ ~
B8 S - ~ \.
~ B~ — —
~ ~I.
-~ P -
-~ - - —~
-~ - ~
- SEMOV FoL5 -~ ,u.nr.w ~ T
P - 20T-L702 - < T~
- ~ =, : - e
~
pad ~ I —
- ~ /
P / £6—120-500 Nd¥
/ §685| 1 s0¥
80— 1102 T2V
/' MIAINAD TYIHISNONT ONZY~20HYL
" o] .
~~ w N \ — -
- -—
™~ N -
N -
-
S RN N -
i AN \ -
7/ _ hY N -
/ N / - - -
WL V4 Ay -
CINOLNINZHOSY THL A9 NADHS STLVNIHOCD 3HL 30ING “S3miva ‘ AY o
Qi) NIYLED OL BZEFSZO0DL 40 HOLDY: QNNOMD~-OL-QHD ¥ AOMS \ /_ -
(3AR30 'J3SVE ONNOYY 3BY d¥M SHL NO KMOHS SILYNIGYOOZ JHL \ / / - -
(3,5+,0295N 7 /\
INUVIE) KX NOLLYIS GNY GUEN NOLVLS SON WOHJ (INWRIIQ SY \ .
"P6/EH QYN UID SNOZ 1S3 'WELSAS ALYNITHO0D ANYTd ALYLS YOVASN \ _/ / mu;-z.
. /
SONTAvHL d0 SISVE y | Voo
s A \




N ST YIE--S0% ANILLVE\IMT\AYILLVE-HL\FOUANSAS\S

00£G-256~GLL LOSER AN 'ONIY
.H ¥ U5 13US LSy 153 08

NOLLVIOJH00 DNRIHENIONE ONHY

AN AHHOLS
WOUH 228 “NCL T NOLLOES 40 01

ISEM HHL ONV ‘01 NOILOES J0 21 ISvE HHE 50 NOIDIOd ¥ ONEH
T ON HTET SOF 40 30-0 7 0HHC STAUYD 50 LNAALISOAY NY

VIVAEN

¥ oz EoPLl]

ALNd3g

i

g

—_—HIONCOT AINMOD |

WOYAIN ALNNOD AZHALS ‘SOBOIIH WISLLK
LI OO A1Swd 3 MM

SIHL NO

OT1 "SHINAD TVRLLSOANI ONHY-HOHVL
¥l

INAWESMAY N1 AVANNOS

40 L5303 JHL 1V JHOO3Y HO4 (14

ON 3T

V DHOS 0L AHAUNS 40 THODHT

1YIGLE30 S ¥3qU0I38 KINMGT

SHYIV FETHT = ViUV "IVLOL
¢ ‘STIDIVd TVLOL

B9L8l B4 W ATIVE O SIr

"J000 ALVELSININGY YOYAIN IHE
20 ST9 ¥AdwH] MLW SONVORODOW NI QALDNANGD S¥a ATANNS THL ONY ‘JASMON ‘'0C9BLT
OL QLO'BLZ SHN 0 SNOGWOYD JHE HLWA LOTISNOD Mi ION S| AZANNS 40 Ou0D3 SIHE ¢

OFLSEG SUN
AR _G3YINDIY S¥ QUOIIY 40 ININMOOD ¥ KO QOINLIGA 3SUY3HL0 38 T HO SLNIANNON
A 03INISET NZ38 3AYH 3N ANVONNOE Q3LSMIV 3HL 30 SLMIO TIONY ONY SHINHOD TV T

N0 GALTIJNOD S¥M ASABNS JHL ONY "W ‘TZZH HBLL il 335 K0 21
1S3 JHL GHY OL 035 30 %71 L5¥3 ML J0 NOLYOd ¥ NiHLW 3N QIASA¥AS SANYT 3HL %

"MOUVHOJHID JMEEINIINT ON3Y 0 3ONVLSHI 3HL IV NOISIAHIANS
42381 AN HIONN JIMH0AEI AZANAS ¥ 40 SUTNSIY THL SLNGSINCEY IV SHL G

VML AJULHIS AEIY3IN
NMOVAIN JO JIVIS 3L N 03SKIIN YeAZAENS GHVT YNOISSTHOH ¥ "HF “ATIVG "0 S3AVM !

HIVOHLIIID SHOAHAMNS

VAYAIN ALNNCD AZHALS 0 SQu003E TYIOM4C 3HL M §¥5

HINOBHL ST9 530%d W01 XXM ‘D002 "ANNC 40 Avd HLSZ JHL 0I0HO0D3M NOISSMMOD ALNNOD
AJYOLS HLW LNIWFIHIY LNGWSOIFAIG S0 MrNYSOMR HLMh SONVOHCOOY N ONY (PPrareiZ
SHN M3d G3AIVM N3G JAVH J¥P TIOUMd ¥ 304 SLNINZMING3Y SHL SY STLALYIS O3S
VOWAIN 3HL 30 OT9'BLZ HONOWHL HO1BLZ YALIYHO HLW LOFINCD M LON Sk d¥M SHL

INAWHEINOET dVIN TZouvd J0 JdAIVM

WOVAZN ALNNGD AJHOLE 30 SOHOUAY TWIDM40 'SSHEGLL OM I
OT1 "H3ENID THRHSAON ON2H-0HVL HD4 AJAHMS JO OHO03Y DL
WOYASN 'ALNNOZ ATHOLS 90 SAHGIIY VENII0 'ICE0L ON T
oM HEINID WRISNON! ONFU-30HVL BOS AJAHNS 40 QRO 6
WOVAIN 'ALNNCD ATHOLS 40 SO¥023H YOG "¢Z880L "ON 34
OT1 "WRANID TRILSNON: CNU=30HYL Y0J AJAHNS 40 CHOD3Y B
VOVAIN ALNNOD ATUOLS 30 SOHODTH TYIDLIO "BGEaL ON Jud
OT1 "¥3LNZ) WRLSNONI ONIH~F0HYL HOJ ABANNG 30 QUODIY £
“WOVAIN 'AINNOD AJHUS 40 SOH0D3H TWIDHA0 'Z6ZH0L ON T3
T HAINZY TYRISNONI ONIY-JOHYL HOJ AZAUNS 30 QOO '8
YOYAIN ALNNOD AJYOLS 40 SOHOOTH WL "SIRCOL 'ON T3
AT MEENID TIMISNON! ONIN-30HYL 804 A3ANNS 40 O¥00R 5
WOVAIN 'ALNMOD AJUOLS 40 SQHODIM TWIOID 'LIBSOL ON T
71 "Y3LN3D TYRMSNON! ONSY~FOHYL HOJ ASAHNS 20 GHOO3Y '
WAYAIN ALMIOD ATHOLS SO SQUOD3N W40 '60S50L ON Iy
T YANZI TYREESNTN ONZM-I0HYE 804 AJANNS 40 Q40038 T
WOPASN 'ALNMOI AJWOLS S0 SANOJRY TWIOH440 '/D9SOL 'ON Thd
T YALNZD TYRALSNON ON3H-30HYL 804 AJAUNS 30 QUOOTE ¢
WAH "3 22 M "N BL L TLEL '9T INMT
QAUYE SILON 0LEUW TAUVIDOSEY ¥ Lv1d 3D ONv1 Twy3na °)

SHONZIHIHA

dVIA ALINIDIA

ﬂ/

114

[

AW3S 0i ON
o

zz

EN

&l ¥ 4 2 1z

&l

21

£t

o

NEL L

ONANd AHYIOR

0T "WALNZD IVIULSNIANI ONRI—30HYE THL 404 HOLYNIQYGOD LIZMOMD HLURTD T 33NA
A8 CI0Z NG 31 w0438 QOTTIMONNIY S¥A TRIMNUISNI SIHL

JOHSYA 40 ALNNCD
S5
YOVASH I3 VIS

HIVOHLLIAD SAAVION

HOIYNIIROOD LOFFOMd Sl
ava HLILIND IINIA AD

HIGWIN DRIDYNYI
NOWYHOJHCD WINEOAITYD ¥
DN 'S3UHIA0ND NYHHON AR

ANYJHCO ALNEY O3LAM YAYAIN ¥
AT "HELNID TWRILSNONI CNZU—30HVL

TNV JHL S0 MESSNYHL JHL 30 Lyid SHL 40 EULON
M358 S¥H S3XYL 30 INIWAVG JHL 80 LNNOOQY ONMODAI KY HIWM ¥30MTT ANV LVHL ¢

TEVAL YOS 3HL ¥04 divd NE3E 3AVH TIOUVY LIIFENS JHL ¥Od SIAVL AIMIJOHd T LYHL °F

OEO'RLE OL OWD'ELT SUN JC SNOISAOH 3HL
OL LNYRASENG SINIESYI DNUSDG ANY JNINGONYEY SLNIPND0O QHRENOEE 3HL AMIII 0L 2

NOJHIH NMOHS 51 LVHL LNJVISYI ANY ONUVIED SINIWNDGCO (GUN03Y 3HL LNJEX3 o 4

SNMOTIOS

3HL DL SIIYOY GNV LV SIHL 30 NOUYOUOOTH ONY NOHYHYLINA FHIL OF GILNISNOD SYH ANV
1V SHL HO QZINISIHSTS ONW1 JO LOVHL LYHL 30 ¥INMO 3HL S| “ANVJINOO ATIEYN QALmN
VAVAIN ¥ 'UT HALNGD TYIELSNOM OKIH-30HYL 'GENDISYIANA IHL LVHL AMNFY OL S| SIHL

HLVOHLEIHD SYANMO

OTT MAINAD TVIILSNANI ONTI-HAOHV.L

q04d

AHAANS O @IOOHA




APN’s: 005-071-31 & 32.

When recorded please mail to:
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC
8725 Technology Way, Ste. C1
Reno, NV 89521

The undersigned hereby affirms
that this document does not
contain a social security number

GRANT. BARGIN AND SALE DEED FOR RECORD OF SURVEY

TAHOE-RENO INDUSTRIAL CENTER, LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability Company
(Grantor), hereby enters into this indenture as of the date writien below.

WITNESSETH

GRANTOR is the owner of that certain real property located in Storey County, Nevada
as described in Exhibit “A”. Grantor wishes to adjust the boundary lines of said land,
pursuant to a map creating the new parcels as described in Exhibit “B”, attached hereto.

THEREFORE, Grantor by these presents does grant, bargain, sell and convey to itself
all portions of said real property described above so that the real property owned by the
Grantor shall be as described in Exhibit “B”.

TOGETHER WITH ALL and singular the tenements, hereditaments and appurtenances
thereunto belonging or in anywise appertaining, and the revisions, remainder and
remainders, rents, issues, and profits thereof, except water rights of all kinds, which are

reserved to Grantor and are not transferred hereby.

Page 1 of 5




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused these presents to be executed the
day and year first above written.

Grantor:

TAHOE-RENO INDUSTRIAL CENTER, LLC
A Nevada Limited Liability Company

By: Norman Properties, Inc.
A California Corporation
Manager

By:
Vincent J. Griffith
Project Coordinator

STATE OF NEVADA )
}ss
COUNTY OF WASHOE )}

On this day of , 2013, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public
in and for said State, personally appeared VINCENT J. GRIFFITH as Project
Coordinator of NORMAN PROPERTIES, INC., A California Corporation, as Manger of
TAHOE-RENO INDUSTRIAL CENTER, LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability Company,
personally known to me or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the
person who executed the within instrument for the purposes herein stated.

Witness my hand and official seal.

Page 2 of 5




EXHIBIT “A”

ORIGINAL PARCEL 2011-07

All that certain real property situated within a portion of the west one-half (1/2) of section
Eleven (11), Township 19 North, Range 22 East, Mount Diablo Meridian, Storey County,
State of Nevada, more particularly described as follows:

Being Parcel 2011-07 as described by Deed conveyed in the office of the Storey County
Recorder, November 2, 2011, as Document No. 115860, and as shown on that “Record
Of Survey For Tahoe-Reno industrial Center, LLC", recorded in the office of the Storey
County Recorder November 2, 2011, as Document No. 115859, Official Records of
Storey County, Nevada.

CONTAINING: 8.72 acres of land, more or less.

ORIGINAL PARCEL 2011-08

All that certain real property situated within a portion of the east one-half (1/2) of Section
Ten (10), and the west one-half (1/2) of section Eleven (11), Township 19 North, Range
22 East, Mount Diablo Meridian, Storey County, State of Nevada, more particularly
described as follows:

Being Parcel 2011-08 as described by Deed conveyed in the office of the Storey County
Recorder, November 2, 2011, as Document No. 115860, and as shown on that “Record
Of Survey For Tahoe-Reno industrial Center, LLC", recorded in the office of the Storey
County Recorder November 2, 2011, as Document No. 115859, Official Records of
Storey County, Nevada.

CONTAINING: 9.46 acres of land, more or less.

BASIS OF BEARINGS: Nevada State Plane coordinated system, West Zone (NAD
83/94).

PREPARED BY THE FIRM OF
RENO ENGINEERING CORPORATION
80 West 1% Street, Suite “A”
Reno, NV. 89501

Page 3 of 5




EXHIBIT “B” (cont.)
PARCEL 2013-101

All that certain real property situated within a portion of the east one-half (1/2) of Section
Ten (10), and the west one-half (1/2) of section Eleven (11), Township 19 North, Range
22 East, Mount Diablo Meridian, Storey County, State of Nevada, being a portion of
Parcels 2011-07 and 2011-08 as shown on that “Record Of Survey For Tahoe-Reno
industrial Center, LLC", recorded in the office of the Storey County Recorder November
2, 2011, as Document No. 115859, Official Records of Storey County, Nevada, more
particularly described as follows:

BEGINNING at a point on the south line of said Parcel 2011-08, from which point the
south one-quarter (1/4) corner of said Section 10 bears S 5246'04" W, 3329.24 feet;

Thence, leaving said south line, N 29%53'47" E, 597 .38 feet, to the north line of said
Parcel 2011-08, being the south line of Peru Drive as recorded by Document No.
110592, Official Records of Storey County, Nevada;

Thence, along said south line of Peru Drive, S 6006'12" E, 612.06 feet;

Thence, continuing along said south line, along a tangent curve to the right having a
radius of 770.00 feet, a central angle of 4927'25", and an arc length of 664.65 feet to a
point;

Thence, S 1038'47" E, 88.76 feet, to the southeast corner of said Parcel 2011-07;

Thence, leaving said south line of Peru Drive, along the south line of said Parcel 2011-
07, along a non-tangent curve to the right from a tangent which bears S 8851'32" W,
having a radius of 545.00 feet, a central angle of 20%95'08", and an arc length of 198.98
feet to a point;

Thence, continuing along said south line of Parcel 2011-07 and its extension thereof,
N 70°13'20" W, 1086.53 feet, the POINT OF BEGINNING .

CONTAINING: 12.42 acres of iand, more or less.

PARCEL 2013-102

All that certain real property situated within a portion of the east one-half (1/2) of Section
Ten (10), and the west one-half (1/2) of section Eleven (11), Township 19 North, Range
22 East, Mount Diablo Meridian, Storey County, State of Nevada, being a portion of
Parcel 2011-08 as shown on that “Record Of Survey For Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center,
LLC", recorded in the office of the Storey County Recorder November 2, 2011, as

Page 4 of 5




EXHIBIT “B” (cont.)

Document No. 115859, Official Records of Storey County, Nevada, more particularly
described as follows:

BEGINNING at a point on the south line of said Parcel 2011-08, from which point the
south one-quarter (1/4) corner of said Section 10 bears S 5246'04" W, 3329.24 feet;

Thence, along said south line, N 70413'20" W, 401.2 4 feet, to the southwest corner of
said parcel;

Thence, along the northwesterly line of said Parcel 2011-08, N 29%53'48" E, 683.16 feet,
to the northwest corner of said parcel, being on the south line of Peru Drive as recorded
by Document No. 110592, Official Records of Storey County, Nevada;

Thence, along said south line of Peru Drive, along a non-tangent curve to the left from a
tangent which bears S 4920'58" E, having a radius of 870.00 feef, a central angle of
1045'14", and an arc length of 163.29 feet;

Thence, continuing along said south line, S 6006'1 2" E, 232.67 feet;

Thence, leaving said south line of Peru Drive, S 29593'47" W, 597.38 feet, the POINT
OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINING: 5.76 acres of land, more or less.
The above-described parcels are subject to all reservations and easements of record.

BASIS OF BEARINGS: Nevada State Plane coordinated system, West Zone (NAD
83/94).

James D. Bailey, Jr.
P.L.S. 18368

PREPARED BY THE FIRM OF
RENO ENGINEERING CORPORATION
80 West 1% Street, Suite “A”
Reno, NV. 89501

Page 5 of §




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 10/1/13 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda; Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License Second Readings -- Approval
2. Recommended motion; Approval
3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next meeting. A
follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted prior to

Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business license holder.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: None

Dijstrict Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
_x__Department He Department Name: Community Development

ounty Manager Other agency review;

9. Board action:
[ Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

=1
[P 3 T

Agenda Item No.




Storey County Community Bebelopment
Buginess §

i,
iy VI

i L icensing

P O Box 526 « Virginia City NV 82440 « {775) 847—096 ~ Fax (775) 847-0935 » buslic@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa DuFresne, Clerk’s Office ) September 20,2013
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Please add the following item(s) to the October 1, 2013, COMMISSIONERS Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
SECOND READINGS:
A. ALIO MEDICAL — Home Business./ 21850 Adobe Rd ~ Reno (independent sales, books only) VCH
B. SPRIMOG, INC, - Contractor / 9965 Cincinnati Dayton Rd ~ West Chester, OH (install equip.)
C. SIERRA HEARTH & HOME - Contractor / 2350 South Carson St ~ Carson City {install fireplaces)
D, PAINTING RENQ.COM - Contractor / 204 Ave de la D’Emerald (handyman) RB
E. HIGHLAND PHOTOGRAPHY — Home Business / 400 Panamint (photography-books only) VCH
F. CHEP USA — General / 8517 South Park Circle ~ Orlando, FL (pallet rental)
G. VISION DESIGN PAINTING - Contractor / 11 Glen Carran Circle ~ Reno
H. COMSTOCK CIVII. WAR RE-ENACTING — Nonprofit / 1575 Plumas ~ Reno
I. SCHWABE, INC. (NATURE’S WAY)- General / 2777 USA Pkwy #106 TRI
(distribution center for dietary supplements)
J. AMPLUS, LLC — General / 3033 Waltham Way (precious metals recovery) TRI
K. A B CUSTOM WOODWORKING - General / 200 Canyon Way (cabinetry) RD
L. NEVADA DISTRIBUTION SERVICES, LLC — General / 625 Waltham Way #103/104 TRI
(public warchouse and distribution)
M. WIDE OPEN - General / 1777 Per Drive (off-road tours and racing) TRI
Inspection Required
ec: Shannon Gardner, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff’s Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept.

Dean Haymore, Economic Dev. Assessor’s Office




